





NATIONAL AGRICULTURAL VALUE CHAIN DEVELOPMENT PROJECT (NAVCDP) Kiambu County Project Coordination Unit (CPCU)

P.o. Box 2344-0900 Kiambu Email: navcdpkiambu@gmail.com

TENDER NO; KE-KIAMBU COUNTY-508068-CW-RFB. Construction and **Expansion of Nyamuku Irrigation Project.**

Tender document comprises of three volumes as follows:

- 1. INVITATION TO TENDER AND CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT VOLUME I.
- 2. TENDER BOOK OF DRAWINGS VOLUME II
- 3. TENDER SPECIFICATIONS VOLUME III

CONSTRUCTION AND EXPANSION OF NYAMUKU IRRIGATION PROJECT TENDER DOCUMENT VOLUME I.

PART 1 – BIDDING PROCEDURES

- Section 1 Instructions to bidders
- Section 2 Bid data sheet
- Section 3 Evaluation and qualification criteria
- Section 4 Bidding forms
- Section 5 Eligible countries

PART 2 – EMPLOYER'S REQUIREMENTS

Section 6 – Requirements

PART 3 – CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT AND CONTRACT FORMS

- Section 7 General conditions
- Section 8 Particular condition
- Section 9 Contract forms







NATIONAL AGRICULTURAL VALUE CHAIN DEVELOPMENT PROJECT (NAVCDP) Kiambu County Project Coordination Unit (CPCU)

P.o. Box 2344-0900 Kiambu Email: navcdpkiambu@gmail.com

NATIONAL AGRICULTURAL VALUE CHAIN DEVELOPMENT PROJECT (NAVCDP) DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, LIVESTOCK AND COOPERATIVE DEVELOPMENT

COUNTY GOVERNMENT OF KIAMBU

P.O. Box 2344-00900 **KIAMBU**

CONSTRUCTION AND EXPANSION OF NYAMUKU IRRIGATION PROJECT KIAMBU COUNTY

(WORLD BANK FUNDED PROGRAMME)

TENDER NO; KE-KIAMBU COUNTY-508068-CW-RFB TENDER DOCUMENT VOLUME I

National Competitive Bidding
Instruction to bids, conditions of Contract & Bills of Quantities

Launched: 31ST October 2025

Closing: 14th November 2025 at 12.00 noon.

Pre-bid meeting: 6th November 2025 from 10.00 am to 1.00 pm.

Venue: Thika Sub County – County Hall Chambers- at 10:00 am, then proceed to the site.

(Mang'u Ward)

PROJECT ID NO.: KE-KIAMBU COUNTY-508068-CW-RFB

CONSTRUCTION AND EXPANSION OF NYAMUKU IRRIGATION PROJECT IN KIAMBU COUNTY

INVITATION TO TENDER NOTICE

The County Government of Kiambu has received funding through NAVCDP for the Construction and Expansion of Nyamuku Irrigation Project under component 2.0 on Climate Smart Value Chain Ecosystem Investments to undertake the project mentioned below. This is, therefore, to invite qualified contractors to submit sealed Bids for the tenders as shown below;

Tender no.	Project name	Project scope	County
Tender No: KE-KIAMBU COUNTY- 508068-CW- RFB	Construction and Expansion of Nyamuku Irrigation Project Kiambu County	 ✓ Construction of intake works. ✓ Construction of sedimentation basin. ✓ Installation of pipe network ✓ Implementation of ESMP 	KIAMBU

Obtaining bidding documents

Interested bidders may download Tender documents from the County website www.kiambu.go.ke or the Public Procurement Information Portal www.tenders.go.ke. Those who wish to participate may send their details to Email: navcdpkiambu@gmail.com for any clarifications or communications by the Procuring Entity.

Submission

Completed tender documents enclosed in plain envelopes must be physically deposited in the **Tender Box at the County Government of Kiambu headquarters (Kiambu Town)** on or before 14th November 2025 at **12.00 noon**. Tenders will be opened thereafter in the presence of Bidders or their representatives who choose to attend.

The Tenders should be clearly marked with the tender number and the project name.

Interested and eligible bidders may obtain further information and inspect the bidding documents at the office of the County Project Coordinator (NAVCDP) or through the email; navcdpkiambu@gmail.com

- 1. The provisions in the Instructions to Bidders and in the General Conditions of Contract are the provisions of the World Bank Standard Bidding Document: Procurement of Works.
- 2. Bids should be clearly marked **CONSTRUCTION AND EXPANSION OF**NYAMUKU IRRIGATION PROJECT IN KIAMBU COUNTY, Tender No. KEKIAMBU COUNTY-508068-CW-RFB and deposited at the Tender Box at the
 County Government of Kiambu Headquarters (Kiambu Town), so as to be received
 on or before 14th November 2025 at 12.00 noon local time and *MUST* be accompanied
 by a tender security as indicated in this tender document.

Bulky bid documents that cannot fit in the tender box should be dropped and registered at the reception area at **Kiambu County Headquarter offices**.

PART 1 – BIDDING PROCEDURES

Section I. Instructions to Bidders (ITB)

This section provides relevant information to help Bidders prepare their bids. Information is also provided on the submission, opening, and evaluation of bids and on the award of Contracts.

Section II. Bid Data Sheet (BDS)

This Section consists of provisions that are specific to each procurement and that supplement the information or requirements included in Section I, **Instructions to Bidders**.

Section III. Evaluation and Qualification Criteria

This Section contains the criteria to determine the lowest evaluated bid and the qualifications of the Bidder to perform the contract.

Section IV. Bidding Forms

This Section contains the forms which are to be completed by the Bidder and submitted as part of his/her Bid

Section V. Eligible Countries

This Section contains information regarding eligible countries.

PART 2 – EMPLOYER'S REQUIREMENTS

Section VI. Requirements

This Section contains the Specification, the Drawings, and supplementary information that describe the Works to be procured. (Reference to volume II and volume III)

PART 3 – CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT AND CONTRACT FORMS

Section VII. General Conditions (GC)

This Section contains the general clauses to be applied in all contracts.

This Section consists of Contract Data and Specific Provisions which contains clauses specific to each contract. The contents of this Section supplement the General Conditions and shall be prepared by the Employer.

Section IX. Contract Forms

This Section contains forms which, once completed, will form part of the Contract. The forms for **Performance Security** and **Advance Payment Security**, when required, shall only be completed by the successful Bidder after contract award.

Table of Contents

PART 1 – Bidding Procedures	
Section I. Instructions to Bidders	8
Section II. Bid Data Sheet	
Section III. Evaluation and Qualification Criteria	
Section IV. Bidding Forms	49
Section V. Eligible Countries	164
PART 2 – Employer's Requirements	165
Section VI. Requirements	166
PART 3 – Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms	169
Section VII. General Conditions (GC)	
Section VIII. Particular Conditions	190
Section IX. Contract Forms	210



Section I. Instructions to Bidders

Table of Clauses

<u>A.</u>	General	10
1.	Scope of Bid	10
1. 2. 3.	Source of Funds	
3 .	Fraud and Corruption	
<u>4.</u>	Eligible Bidders	12
<u>5.</u>	Eligible Goods and Related Services	
<u>B.</u>	Contents of Bidding Document	15
<u>6.</u>	Sections of Bidding Document	15
<u>7.</u>	Clarification of Bidding Document, Site Visit, Pre-Bid Meeting	15
8.	Amendment of Bidding Document	16
<u>C.</u>	Preparation of Bids	17
<u>9.</u>	Cost of Bidding	17
10 .	Language of Bid	
<u>11.</u>	Documents Comprising the Bid.	17
<u>12.</u>	Letter of Bid and Price Schedules	
13.	Alternative Bids.	17
14.	Bid Prices and Discounts.	
15.	Currencies of Bid and Payment	19
16.	Documents Establishing the Qualifications of the Bidder	19
17.	Documents Establishing the Eligibility of the Goods and Related Services	19
18.	Period of Validity of Bids	
19.	Bid Security.	19
<u>20.</u>	Format and Signing of Bid	21
<u>D.</u>	Submission and Opening of Bids	21
21.	Submission, Sealing and Marking of Bids	21
22.	Deadline for Submission of Bids	
23 .	Late Bids	
24 .	Withdrawal, Substitution, and Modification of Bids	
<u>24.</u> <u>25.</u>	Bid Opening	

<u>.</u>	Examination of Bids	24
<u>6.</u>	<u>Confidentiality</u>	24
7.	Clarification of Bids	
8.	Determination of Responsiveness	
<u>.</u>	Bid Evaluation and Comparison	25
9. 0.	Correction of Arithmetical Errors	25
0.	Conversion to Single Currency	
1.	Bid Adjustments	
<u>l.</u> 2. 3. 4.	Qualification of the Bidder	26
<u>-</u> 5.	Comparison of Bid	
<u>.</u>	Employer's Right to Accept Any Bid, and to Reject Any or All Bids	
<u>.</u>	Award of Contract	27
<u>5.</u>	Award Criteria	27
<u>5.</u>	Notification of Award	27
<u>.</u>	Signing of Contract	28
3.	Performance Security	28

Section I. Instructions to Bidders

General

- 1. Scope of Bid
- 1.1 The Employer indicated in Section II, **Bid Data Sheet (BDS)** issues this Bidding Document for the procurement of Works, as specified in Section VI, Requirements. The name, identification, and number of lots are provided in the **BDS**.
- 1.2 Unless otherwise stated, throughout this Bidding Document definitions and interpretations shall be as prescribed in Section VII, **General Conditions**.
- 2. Source of Funds
- 2.1 The Borrower or Recipient (hereinafter called "Borrower") indicated in the **BDS** has applied for or received financing (hereinafter called "funds") from the African Development Bank¹ (hereinafter called "the Bank") toward the cost of the project named in the **BDS**. The Borrower intends to apply a portion of the funds to eligible payments under the contract(s) for which this Bidding Document is issued.
- 2.2 Payments by the Bank will be made only at the request of the Borrower and upon approval by the Bank in accordance with the terms and conditions of the financing agreement between the Borrower and the Bank (hereinafter called the Loan Agreement), and will be subject in all respects to the terms and conditions of that Loan Agreement. No party other than the Borrower shall derive any rights from the Loan Agreement or have any claim to the funds.

3. Fraud and Corruption

- 3.1 It is the Bank's policy to require that Borrowers (including beneficiaries of Bank Financing), as well as bidders, suppliers, and contractors, and their agents (whether declared or not), subcontractors, subconsultants, service providers or suppliers, and any personnel thereof, under Bank-financed contracts, observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement and execution of such contracts². In pursuance of this policy, the Bank:
- (a) defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:

The specific financing institution shall be as stipulated in the **BDS**.

² In this context, any action to influence the procurement process or contract execution for undue advantage is improper.

- (i) "Corrupt Practice" is the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party³;
- (ii) "Fraudulent Practice" any act or omission, including a misrepresentation that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;
- (iii) "Collusive Practice" is an arrangement between two or more parties⁴, designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party; and
- (iv) "Coercive Practice" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party⁵;
- (v) "Obstructive practice" is
 - (v.1) deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering, or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede a Bank investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation, or
 - (v.2) acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank's inspection and audit rights provided for under paragraph 3.1(e) below.
- (b) will reject a proposal for award if it determines that the bidder recommended for award, or any of its personnel, or its agents, or its subconsultants, sub-contractors, service providers, suppliers and/or their employees has, directly or indirectly, engaged in Corrupt, Fraudulent, Collusive, Coercive, or Obstructive Practices in competing for the contract in

³ For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "another party" refers to a public official acting in relation to the procurement process or contract execution. In this context, "public official" includes Bank staff and employees of other organizations taking or reviewing procurement decisions.

⁴ For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "parties" refers to participants in the procurement process (including public officials) attempting either themselves, or through another person or entity not participating in the procurement or selection process, to simulate competition or to establish bid prices at artificial, non-competitive levels, or are privy to each other's bid prices or other conditions.

⁵ For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "party" refers to a participant in the procurement process or contract execution.

question;

- (c) will declare misprocurement and cancel the portion of the Financing allocated to a contract if it determines at any time that representatives of the Borrower or of a recipient of any part of the proceeds of such Financing engaged in Corrupt, Fraudulent, Collusive, Coercive or Obstructive Practices during the procurement or the implementation of that contract, without the Borrower having taken timely and appropriate action satisfactory to the Bank to address such practices when they occur, including by failing to inform the Bank in a timely manner at the time they knew of the practices;
- (d) will sanction a firm or individual, at any time, in accordance with the prevailing Bank's sanctions procedures including by publicly declaring such firm or individual ineligible to bid for, or to be awarded Bankfinanced contracts either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, (i) to be awarded a Bank-financed contract; (ii) to be a nominated sub-contractor, consultant, supplier, or service provider of an otherwise eligible firm being awarded a Bank-financed contract; and
- (e) will require that a clause be included in bidding documents and in contracts financed by the Bank, requiring bidders, suppliers and contractors and their sub-contractors, agents, personnel, consultants, service providers, or suppliers, to permit the Bank to inspect all accounts and records and other documents relating to the submission of bids and contract performance and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Bank.
- 3.2 Furthermore, Bidders shall be aware of the provisions stated in Section VII, **General Conditions**.
- **4.** Eligible Bidders 4.1 A Bidder may be a natural person, private entity, government-owned entity—subject to **ITB** 4.5—or any combination of such entities

⁶ A firm or an individual may be declared ineligible to be awarded a Bank financed contract: (i) upon completion of the Bank's sanctions proceedings as per its sanctions procedures, including, inter alia, cross- debarment as agreed with other International Financial Institutions, including Multilateral Development Banks, or otherwise decided by the Bank; and through the application of the Proposal for the Implementation of a Sanctions Process within the World Bank Group; and (ii) as a result of temporary suspension or early temporary suspension in connection with an on-going sanction proceeding. See footnote 18 and paragraph 9 of Appendix 1 of the Rules and Procedures for Procurement of Goods and Works.

⁷ A nominated sub-contractor, consultant, manufacturer or supplier, or service provider (different names are used depending on the particular bidding documents) is one which has either been: (i) included by the bidder in its pre-qualification application or bid because it brings specific and critical experience and know-how that allow the bidder to meet the qualification requirement for the particular bid; or (ii) appointed by the Borrower."

supported by a letter of intent to enter into an agreement or under an existing agreement in the form of a joint venture, consortium, or association (JVCA). In the case of a joint venture, consortium, or association:

- (a) unless otherwise specified in the **BDS**, all partners shall be jointly and severally liable, and
- (b) the JVCA shall nominate a Representative who shall have the authority to conduct all businesses for and on behalf of any and all the partners of the JVCA during the bidding process and, in the event the JVCA is awarded the Contract, during contract execution.
- 4.2 A Bidder, and all parties constituting the Bidder, shall have the nationality of an eligible country, in accordance with the Bank's **Rules and Procedures for Procurement of Goods and Works**, and as listed in Section V, Eligible Countries. A Bidder shall be deemed to have the nationality of a country if the Bidder is a citizen or is constituted, incorporated, or registered and operates in conformity with the provisions of the laws of that country. This criterion shall also apply to the determination of the nationality of proposed subcontractors or suppliers for any part of the Contract including Related Services.
- 4.3 A Bidder shall not have a conflict of interest. All Bidders found to have a conflict of interest shall be disqualified. A Bidder may be considered to have a conflict of interest with one or more parties in this bidding process, if:
 - (a) they have controlling partners in common; or
 - (b) they receive or have received any direct or indirect subsidy from any of them; or
 - (c) they have the same legal representative for purposes of this bid; or
 - (d) they have a relationship with each other, directly or through common third parties, that puts them in a position to have access to information about or influence on the bid of another Bidder, or influence the decisions of the Employer regarding this bidding process; or
 - (e) a Bidder participates in more than one bid in this bidding process. Participation by a Bidder in more than one Bid will result in the disqualification of all Bids in which it is involved. However, this does not limit the inclusion of the same subcontractor, not otherwise participating as a Bidder, in more than one bid; or
 - (f) a Bidder participated as a consultant in the preparation of Section VI, Requirements that are the subject of the bid.
 - (g) a Bidder or any of its affiliates has been hired, or is proposed to be hired, by the Employer or the Borrower for the

Including eligibility criteria for participation in the supply of goods, works and related services.

supervision of the contract.

- 4.4 A Bidder that is under a declaration of ineligibility by the Bank in accordance with **ITB** Clause 3, at the date of the deadline for bid submission or thereafter, shall be disqualified.
- 4.5 Government-owned entities in the Borrower's country shall be eligible only if they can establish that they (i) are legally and financially autonomous, (ii) operate under the principles of commercial law, and (iii) are not dependent agencies of the Employer or the Borrower.
- 4.6 Bidders shall not be under execution of a Bid–Securing Declaration in the Employer's Country.
- 4.7 Bidders shall provide such evidence of their continued eligibility satisfactory to the Employer, as the Employer shall reasonably request.
- 4.8 Firms from an eligible country shall be excluded if:
 - (a) as a matter of law or official regulation, the Borrower's country prohibits commercial relations with that country; or
 - (b) by an act of compliance with a decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations, the Borrower's country prohibits any import of Goods from that country or any payments to persons or entities in that country.
- 4.9 In case a prequalification process has been conducted prior to the bidding process, this bidding is open only to prequalified Bidders.
- 4.10 A firm sanctioned by the Bank in accordance with the above ITB Clause 3.1 (d), or in accordance with the Bank's policies on anti-corruption and fraud and Bank's sanctions procedures⁹, shall be ineligible to be awarded a Bank-financed contract, or to benefit from a Bank-financed contract, financially or in any other manner, during the period of time determined by the Bank

5. Eligible Goods and Related Services

5.1 All Goods and Related Services to be supplied under the Contract and financed by the Bank, shall have as their country of origin an eligible country of the Bank in accordance with the Bank's **Rules and Procedures for Procurement of Goods and Works**, as listed in Section V, Eligible Countries.

- 5.2 For purposes of this Clause, the term "Goods" includes commodities, raw material, machinery, equipment, and industrial plants; and "Related Services" includes services such as insurance, transportation, installation, and commissioning, training, and initial maintenance.
- 5.3 The term "country of origin" means the country where the Goods

⁹ See the Proposal for the Implementation of a Sanctions Process within the World Bank Group and the Bank's Whistleblowing and Complaints Handling Policy. The Bank's sanctions procedures are publicly disclosed on the Bank's external website."

- have been mined, grown, cultivated, produced, manufactured, or processed; or through manufacture, processing, or assembly, another commercially recognized article results that differs substantially in its basic characteristics from its imported components.
- 5.4 The nationality of the firm that produces, assembles, distributes, or sells the Goods shall not determine their origin.

Contents of Bidding Document

6. Sections of Bidding Document

6.1 The Bidding Document consists of Parts 1, 2, and 3, which include all the Sections indicated below and should be read in conjunction with any Addenda issued in accordance with **ITB** 8.

PART 1 Bidding Procedures

- Section I. Instructions to Bidders (ITB)
- Section II. Bid Data Sheet (**BDS**)
- Section III. Evaluation and Qualification Criteria
- Section IV. Bidding Forms
- Section V. Eligible Countries

PART 2 Employer's Requirements

• Section VI. Requirements

PART 3 Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms

- Section VII. General Conditions (GC)
- Section VIII. Particular Conditions (**PC**)
- Section IX. Contract Forms
- 6.2 The Invitation for Bids issued by the Employer is not part of the Bidding Document.
- 6.3 The Bidder shall obtain the Bidding Document from the source stated by the Employer in the Invitation for Bids; otherwise the Employer is not responsible for the completeness of the Bidding Document.
- 6.4 The Bidder is expected to examine all instructions, forms, terms, and specifications in the Bidding Document. Failure to furnish all information or documentation required by the Bidding Document may result in the rejection of the bid.
- 7. Clarification of Bidding Document, Site Visit, Pre-Bid Meeting
- 7.1 A prospective Bidder requiring any clarification of the Bidding Document shall contact the Employer in writing at the Employer's address indicated in the **BDS** or raise his enquiries during the prebid meeting if provided for in accordance with **ITB** 7.4. The Employer will respond to any request for clarification, provided that such request is received prior to the deadline for submission of bids, within the number of days specified in the **BDS**. The Employer response shall be in writing with copies to all Bidders who have

- acquired the Bidding Document in accordance with **ITB** 6.3, including a description of the inquiry but without identifying its source. Should the Employer deem it necessary to amend the Bidding Document as a result of a request for clarification, it shall do so following the procedure under **ITB** 8 and **ITB** 22.2.
- 7.2 Where applicable, the Bidder is advised to visit and examine the project site and obtain for itself on its own responsibility all information that may be necessary for preparing the bid and entering into a contract for the provision of the Requirements. The costs of visiting the site shall be at the Bidder's own expense.
- 7.3 Pursuant to **ITB** 7.2, where the Bidder and any of its personnel or agents have been granted permission by the Employer to enter upon its premises and lands for the purpose of such visit, the Bidder, its personnel, and agents will release and indemnify the Employer and its personnel and agents from and against all liability in respect thereof, and will be responsible for death or personal injury, loss of or damage to property, and any other loss, damage, costs, and expenses incurred as a result of the visit.
- 7.4 The Bidder's designated representative is invited to attend a pre-bid meeting, if provided for in the **BDS**. The purpose of the meeting will be to clarify issues and to answer questions on any matter that may be raised at that stage. If so provided for in the **BDS**, the Employer will organize a site visit.
- 7.5 The Bidder is requested, as far as possible, to submit any questions in writing, to reach the Employer not later than one week before the meeting.
- 7.6 Minutes of the pre-bid meeting, including the text of the questions raised without identifying the source, and the responses given, together with any responses prepared after the meeting, will be transmitted promptly to all Bidders who have acquired the Bidding Document in accordance with **ITB** 6.3. Any modification to the Bidding Document that may become necessary as a result of the pre-bid meeting shall be made by the Employer exclusively through the issue of an Addendum pursuant to **ITB** 8 and not through the minutes of the pre-bid meeting.
- 7.7 Non-attendance at the pre-bid meeting will not be a cause for disqualification of a Bidder.
- 8.1 At any time prior to the deadline for submission of bids, the Employer may amend the Bidding Document by issuing addenda.
- 8.2 Any addendum issued shall be part of the Bidding Document and shall be communicated in writing to all who have obtained the Bidding Document from the Employer in accordance with **ITB** 6.3.
- 8.3 To give prospective Bidders reasonable time in which to take an addendum into account in preparing their bids, the Employer may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the submission of bids, pursuant to **ITB** 22.2

8. Amendment of Bidding Document

Preparation of Bids

- 9. Cost of Bidding
- 9.1 The Bidder shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of its Bid, and the Employer shall not be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the bidding process.
- 10. Language of Bid
- 10.1 The Bid, as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the bid exchanged by the Bidder and the Employer, shall be written in the language specified in the **BDS**. Supporting documents and printed literature that are part of the Bid may be in another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages in that language, in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Bid, such translation shall govern.
- 11. Documents
 Comprising the
 Bid
- 11.1 The Bid shall comprise the following:
 - (a) Letter of Bid
 - (b) Completed Schedules as provided in Section IV, Bidding Forms:
 - (c) Bid Security or Bid-Securing Declaration, in accordance with **ITB** 19:
 - (d) at the Bidder's option, alternative proposals, if permissible, in accordance with **ITB** 13;
 - (e) written confirmation authorizing the signatory of the Bid to commit the Bidder, in accordance with **ITB** 20.2;
 - (f) documentary evidence establishing the eligibility of the Goods and Related Services offered by the Bidder, in accordance with **ITB** 17.1;
 - (g) documentary evidence establishing the Bidder's qualifications in accordance with the requirements of Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, using the relevant forms furnished in Section IV, Bidding Forms;
 - (h) documentary evidence as specified in the **BDS**, establishing the conformity of the Technical Proposal offered by the Bidder with the Bidding Document, using the relevant forms furnished in Section IV, Bidding Forms;
 - (i) in the case of a bid submitted by a JVCA, JVCA agreement, or letter of intent to enter into a JVCA including a draft agreement, indicating at least the parts of the Requirements to be executed by the respective partners;
 - (j) any other document required in the **BDS**.
- 12. Letter of Bid and Price Schedules
- 12.1 The Bidder shall submit the Letter of Bid using the form furnished in Section IV, Bidding Forms. This form must be completed without any alterations to its format, and no substitutes shall be accepted. All blank spaces shall be filled in with the information requested.
- 13. Alternative
- 13.1 Unless otherwise indicated in the **BDS**, alternative proposals shall

Bids

- not be considered. If alternative proposals are permitted, their method of evaluation shall be as stipulated in Section III, Evaluation and Oualification Criteria.
- 13.2 When alternative times for completion are explicitly invited, a statement to that effect will be included in the **BDS**, as well as the method of evaluating different times for completion.
- 13.3 Except as provided under **ITB** 13.4 below, Bidders wishing to offer technical alternatives to the requirements of the bidding document must first price the Employer's requirements as described in the bidding document and shall further provide all information necessary for a complete evaluation of the alternative by the Employer, including drawings, design calculations, technical specifications, breakdown of prices, and proposed Rehabilitation and Expansion methodology and other relevant details. Only the technical alternatives, if any, of the lowest evaluated Bidder conforming to the basic technical requirements shall be considered by the Employer.
- 13.4 When specified in the **BDS**, Bidders are permitted to submit alternative technical solutions for specified parts of the requirements, and such parts shall be identified in the **BDS**, as will the method for their evaluation, and described in Section VI, Requirements.

14.1 The prices and discounts quoted by the Bidder in the Letter of Bid and in the Price Schedules shall conform to the requirements specified in **ITB** 14.2.

- 14.2 Unless otherwise provided in the **BDS** and the **General Conditions** (**GC**), the prices quoted by the Bidder shall be fixed.
- 14.3 The Bidder shall submit a bid for the whole of the works described in ITB 1.1 by filling in prices for all items of the Works, as identified in Section IV, Bidding Forms. In case of admeasurement contracts, the Bidder shall fill in rates and prices for all items of the Works described in the Bill of Quantities. Items against which no rate or price is entered by the Bidder will not be paid for by the Employer when executed and shall be deemed covered by the rates for other items and prices in the Bill of Quantities.
- 14.4 The price to be quoted in the Letter of Bid shall be the total price of the Bid, excluding any discounts offered.
- 14.5 Unconditional discounts, if any, and the methodology for their application shall be quoted in the Letter of Bid, in accordance with **ITB** 12.1.
- 14.6 If, pursuant to **ITB** 14.2, prices are adjustable, the Bidder shall furnish the indices and weightings for the price adjustment formula in the Schedule of Adjustment Data in Section IV (Bidding Forms) and the Employer may require the Bidder to justify its proposed indices and weightings.
- 14.7 If so indicated in **ITB** 1.1, bids are invited for individual contracts or for any combination of contracts (packages). Bidders wishing to

14. Bid Prices and Discounts

- offer any price reduction for the award of more than one Contract shall specify in their bid the price reductions applicable to each package, or alternatively, to individual Contracts within the package. Price reductions or discounts shall be submitted in accordance with **ITB** 14.5, provided the bids for all contracts are submitted and opened at the same time.
- 14.8 All duties, taxes, and other levies payable by the Contractor under the Contract, or for any other cause, as of the date 28 days prior to the deadline for submission of bids, shall be included in the rates and prices and the total bid price submitted by the Bidder.
- 15.1 The currency(ies) of the bid and the currency(ies) for payment shall be as specified in the **BDS**.
- 16.1 To establish its qualifications to perform the Contract in accordance with Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, the Bidder shall provide the information requested in Section IV, Bidding Forms.
- 16.2 Bidders, individually or in joint ventures, applying for eligibility for margin of preference, if such margin applies pursuant to **ITB** 31.2, shall supply all information required to satisfy the criteria for eligibility as described in **ITB** 31.2.
- 17.1 To establish the eligibility of the Goods and Related Services in accordance with **ITB** Clause 5, Bidders shall complete the forms, included in Section IV, Bidding Forms.
- 18.1 Bids shall remain valid for the period specified in the **BDS** after the bid submission deadline date prescribed by the Employer. A bid valid for a shorter period shall be rejected by the Employer as non-responsive.
 - 18.2 In exceptional circumstances, prior to the expiration of the bid validity period, the Employer may request Bidders to extend the period of validity of their bids. The request and the responses shall be made in writing. If a bid security is requested in accordance with ITB 19, the Bidder granting the request shall also extend the bid security for twenty-eight (28) days beyond the deadline of the extended validity period. A Bidder may refuse the request without forfeiting its bid security. A Bidder granting the request shall not be required or permitted to modify its bid, except as provided in ITB 18.3.
 - 18.3 In the case of fixed price contracts, if the award is delayed by a period exceeding fifty-six (56) days beyond the expiry of the initial bid validity, the Contract price shall be adjusted as specified in the request for extension. Bid evaluation shall be based on the Bid Price without taking into consideration the above correction.

Bid and Payment 16. Documents

15. Currencies of

- 16. Documents
 Establishing the
 Qualifications of
 the Bidder
- 17. Documents
 Establishing the
 Eligibility of the
 Goods and
 Related Services
- 18. Period of Validity of Bids

19. Bid Security

19.1 The Bidder shall furnish as part of its bid, at the option of the

Employer, and as stipulated in the **BDS**, the original of either a Bid-Securing Declaration or a bid security using the relevant form included in Section IV, Bidding Forms. In the case of a bid security, the bid security amount and currency shall be as specified in the **BDS**.

- 19.2 A Bid-Securing Declaration shall use the form included in Section IV, Bidding Forms.
- 19.3 If a bid security is specified pursuant to **ITB** 19.1, the bid security shall be a demand guarantee in any of the following forms at the Bidder's option:
 - (a) an unconditional guarantee issued by a bank or surety;
 - (b) an irrevocable letter of credit; or
 - (c) a cashier's or certified check;

from a reputable source from an eligible country. If the unconditional guarantee is issued by an insurance company or a bonding company located outside the Employer's Country, the issuer shall have a correspondent financial institution located in the Employer's Country to make it enforceable. In the case of a bank guarantee, the bid security shall be submitted either using the Bid Security Form included in Section IV, Bidding Forms or in another substantially similar format approved by the Employer prior to bid submission. In either case, the form must include the complete name of the Bidder. The bid security shall be valid for thirty days (30) beyond the original validity period of the bid, or beyond any period of extension if requested under **ITB** 18.2.

- 19.4 Pursuant to the option stipulated at **ITB** 19.1, any bid not accompanied by a substantially responsive bid security or Bid- Securing Declaration shall be rejected by the Employer as non- responsive.
- 19.5 If a bid security is specified pursuant to **ITB** 19.1, the bid security of unsuccessful Bidders shall be returned as promptly as possible upon the successful Bidder's furnishing of the performance security pursuant to **ITB** 38.
- 19.6 The bid security of the successful Bidder shall be returned as promptly as possible once the successful Bidder has signed the Contract and furnished the required performance security.
- 19.7 The bid security may be forfeited or the Bid-Securing Declaration executed:
 - (a) if a Bidder withdraws its bid during the period of bid validity specified by the Bidder in the Letter of Bid or
 - (b) if the successful Bidder fails to:
 - (i) sign the Contract in accordance with **ITB** 37; or
 - (ii) furnish a performance security in accordance with

ITB 38.

- 19.8 The Bid Security or the Bid Securing Declaration of a JVCA shall be in the name of the JVCA that submits the bid. If the JVCA has not been legally constituted into a legally enforceable JVCA at the time of bidding, the Bid Security or the Bid Securing Declaration shall be in the names of all future partners as named in the letter of intent referred to in **ITB** 4.1.
- 19.9 If a Bid-Securing Declaration is executed in accordance with **ITB** 19.7, the Employer will declare the Bidder ineligible to be awarded a contract by the Employer for the period of time stated in the Form of Bid-Securing Declaration.

20. Format and Signing of Bid

- 20.1 The Bidder shall prepare one original of the documents comprising the bid as described in **ITB** 11 and clearly mark it "ORIGINAL." In addition, the Bidder shall submit copies of the bid, in the number specified in the **BDS** and clearly mark them "COPY." In the event of any discrepancy between the original and the copies, the original shall prevail.
- 20.2 The original and all copies of the bid shall be typed or written in indelible ink and shall be signed by a person duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Bidder. This authorization shall consist of a written confirmation as specified in the **BDS** and shall be attached to the bid. The name and position held by each person signing the authorization must be typed or printed below the signature. All pages of the bid where entries have been made shall be signed or initialled by the person signing the bid.
- 20.3 A bid submitted by a JVCA shall comply with the following requirements:
 - (a) Unless not required in accordance with **ITB** 4.1 (a), be signed so as to be legally binding on all partners and
 - (b) Include the Representative's authorization referred to in **ITB** 4.1 (b), consisting of a power of attorney signed by those legally authorized to sign on behalf of the JVCA.
- 20.4 Any amendments, interlineations, erasures, or overwriting shall be valid only if they are signed or initialled by the person signing the bid.

Submission and Opening of Bids

21. Submission, Sealing and Marking of Bids

- 21.1 Bidders may always submit their bids by mail or by hand. If so specified in the **BDS**, bidders shall have the option of submitting their bids electronically. Procedures for submission, sealing and marking are as follows:
 - (a) Bidders submitting bids by mail or by hand shall enclose the original and copies of the Bid in separate sealed envelopes. If so permitted in accordance with **ITB** 13, alternative proposals, and copies thereof, shall also be placed in separate envelopes.

The envelopes shall be duly marked as "ORIGINAL," "ALTERNATIVE," "ORIGINAL COPY," and "ALTERNATIVE COPY" These envelopes shall then be enclosed in one single package. The rest of the procedure shall be in accordance with **ITB** 21.2 and 21.3.

- (b)Bidders submitting bids electronically shall follow the electronic bid submission procedures specified in the **BDS**.
- 21.2 The inner and outer envelopes shall:
 - (a) bear the name and address of the Bidder;
 - (b) be addressed to the Employer in accordance with **ITB** 22.1;
 - (c) bear the specific identification of this bidding process pursuant to **ITB** 1.1: and
 - (d) bear a warning not to open before the time and date for bid opening
- 21.3 If envelopes and packages are not sealed and marked as required, the Employer will assume no responsibility for the misplacement or premature opening of the bid.
- 22.1 Bids must be received by the Employer at the address and no later than the date and time indicated in the **BDS**.
- 22.2 The Employer may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the submission of bids by amending the Bidding Document in accordance with **ITB** 8, in which case all rights and obligations of the Employer and Bidders previously subject to the deadline shall thereafter be subject to the deadline as extended.
- 23.1 The Employer shall not consider any bid that arrives after the deadline for submission of bids, in accordance with **ITB** 22. Any bid received by the Employer after the deadline for submission of bids shall be declared late, rejected, and returned unopened to the Bidder.
- 24.1 A Bidder may withdraw, substitute, or modify its bid after it has been submitted by sending a written notice, duly signed by an authorized representative, and shall include a copy of the authorization in accordance with **ITB** 20.2., (except that withdrawal notices do not require copies). The corresponding substitution or modification of the bid must accompany the respective written notice. All notices must be:
 - (a) prepared and submitted in accordance with **ITB** 20 and **ITB** 21 (except that withdrawals notices do not require copies), and in addition, the respective envelopes shall be clearly marked "WITHDRAWAL," "SUBSTITUTION," "MODIFICATION;" and
 - (b) received by the Employer prior to the deadline prescribed for submission of bids, in accordance with **ITB** 22.
- 24.2 Bids requested to be withdrawn in accordance with **ITB** 24.1 shall be returned unopened to the Bidders.
- 24.3 No bid may be withdrawn, substituted, or modified in the interval between the deadline for submission of bids and the expiration of the period of bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Letter of Bid or any extension thereof.

- 22. Deadline for Submission of Bids
- 23. Late Bids
- 24. Withdrawal, Substitution, and Modification of Bids

25. Bid Opening

- 25.1 The Employer shall conduct the bid opening in public, in the presence of Bidders' designated representatives and anyone who choose to attend, and at the address, date and time specified in the **BDS**. Any specific electronic bid opening procedures required if electronic bidding is permitted in accordance with **ITB** 21.1, shall be as specified in the **BDS**.
 - 25.2 First, envelopes marked "Withdrawal" shall be opened and read out and the envelope with the corresponding bid shall not be opened, but returned to the Bidder. No bid withdrawal shall be permitted unless the corresponding withdrawal notice contains a valid authorization to request the withdrawal and is read out at bid opening. Next, envelopes marked "Substitution" shall be opened and read out and exchanged with the corresponding bid being substituted, and the substituted bid shall not be opened, but returned to the Bidder. No bid substitution shall be permitted unless the corresponding substitution notice contains a valid authorization to request the substitution and is read out at bid opening. Envelopes marked "Modification" shall be opened and read out with the corresponding bid. No bid modification shall be permitted unless the corresponding modification notice contains a valid authorization to request the modification and is read out at bid opening. Only bids that are opened and read out at bid opening shall be considered further.
 - 25.3 The Employer shall open all other envelopes one at a time and read out: the name of the Bidder, the Bid Price(s), any discounts and their application methodology, alternative bids, the presence or absence of a bid security or Bid-Securing Declaration; and any other details as the Employer may consider appropriate. Only discounts and alternative bids read out at bid opening shall be considered for evaluation. No bid shall be rejected at bid opening except for late bids, in accordance with **ITB** 23.1.
 - 25.4 The Employer shall prepare a record of the bid opening that shall include, as a minimum: the name of the Bidder and whether there is a withdrawal, substitution, or modification; the Bid Price, per lot if applicable, including any discounts and alternative proposals; and the presence or absence of a bid security or a Bid-Securing Declaration. The Bidders' representatives who are present shall be requested to sign the record. The omission of a Bidder's signature on the record shall not invalidate the contents and effect of the record. A copy of the record shall be distributed to all Bidders who submitted bids in time, and posted online when electronic bidding is permitted.

Examination of Bids

- **26.** Confidentiality 26.1 Information relating to the evaluation of bids shall not be disclosed to Bidders or any other persons not officially concerned with such process until information on Contract award is communicated to all Bidders.
 - 26.2 Any attempt by a Bidder to influence improperly the Employer in the evaluation of the bids or Contract award decisions may result in the rejection of its bid.
 - 26.3 Notwithstanding **ITB** 26.1, from the time of bid opening to the time of Contract award, if any Bidder wishes to contact the Employer on any matter related to the bidding process, it should do so in writing.

27. Clarification of **Bids**

- 27.1 To assist in the examination, evaluation, and comparison of the bids, and qualification of the Bidders, the Employer may, at its discretion, ask any Bidder for a clarification of its bid, allowing a reasonable time for response. Any clarification submitted by a Bidder that is not in response to a request by the Employer shall not be considered. The Employer's request for clarification and the response shall be in writing. No change in the prices or substance of the bid shall be sought, offered, or permitted, except to confirm the correction of arithmetic errors discovered by the Employer in the evaluation of the bids, in accordance with ITB 29.
- 27.2 If a Bidder does not provide clarifications of its bid by the date and time set in the Employer's request for clarification, its bid may be rejected.

28. Determination of Responsiveness

- 28.1 The Employer's determination of a bid's responsiveness is to be based on the contents of the bid itself, as defined in **ITB**11.
- 28.2 A substantially responsive bid is one that meets the requirements of the Bidding Document without material deviation, reservation, or omission.
 - (a) "Deviation" is a departure from the requirements specified in the Bidding Document;
 - (b) "Reservation" is the setting of limiting conditions or withholding from complete acceptance of the requirements specified in the Bidding Document; and
 - "Omission" is the failure to submit part or all of the information (c) or documentation required in the Bidding Document.
- 28.3 A material deviation, reservation, or omission is one that,
 - if accepted, would: (a)
 - (i) affect in any substantial way the scope, quality, or performance of the Schedule of Requirements as

specified in Section VI; or

- (ii) limit in any substantial way, inconsistent with the Bidding Document, the Employer]'s rights or the Bidder's obligations under the proposed Contract; or
- (b) if rectified, would unfairly affect the competitive position of other Bidders presenting substantially responsive bids.
- 28.4 The Employer shall examine the technical aspects of the bid in particular, to confirm that all requirements of Section VI have been met without any material deviation, reservation, or omission.
- 28.5 If a bid is not substantially responsive to the requirements of the Bidding Document, it shall be rejected by the Employer and may not subsequently be made responsive by correction of the material deviation, reservation, or omission.
- 28.6 Provided that a bid is substantially responsive, the Employer may waive any quantifiable nonconformity in the bid that does not constitute a material deviation, reservation or omission.
- 28.7 Provided that a bid is substantially responsive, the Employer may request that the Bidder submit the necessary information or documentation, within a reasonable period of time, to rectify nonmaterial nonconformities in the bid related to documentation requirements. Requesting information or documentation on such nonconformities shall not be related to any aspect of the price of the bid. Failure of the Bidder to comply with the request may result in the rejection of its bid.
- 28.8 Provided that a bid is substantially responsive, the Employer shall rectify quantifiable nonmaterial nonconformities related to the Bid Price. To this effect, the Bid Price shall be adjusted, for comparison purposes only, to reflect the price of the non-conforming item or component. The adjustment shall be made using the methodology indicated in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.

Bid Evaluation and Comparison

29. Correction of Arithmetical Errors

- 29.1 The Employer shall use the criteria and methodologies indicated in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. No other evaluation criteria or methodologies shall be permitted
- 29.2 Provided that the bid is substantially responsive, the Employer shall correct arithmetical errors as indicated in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria
- 29.3 If a Bidder does not accept the correction of errors, its bid shall be declared non-responsive and its Bid Security shall be forfeited or the Bid-Securing Declaration executed.

30. Conversion to Single Currency

30.1 For evaluation and comparison purposes, the currency(ies) of the bid shall be converted into a single currency as specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.

31. Bid Adjustments

- 31.1 For evaluation and comparison purposes the Employer shall adjust the bid prices using the criteria and methodology specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
- 31.2 Unless otherwise specified in the **BDS**, no margin of domestic or regional preference shall apply. If a margin of preference applies, the application methodology shall be as specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, and in accordance with the provisions stipulated in the Bank's **Rules and Procedures for Procurement of Goods and Works**.
- 31.3 If in the opinion of the Employer the bid which results in the lowest Evaluated Bid, is seriously unbalanced or front loaded or substantially below the Employer's estimates, the Employer may require the Bidder to produce detailed price analyses for any or all items of the Bill of Quantities, to demonstrate the internal consistency of those prices with the methods and schedule proposed. After evaluation of the price analyses, taking into consideration the schedule of estimated Contract payments, the Employer may require that the amount of the performance security be increased at the expense of the Bidder to a level sufficient to protect the Employer against financial loss in the event of default of the successful Bidder under the Contract

32. Qualification of the Bidder

- 32.1 The Employer shall determine to its satisfaction whether the Bidder that is selected as having submitted the lowest evaluated and substantially responsive bid meets the qualifying criteria specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
- 32.2 The determination shall be based upon an examination of the documentary evidence of the Bidder's qualifications submitted by the Bidder, pursuant to **ITB** 16.
- 32.3 An affirmative determination shall be a prerequisite for award of the Contract to the Bidder. A negative determination shall result in disqualification of the bid, in which event the Employer shall proceed to the next lowest evaluated bid to make a similar determination of that Bidder's qualifications to perform satisfactorily.
- 32.4 The capabilities of the manufacturers and subcontractors proposed in its Bid to be used by the lowest evaluated Bidder for identified major items of the Requirements will also be evaluated for acceptability in accordance with the criteria and methodologies defined in Section

III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. Their participation should be confirmed with a letter of intent between the parties, as needed. Should a manufacturer or subcontractor be determined to be unacceptable, the Bid will not be rejected, but the Bidder will be required to substitute an acceptable manufacturer or subcontractor without any change to the bid price.

- 33. Comparison of Bid
- 33.1 Subject to **ITB** 29, 30 and 31, the Employer shall compare all substantially responsive bids to determine the Bidder whose Bid has been determined to be the Most Advantageous Bid.
- 34. Employer's
 Right to Accept
 Any Bid, and to
 Reject Any or
 All Bids
- 34.1 The Employer reserves the right to accept or reject any bid, and to annul the bidding process and reject all bids at any time prior to contract award, without thereby incurring any liability to Bidders. In case of annulment, all bids submitted and specifically, bid securities, shall be promptly returned to the Bidders.

Award of Contract

- 35. Award Criteria
- 35.1 Subject to **ITB** 34.1, the Employer shall award the Contract to the Bidder whose offer has been determined to be the lowest evaluated bid and is substantially responsive to the Bidding Document, provided further that the Bidder is determined to be qualified to perform the Contract satisfactorily.
- 36. Notification of Award
- 36.1 Prior to the expiration of the period of bid validity, the Employer shall notify the successful Bidder, in writing, that its bid has been accepted. The notification letter (hereinafter and in the Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms called the "Letter of Acceptance") shall specify the sum that the Employer will pay the Contractor in consideration of the execution and completion of the Works (hereinafter and in the Contract Forms called "the Contract Price").

36.3 At the same time, the Employer shall also notify all other Bidders of the results of the bidding process, and shall publish online in the official county website (www.kiambu.go.ke) or the Public Procurement Information Portal (www.tenders.go.ke), the results identifying the bid and lot numbers and the following information: (i) name of each Bidder who submitted a Bid; (ii) bid prices as read out at bid opening; (iii) name and evaluated prices of each Bid that was evaluated; (iv) name of bidders whose bids were rejected and the reasons for their rejection; and (v) name of the winning Bidder, and the price it offered, as well as the duration and summary scope of the contract awarded. After publication of the award, unsuccessful bidders may request in writing to the Employer for a debriefing seeking explanations on the grounds on which their bids were not selected. The Employer shall promptly respond in writing to any unsuccessful Bidder who, after Publication of contract award, requests a debriefing.

37. Signing of Contract

- 37.1 Promptly upon notification, the Employer shall invite the successful Bidder to negotiate the Contract Agreement.
- 37.2 Within thirty (30) days of negotiation of the Contract Agreement, both parties shall execute the contract.
- 37.3 Upon the successful Bidder's furnishing of the signed Contract Agreement and Performance Security pursuant to **ITB** 38, the Employer will discharge its Bid Security, pursuant to **ITB** 19.
- 37.4 Notwithstanding **ITB** 37.2 above, in case signing of the Contract Agreement is prevented by any import restrictions attributable to the Employer, to the country of the Employer, or to the use of the products/goods, systems or services to be supplied, where such import restrictions arise from trade regulations from a country supplying those products/goods, systems or services, the Bidder shall not be bound by its bid, always provided, however, that the Bidder can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Employer and of the Bank that signing of the Contract Agreement has not been prevented by any lack of diligence on the part of the Bidder in completing any formalities, including applying for permits, authorizations and licenses necessary for the import of the products/goods, systems or services under the terms of the Contract Agreement.

38. Performance Security

38.1 Within thirty (30) days of the receipt of notification of award from the Employer, the successful Bidder shall furnish the performance security in accordance with the conditions of contract, subject to **ITB** 31.3, using for that purpose the Performance Security Form included in Section IX, Contract Forms, or another form acceptable to the Employer. If the performance security furnished by the successful Bidder is in the form of a bond, it shall be issued by a bonding or

insurance company that has been determined by the successful Bidder to be acceptable to the Employer. A foreign institution providing a bond shall have a correspondent financial institution located in the Employer's Country.

38.2 Failure of the successful Bidder to submit the above-mentioned Performance Security or sign the Contract in accordance with (38.1) above shall constitute sufficient grounds for the annulment of the award and forfeiture of the bid security, or execution of the Bid-Securing Declaration. In that event the Employer may award the Contract to the next lowest evaluated Bidder whose offer is substantially responsive and is determined by the Employer to be qualified to perform the Contract satisfactorily.

Section II. Bid Data Sheet

A. General		
ITB 1.1	The number of the Invitation for Bids is: KE-KIAMBU COUNTY-508068-CW-RFB. Construction and Expansion of Nyamuku Irrigation Project.	
ITB 1.1	The Employer is: County Government of Kiambu	
ITB 1.1	The name of the bidding process is: National Competitive Bidding	
	The identification number of the bidding process is: KE-KIAMBU COUNTY-508068-CW-RFB	
	The number and identification of lots comprising this bidding process are: N/A	
ITB 2.1	The Borrower is: Republic of Kenya	
ITB 2.1	The specific Bank financing institution is: IDA / World Bank	
ITB 2.1	The name of the project is: National Agricultural Value Chain Development Project (NAVCDP)	
ITB 4.1(a)	Incase of individuals or firms in a joint venture, consortium, or association, the procuring entity shall deal with the designate lead	
ITB 4.4	A list of debarred firms is available at http://www.afdb.org/debarred	
	B. Contents of Bidding Document	
ITB 7.1	Attention: Chief Officer- Crop Production, Irrigation and Marketing Physical Address Sub-County Agriculture offices, Kiambu, P.O. Box 2344-00900 KIAMBU, Kenya Floor/Room number: 1st floor City: KIAMBU ZIP Code: 00900 Country: KENYA Electronic mail address: procurement@kiambu.go.ke Cc navcdpkiambu@gmail.com Requests for clarifications should be received via the above email not later than four(4) business days prior to the deadline for submission of Bids.	

ITB 7.4	A Pre-Bid site visit and meeting "shall" take place on Tuesday 6 th November 2025 prospective bidders will first assemble for a brief meeting in Thika Sub County - County Hall Chambers at 10:00 am, then proceed to the site. (Mang'u Ward)
	C. Mandatory Preparation of Bids
ITB 10.1	The language of the bid is: English
ITB 11.1 (h)	The Bidder must provide the following Mandatory Documentary Evidence to establish the conformity of the Technical Proposal with the Bidding Document: Certificate of Registration/Incorporation CR12 Form/CR13 Form duly signed A valid Tax Compliance Certificate (verifiable) Copy of Bidders KRA PIN A valid Single Business Permit AGPO Certificate (youth category) National Construction Authority Registration (NCA 1,2, 3,4 and 5) Certificate (water works category) A certificate of registration for water development contractor in the Ministry of Water, Sanitation and Irrigation (Category A or B) Duly filled and signed Form of tender and Confidential Business Questionnaire in the company letterhead and in the format attached. Pre-bid site visit/meeting certificate- original Two copies of tender documents marked Original and Copy and have all bid documents serialized and bound. Tender Security of Ksh. 1,000,000.00 (One Million Only) of the bid price in the form of a bank guarantee valid from a bank registered in Kenya which must remain valid for 30 days after the tender validity period. (Both Original and Copy)
ITB 11.1 (j)	 rejected and not considered for further evaluation The Bidder shall submit with the bid the following additional documents for technical evaluation: Written authorization for the person signing the documents from the company/Power of Attorney Lead designate agreement, for those submitting bids as joint venture Evidence of similar works undertaken in the last five years List of proposed personnel including signed CV's and precise proposed positions/tasks for each List of equipment proposed for the works (provide proof of ownership, lease, or hire) reference to table 2.8 on qualification criteria below

	 Clear work program/plan Certified audited financial statements for the last two years 	
ITB 13.1	Alternative bids are not permitted.	
ITB 13.2	Alternatives to the Times for Completion "shall be" permitted.	
	If alternatives to the Times for Completion are permitted, the evaluation method	

	will be as specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.	
ITB 13.4	Alternative technical solutions shall be permitted for the following parts of the Works, as further detailed in the Specification:	
ITB 14.2	Prices "shall be" fixed. Prices are inclusive of all taxes.	
ITB 14.6	The prices quoted by the Bidder "shall not be" subject to adjustment during the performance of the Contract.	
ITB 15.1	The currency of the bid and payment shall be: Kenya Shilling (KES)	
ITB 18.1	The bid validity period shall be: 180 days.	
ITB 19.1	The Bidder shall furnish a bid security of Ksh. 1,000,000.00 (One Million Only) of the bid price in form of a bank guarantee	
ITB 20.1	In addition to the original of the Bid, the number of copies is: 1 Copy.	
ITB 20.2	The written confirmation of authorization to sign on behalf of the Bidder shall indicate:	
	(a) The name and description of the documentation required to demonstrate the authority of the signatory to sign the Bid such as a Power of Attorney, authorization letter in company stationery; and	
	(b) In the case of Bids submitted by an existing or intended JVCA an undertaking signed by all parties (i) stating that all parties shall be jointly and severally liable, if so required in accordance with ITB 4.1(a), and (ii) nominating a Representative who shall have the authority to conduct all business for and on behalf of any and all the parties of the JVCA during the bidding process and, in the event the JV is awarded the Contract, during contract execution."	
	D. Submission and Opening of Bids	
ITB 21.1	Bidders "shall not" have the option of submitting their bids electronically.	
ITB 21.1 (b)	The electronic bidding submission procedures shall be: None	
ITB 22.1	For bid submission purposes only, the Employer's address is: Attention: Chief Officer- Crop Production, Irrigation and Marketing Drop Off Point: Tender Box at Kiambu County Headquarters Physical Address: Kiambu County Headquarters Floor/Room number: Ground floor City: Kiambu	

	ZIP Code: P.O. Box 2344-00900 KIAMBU	
	Country: KENYA	
	The deadline for bid submission is:	
	Date: 14 th November 2025	
	Time: 12.00 noon	
ITB 25.1	The bid opening shall take place at:	
	Physical Address: Kiambu County Headquarters boardroom	
	Floor/Room number: Ground floor	
	City: Kiambu	
	Country: Kenya	
	Date: 14 th November 2025	
	Time: 12.00 noon	
ITB 25.1	The electronic bid opening procedures shall be: None	
F. Bid Evaluation and Comparison		
ITB 31.2	A margin of domestic or regional preference "shall not" apply.	

Section III. Evaluation and Qualification Criteria

1. Evaluation Criteria and Methodology

1.1 Alternative Proposal (If permitted in accordance with ITB 13.1)

Technical Alternative None

1.2 Correction of Arithmetical Errors (In accordance with ITB 29.1)

- (a) Where there are errors between the total of the amounts given under the column for the price breakdown and the amount given under the Total Price, the former shall prevail and the latter will be corrected accordingly
- (b) If there is a discrepancy between the unit price and the total price that is obtained by multiplying the unit price and quantity, the unit price shall prevail and the total price shall be corrected, unless in the opinion of the Employer there is an obvious misplacement of the decimal point in the unit price, in which case the total price as quoted shall govern and the unit price shall be corrected;
- (c) If there is an error in a total corresponding to the addition or subtraction of subtotals, the subtotals shall prevail and the total shall be corrected; and
- (d) If there is a discrepancy between words and figures, the amount in words shall prevail, unless the amount expressed in words is related to an arithmetic error, in which case the amount in figures shall prevail subject to (a) and (b) above.
- 1.3 Conversion to a Single Currency (In accordance with ITB 30)

 Not applicable.

1.4 Discounts (In accordance with ITB 14.5)

The Employer will adjust the Bid Price, using the methodology prescribed by the Bidder in its Letter of Bid, to take account of the Discounts offered by the Bidder in its Letter of Bid, as read out at the Bid Opening.

Quantifiable Nonmaterial Nonconformities (In accordance with ITB 28.8)

The adjustment shall be made using the following methodology: [none]

1.6 Margin of Domestic or Regional Preference (If permitted in accordance with ITB 31.2)

None

1.7 Any other Criteria or Methodology

See Section II & Section VIII

2. Qualification Criteria

2	Qualification (Without Prequalification)
2.1	Eligibility (TABLE)
2.2	Historical Contract Non-Performance (TABLE)
2.3	Financial Situation (TABLE)
2.4	Experience (TABLE)
2.5	Personnel (TABLE)
2.6	Financial situation (TABLE)
2.7	Experience (TABLE)
2.8	Equipment (TABLE)

2. Qualification Tables (Without Prequalification)

Factor	2.1 Eligibility					
			Criteria			
				Bidder		Documentation
Sub-Factor	Requirement	Single	Joint Ver	ture, Consort	ium or Association	Required
	•	Entity	All partners combined	Each partner	At least one partner	•
2.1.1 Nationality	Nationality in accordance with ITB 4.2.	Must meet requirement	Existing or intended JVCA must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	N/A	Form ELI –1.1 and 1.2, with attachments
2.1.2 Conflict of Interest	No- conflicts of interests as described in ITB 4.3.	Must meet requirement	Existing or intended JVCA must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	N/A	Letter of Bid
2.1.3 Bank Ineligibility	Not having been declared ineligible by the Bank as described in ITB 4.4.	Must meet requirement	Existing JVCA must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	N/A	Letter of Bid
2.1.4 Government Owned Entity	Compliance with conditions of ITB 4.5	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	N/A	Form ELI –1.1 and 1.2, with attachments

Factor	2.1 Eligibility						
			Criteria				
		Bidder					
Sub-Factor	Requirement	Single	Joint Venture, Consortium or Association			Documentation Required	
	requirement	Entity	All partners combined	Each partner	At least one partner	1	
2.1.5 Ineligibility based on a United Nations resolution or Borrower's country law	Not having been excluded as a result of the Borrower's country laws or official regulations, or by an act of compliance with UN Security Council resolution, in accordance with ITB 4.8	Must meet requirement	Existing JVCA must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	N/A	Letter of Bid	

Factor	2.2	Historical Contract Non-P	erformance				
Sub-		Bidder					
Factor		D		Joint V	enture, Consortiun	or Association	- Documentation Required
		Requirement	Single Entity	All partners combined	Each partner	At least one partner	•

Factor	2.2 Historical Contract Non-Performance						
		C	riteria				
Sub-				Bidder		- Documentation	
Factor	Do ourinous out		Joint V	enture, Consortiun	n or Association	Required	
	Requirement	Requirement g. ,		Each partner At least one partner		1	
2.2.1 History of non- performing contracts	Non-performance of a contract did not occur within the last twelve (12) months prior to the deadline for application submission, based on all information on fully settled disputes or litigation. A fully settled dispute or litigation is one that has been resolved in accordance with the Dispute Resolution Mechanism under the respective contract, and where all appeal instances available to the bidder have been exhausted.	Must meet requirement by itself or as partner to past or existing JVCA	N/A	Must meet requirement by itself or as partner to past or existing JVCA	N/A	Form CON - 2	
2.2.2 Failure to Sign Contract	Not being under execution of Bid- Securing Declaration pursuant to ITB 4.6 for twelve (12) months	Must meet requirement	N/A	Must meet requirement by itself or as partner to a JVCA	N/A	Letter of Bid	
2.2.3 Pending Litigation	All pending litigation history shall disqualify the Bidder.	Must meet requirement by itself or as partner to past or existing JVCA	N/A	Must meet requirement by itself or as partner to past or existing JVCA	N/A	Form CON – 2	

Factor	2.3 Financial Situation					
			Bio	dder		Documentation
Sub-Factor	Requirement	G: I	Joint Ventur	e, Consortium o	r Association	Required
	requirement	Single Entity	All partners combined	Each partner	At least one partner	
2.3.1 Historical Financial Performance	Submission of audited balance sheets or, if not required by the law of the bidder's country, other financial statements acceptable to the Employer for the last three [3] years to demonstrate the current soundness of the bidders financial position and its prospective long-term profitability. (a) Audited accounts in comparative form (b) Letter of credit worthiness from your banker (c) Bank statements	Must meet requirement	N/A	Must meet requirement	N/A	Form FIN – 3.1 with attachments
2.3.2. Average Annual Turnover	Minimum average annual turnover of KES 30 million, calculated as total certified payments received for contracts in progress or completed within the last two (2) years	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	Must meet fifty percent (50%) of the requirement	Must meet fifty percent (50%) of the requirement	Form FIN –3.2

Factor	2.3 Financial Situation					
			Bio	dder		Documentation
Sub-Factor	Requirement	G. 1	Joint Ventur	e, Consortium o	r Association	Required
	Requirement	Single Entity	All partners combined	Each partner	At least one partner	
2.3.3. Financial Resources	The Bidder must demonstrate access to, or availability of, financial resources such as liquid assets, unencumbered real assets, lines of credit, and other financial means, other than any contractual advance payments to meet: (i) the following cash-flow requirement: Current ratio = Liquid Assets Liquid liabilities Greater than 1 and Debt Ratio = Total Debt Total Assets Less than 1 and (ii) the overall cash flow requirements for this contract and its current commitments.	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	Must meet fifty percent (50%) of the requirement	Must meet seventy five percent (75%) of the requirement	Form FIN –3.3 + Form CCC

Factor	2.4 Experience					
		Cr	iteria			
Sub-Factor			Bio	lder		Documentation
Sub-ractor	Requirement	Cin ala	Joint Venture	, Consortium	or Association	Required
	•	Single Entity	All partners combined	Each partner	At least one partner	
2.4.1 General Experience	Experience under contracts in the role of contractor, subcontractor, or management contractor for at least two (2) completed within the last five [5] years prior to the applications submission deadline	Must meet requirement	N/A	Must meet requirement	N/A	Form EXP-2.4.1
2.4.2 Specific Experience	a)Participation as the contractor, management contractor, or subcontractor, in at least three (3) Water, irrigation, or civil works Contracts within the last six (6) years, each with a cumulative value of at least fifty million (KES 50 Million.), that have been successfully completed and that are similar to the proposed Works. The similarity shall be based on the physical size, complexity, methods/technology, or other characteristics as described in Section VI, Requirements.	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirements for all characteristics	N/A	Must meet requirement for one characteristic	Form EXP 2.4.2(a)

Factor	2.4 Experience					
		Cr	iteria			
Sub-Factor			Bio	lder		
Sub-ractor	Requirement	G: 1	Joint Venture	, Consortium	or Association	Required
	requirement	Single Entity	All partners combined	Each partner	At least one partner	•
2.4.2 Specific Experience	b) For the above or other contracts executed during the period stipulated in 2.4.2(a) above, a minimum experience in the following key activities: 1. Intake weir and Sedimentation Basin works on a permanent river 2. Pipe installation works especially in HDPE /GI or uPVC. 3. Water spillway excavation and stabilization. 4. Water draw-off system installation 5. Plumbing works. 6. Masonry works	Must meet requirements	Must meet requirements	N/A	Must meet requirements	Form EXP-2.4.2(b)

2.5 Personnel

The Bidder must demonstrate that it will have the personnel for the key positions that meet the following requirements:

S/No	Staff Position	Minimum Qualifications	Total Specific experience (years)	Weighted Score
1	Site Engineer	BSc.(Civil /Agricultural Engineering) and registered with EBK	10 years supervising Irrigation/water infrastructural works	5 (loose 0.5 marks for every year not achieved)
2	Surveyor	B.Sc/ HND in Survey /Photogrammetry or its equivalent and registered with their professional body (conversant in AUTOCAD/CIVIL 3D)	5 years in surveying for Irrigation/water infrastructural projects	5 (loose 1 mark for every year not achieved)
3	Concrete Foreman	Diploma (Civil Engineering /Agricultural Engineering) or building Rehabilitation and Expansion	5 years in construction of Irrigation/water infrastructural projects	5 (loose 1 mark for every year not achieved)
4	Plumber	Certificate in plumbing works	5 years in construction of Irrigation/water infrastructural projects	5 (loose 1 mark for every year not achieved)
5	Environmental/Safety Expert	B.Sc. In environmental science/ natural science or its equivalent and be registered by NEMA as a lead expert	3years in ESIA/EA reports development for irrigation related projects and 2 years in ESMP implementation supervision	5 (3 marks-ESIA/EA reports development for irrigation related projects (loose 1 mark for every year not achieved) (2 marks-ESMP Implementation supervision (loose 1 mark for every year not achieved)
Total Score	,	-	•	25 marks

The Bidder shall provide details of the proposed personnel and their experience records in the relevant Forms included in Section IV, Bidding Forms.						

2.6 Financial Situation

S/no.	Description	Our Requirement	Tender Reference	Weighted Score
6	Historical Financial Performance	Audited financial statement for the last three years 2024, 2023 and 2022 demonstrating	2.3.1	20 Marks (4 marks for each turn over statements)
		(a) Three years' average turnover of 50 million and above		(4 marks for Letter of credit worthiness)
		(b) Letter of credit worthiness from a reputable bank of Ksh 100 million and above		(2marks for cash flow
		(c) Positive cash flow		(2 marks asset base)
		(d) asset base of not less than 20 million		
		Prepare signed and stamped by licensed practitioner (attach valid ICPAK membership license)		
8	Financial Resources	financial resources such as liquid assets, unencumbered real assets, lines of credit, and other financial means, other than any	2.3.3.	12 Marks
		contractual advance payments to meet: (i) the following cash-flow requirement:		(4 marks for Current ratio greater than 1)
		Current ratio = <u>Liquid Assets</u> Liquid liabilities Greater than 1		(4 marks for Debt ratio less than 1)
		and Debt Ratio = Total Debt Total Assets Less than 1 and (ii) the overall cash flow requirements for this contract and its current commitments.		(4 marks for proof/ statement that bidder has the overall cash flow requirements for this contract and its current requirements)

Total Score 32 Marks

2.7 Experience

S/no.	Description	Our Requirement	Tender Reference	Weighted Score
9	General Experience	Experience under contracts in the role of contractor, subcontractor, or management contractor for at least two (2) completed within the last five [5] years prior to the applications submission deadline	2.4.1	6 Marks (3 marks for each that qualify)
10	Specific Experience	(a)Participation as the contractor, management contractor, or subcontractor, in at least three (3) Water, irrigation, or civil works Contracts within the last six (6) years, each with a value of at least fifty million (KES 50 Million), that have been successfully completed and that are similar to the proposed Works. The similarity shall be based on the physical size, complexity, methods/technology, or other characteristics as described in Section VI, Requirements.	2.4.2	6 Marks (2 marks for each that qualify)
		 b) For the above or other contracts executed during the period stipulated in 2.4.2(a) above, a minimum experience in the following key activities: 1. Intake works on a permanent river. 2. Pipe installation works especially in HDPE /GI or uPVC. 3. Water spillway excavation and stabilization. 4. Water draw-off system installation 5. Plumbing works. 6. Concrete/Masonry works 	2.3.3.	6 Marks (1 marks for each activity)
Total Sco	ore	-	•	18 Marks

2.8 Equipment

The Bidder must demonstrate that it will have access to the key Contractor's equipment listed hereafter: (attach ownership documents / hire agreement)

S/no.	Description	Minimum (Rating/capacity)	Minimum Quantity Required	Weighted Score
11	Van or Utility vehicle	1 tonne	1	2 Marks
12	Excavator	1.0 m ³	1	4 Marks
13	Concrete mixer	1 m ³	2	2Marks
14	Dewatering Pumps	100 mm dia. Delivery	1	1 Marks
15	Concrete Vibrators (poker)	3 KVA (Output)	2	1 Marks
16	Generator	9 - 10 kw	1	3 Marks
17	Butt Fusion Machine	8.7KW – pipe Welding range upto 450mm	1	4 Marks
18	Micro Tunnelling Boring Machine (MTBM)	Excavation Diameter of 2 – 4m	1	4 Marks
19	Survey Equipment	Total Station with all the Accessories (or superior survey equipment)	1	4 Marks
Total S	core		-	25 Marks

Technical Qualification

Bidders will be evaluated based on the above criteria and ranked based on their scores out of 100 marks. The pass mark for technical qualification is 80 marks

Commercial Evaluation

The commercial evaluation and final ranking of the bids will take into consideration the scope of the works in relation to the financial proposal and other pertinent terms and conditions of tender.

The evaluation committee will determine whether the financial proposals are complete. The cost of items not priced shall be assumed to be included in other costs in the proposal. In all cases, the total price of the financial proposal as submitted shall prevail.

Bids will be ranked and the lowest evaluated bid with the highest score shall be recommended for award.

Post Qualification

The Employer may use this to determine whether the bidder who submitted the lowest evaluated responsive bid is qualified to perform the contract effectively in accordance with Section 83 of the *Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act*, 2015 and Regulation 80 of the *Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Regulations*, 2020

Negotiations

The lowest evaluated bidder may be invited for best and final offer.

Contract Award

The contract will be awarded to the lowest evaluated bidder after negotiations.

Section IV. Bidding Forms

Table of Forms

<u>Form of Tender</u> <u>Error! Bool</u>	kmark not defined
Confidential Business Questionnaire Form	
Bill of Quantities/Schedules of Prices	<u>52</u>
Schedule of Adjustment Data	<u>133</u>
Summary of Payment Currencies	<u>134</u>
Form of Bid Security (Bank Guarantee)	<u>136</u>
Form of Bid Security (Bid Bond)	<u>138</u>
Form of Bid-Securing Declaration	<u>140</u>
Technical Proposal	<u>141</u>
Site Organization	<u>142</u>
Method Statement	<u>143</u>
Mobilization Schedule	<u>144</u>
Rehabilitation and Expansion Schedule	<u>145</u>
Contractor's Equipment	<u>146</u>
Proposed Personnel	<u>147</u>
Resume of Proposed Personnel	<u>148</u>
Others	<u>149</u>
Bidder's Qualification	<u>150</u>
Bidder Information Sheet	151
Party to JVCA Information Sheet	
Historical Contract Non-Performance	
Current Contract Commitments / Works in Progress	
Financial Situation	
Average Annual Turnover	
Financial Resources	
General Experience	
Specific Experience	
Specific Experience in Key Activities	

FORM OF TENDER
Date
Tender No
To:
[Name and address of procuring entity]
Gentlemen and/or Ladies:
1. Having examined the tender documents, including Addenda Nos
said tender documents for the sum of
2. We undertake, if our Tender is accepted, to deliver, install and commission the equipment in accordance with the delivery schedule specified in the Schedule of Requirements.
3. If our Tender is accepted, we will obtain the guarantee of a bank in a sum of equivalent to the percent of the Contract Price for the due performance of the Contract, in the form prescribed by(Procuring entity).
4. We agree to abide by this Tender for a period of [Number] days from the date fixed for tender opening of the Instructions to tenderers, and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before the expiration of that period.
5. This Tender, together with your written acceptance thereof and your notification of award, shall constitute a Contract, between us. Subject to signing of the Contract by the parties.
6. We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest or any tender you may receive. Dated this day of
monthyear
Duly authorized to sign tender for and on behalf of

CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

You are requested to give the particulars indicated in Part 1 and either Part 2(a), 2(b) or 2 (c), whichever applied to your type of business

You are advised that it is a serious offence to give false information on this form
Part 1 – General: Business Name
Location of business premises.
Plot No
Postal Address Tel No. Fax E mail
Nature of Business
Registration Certificate No.
Maximum value of business which you can handle at any one time – Kshs.
Name of your bankers Branch
Part 2 (a) – Sole Proprietor
Your name in full
Nationality
Citizenship details
Part 2 (b) Partnership
Given details of partners as follows:
Name Nationality Citizenship Details Shares
1
2
3
4
Part 2 (c) – Registered Company
Private or Public
State the nominal and issued capital of company-
Nominal Kshs.
Issued Kshs
Given details of all directors as follows
Name Nationality Citizenship Details Shares
1
2
3
4
5
Date Signature of Candidate

If a Kenya Citizen, indicate under "Citizenship Details" whether by Birth, Naturalization or Registration.

Bill of Quantities/Schedules of Prices

GRAND SUMMARY OF BILLS

Bill No.		I
DIII NO.	Description	Total Amount
1	Preliminaries and Generals	
2	Intake Works	
2_1	Intake chamber and fittings	
3	Sedimentation Basin (SB)	
4	Conveyance bill	
5	ML1 & ML1P	
6	ML2 & ML2-P	
7	Sub-mains (SM1, SM1-L2, SM5-ML2, SM2-ML2, SM4-ML2, SM3-ML2)	
8	Feeders (F2-SM1-1, M2-F1, M2-F1-P, F2-SM1-P, F1-SM1-2, ML2-F2, ML2-F1)	
	Sub-total Sub-total	
	Contingency (5% of sub-total)	
	Contractual fee (3% of sub-total)	
	Grand Total	

Bill No. 1: P & G						
ITEM	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)	
1.1	Contractual Requirements					
1.1.1	Allow for Mobilization and Demobilization	LS	1			
1.1.2	Insurance of Works	LS	1			
1.1.3	Third Party Insurance	LS	1			
1.1.4	Insurance of Workmen	LS	1			
1.2	Stamp Charges					
1.2.1	The contractor shall allow for the payment of all stamp charges in connection with the contract agreement	LS	1			
1.3	Water					
	All water shall be fresh, clean and pure free from earthly vegetable or organic matter, acid or alkaline substance in solution or suspension. The contractor shall provide at his own risk and cost all water for use in connection with the works, including the work of subcontractors, make arrangements with the relevant authorities for the instalation of a separate meter or permit for all water used by him throughout the contract period, provide temporary storage, pipings etc, as he may deem necessary for the completion of the works.					

1			T	T	T
1.3.1	Provide for and ensure connection to local water supply (Provider) for portable water for use by the workers on site during the contract period. The rate to include for the service meter and connection fee	No	1		
1.3.2	Provide for monthly water bills to the water service provider for the amount of water consumed during the contract period	Months	8		
1.4	Temporary works, offices, and sheds				
1.7	Temporary works, offices, and sileds				
	The contractor shall erect and maintain temporary office accommodation for his use and ample temporary water tight sheds for the proper storage of materials and for use of artisans including removal when ordered. Floors, sheds shall be at least 150mm above ground level.	LS	1		
4.5					
1.5	Sanitation				
	The contractor shall provide the necessary latrine for staff and workmen to the requirements and satisfaction of the health authorities and maintain the same in a thorough clean and sanitary condition and pay all consrvancy fees during the period of the works and remove when no longer required.				
1.5.1	Provide for two eco-toilets (for use by gents and ladies separately) at the intake works for use by the workers during the construction phase. The facilitity to be demolished upon completion of works.	No	2		

	Rates to include for mobilization and demobilization at the intake and professional disposal of the waste to the satisfaction of the Project Manager			
1.5.2	Provide for eco-toilets along the pipe lines for use by workers during the construction phase. Rates to include for mobilization and demobilization and movement along the pipelines and professional disposal of the waste to the satisfaction of the Project Manager	No	2	
1.6	Security			
	The contractor must take all precautions necessary for the safe custody of the works, material, and public and employers' property on site.			
1.6.1	Provide for security of materials and equipment's on camp site and at the various active working points in collaboration to the local security establishment as outlined in the security management plan. Rates to include for wages to watchmen as required, security lights and the gear to the watchmen	Months	8	
1.70	Concrete Strength Tests			
1.7.1	Provisional Sum for additional concrete tests, as directed by the Resident Engineer	Prov. Sum	1	
1.7.2	Contractor's mark-up for profit and overheads in respect to Item 1.7.1	%	8%	
1.80	Training (refer to O&M Training guide attached)			
1.8.1	Farmers training on Project O&M	Prov. Sum	1	

1.8.2	Contractor's mark-up for profit and overheads in respect to Items 1.8.1	%	8%	
1.9	Signboards			
	Provision, erection and maintenance of project signboards in accordance with Clause 102 of the general and specifications.	No.	3	
1.10	Project Operation			
1.10.1	Allow provisional sum for preparation of operation and maintenance manual	Prov. Sum	1	
1.10.2	Operate completed project for 14 days prior to handing over including all costs	Days	14	
1.11	Environmental and Social Management Plan (ESMP) Implementation (See attached ESMP Guide below the BoQ)			
1.11.1	Provisional sum for Contractor ESMP implementation.	Prov. Sum	1	
	TOTAL CARRIED OVER	TO GRAND	SUMMARY	

Bill No. 2 - INTAKE WORKS

ITEM	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (KShs)
2.1	SITE CLEARANCE AND SETTING OUT				
2.1.1	Clear site of all trees (less than 500 mm diameter), bushes, shrubs, etc and dispose as specified with respect to weir and intake locations	m2	32		
2.1.2	Removal of trees of girth greater than 1500 mm (provisional)	No.	5		
2.2	RIVER DIVERSION/ACCESS TO INTAKE SITE				
2.2.1	Provide for river diversion works and/or coffer dam. Price to include for all labor, materials and superintendence during the construction period, and reinstatement at the end.	Lump Sum	1		
2.2.2	Provide access road to site and temporary camp/storage area at intake.	Sum	1		
2.3	EXCAVATION/EARTHWORKS				
	To include for all bush clearing, trimming to levels, backfilling with approved selected spoil, compacting, disposal of surplus material and reinstatement.				
2.3.1	In rock to take weir and wing-walls to depth n.e 3.0 m and form sections as specified.	m3	50		

2.3.2	Ditto for intake chamber	m3	25.00	
2.3.2	Bitto for mitaile chamber		25.00	
2.3.3	In normal material under wing walls, chambers, retaining walls	m3	7.00	
2.4	CONCRETE WORKS			
	Provide, place and treat the following concrete mixes including all form-work.			
2.4.1	RC concrete grade 25/20 to weir body and intake chamber	m3	41.00	
2.4.2	Ditto in weir retaining and wing walls (including base)	m3	10.00	
2.4.3	Ditto for separating wall (for sluiceway) and base	m3	7.00	
2.4.4	Ditto for breast wall and aprons	m3	27.00	
2.4.5	Ditto for deck slabs as shown	m3	2.00	
2.4.6	Ditto for offtake pipe supports (anchor blocks) and weir key	m3	9.00	
2.4.7	Blinding concrete grade 15/40, 75 mm thick to weir body, intake chambers, retaining walls and wing walls	m3	26.00	
2.5	Reinforcement			
	Provide support and fix the following reinforcement, including all cutting, bending and supports for weir body, floors, walls, slabs, etc as shown in the drawings			
2.5.1	High yield bars - TMT diameter 12mm	Kg	2,405.00	

2.5.2	High yield bars - TMT diameter 10mm	Kg	3,191.00	
2.6	PROTECTION WORKS			
2.6.1	Provide all materials, lay and place mass concrete grade 25/20 on the downstream apron of the weir. Thickness not exceeding 0.5m	m3	24	
2.6.2	Supply and install galvanized steel trash rack complete will all fixing iron mongery to intake as specified.	No.	1	
2.6.3	100x100x10 mild steel angle with 300 mm long 120 mm mild steel tangs welded at 500 mm c/c and cast into concrete at crest of weir as shown in the drawing.	sum	1	
2.6.4	Supply and install metal slide gate to intake chamber as shown	No.	1	
2.6.5	Supply and install galvanized sluice gate to sluiceway as specified / shown in the drawings	No.	1	
2.6.6	Supply and install 1200x1500mm Screen (30mm c/c) at inlet of main pipe	No	2	
2.6.7	Provide and install MS cover plate complete with frames/hinges/lockable steel cover (G-16) 600mm x 600mm	Sum	2	
2.6.8	Scour pipes dia 200mm x 4.0 m long GI pipe (weir body)	No.	2	
	TOTAL CARRIED OVER	TO GRAND	SIIMMARV	
	TOTAL CARRIED OVER	I J GIVALID		
				<u> </u>

Bill No. 2_1 - INTAKE CHAMBER

ITEM	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (KShs)
2_1	SITE CLEARANCE AND SETTING OUT				
2_1.1	Clear site of all trees (less than 500 mm diameter), bushes, shrubs, etc and dispose as specified with respect to weir and intake locations	m2	4		
2_1.2	Removal of trees of girth greater than 1500 mm (provisional)	No.	3		
2_3	EXCAVATION/EARTHWORKS				
	To include for all bush clearing, trimming to levels, backfilling with approved selected spoil, compacting, disposal of surplus material and reinstatement.				
2_3.1	In rock to take weir and wing-walls to depth n.e 0.5 m and form sections as specified.	m3	2		
2_3.3	In normal material to a depth not exceeding 1.5m	m3	6.00		
2_4	CONCRETE WORKS				
	Provide, place and treat the following concrete mixes including all form-work.				

2_4.1	RC concrete grade 25/20 to the base of chamber and walls	m3	5.00	
2_5	Reinforcement			
	Provide support and fix the following			
	reinforcement, including all cutting, bending and supports for the walls			
2_5.1	High yield bars - TMT diameter 12mm	Kg	49.00	
2_5.2	High yield bars - TMT diameter 10mm	Kg	34.00	
2_7	INTAKE CHAMBER PIPEWORK AND FITTINGS			
	Provide, handle, install and test the following steel pipes and fittings, valves and specials. Rates shall include for completion and pipe protection at all pipe joints as specified in specifications and drawings			
2_7.1	Dia 250 mm GI 22.5 deg double flanged elbow (short radius bend)	No.	1	
2_7.2	Dia 250 mm x 0.4m length double flanged spigot pipe	No.	1	
2_7.3	250 mm dia double flanged sluice valve	No	1	
2_7.4	Scour pipes dia 200 mm x 4.5 m long GI pipe, single flanged	No.	3	
2_7.5	65 mm dia.,0.5m long GI pipe for intake chamber scour	No.	2	
2_7.6	200mm dia meter sluice valve, double	No	3	

	flanged for te scour pipes			
2_7.7	120mm double flaged spigot pipe,0.5m long for domestic water supply as shown in the drawing	No	1	
2_7.8	120mm diameter long radius steel elbow steel, double flanged	No	1	
2_8	Miscellaneous			
	1.11.Jeenumeous			
2_8.1	Provide treated hardwood stoplogs to Sluiceway as shown	No.	15	
2_8.2	Supply and install cast in step irons (high tensile 16 mm dia) as shown in the drawings	m	40	
2_8.3	Provision for guardrails 25mm dia GI pipe	m	80	
_				
	TOTAL CARRIED OVER	TO GRAND	SUMMARY	

Bill No. 3 - SEDIMENTATION TANK

ITEM	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (KShs)
3.1	EXCAVATION				
	To include for all trimming to levels, backfilling with approved selected spoil, compacting, disposal of surplus material and reinstatement for sedimentation basin, drainage chambers and washout structure.				
3.1.1	Strip topsoil average 200 mm and dispose	m2	325		
3.1.2	In normal soil (material) to a depth not exceeding 3.0	m3	195		
3.1.3	E.O. for excavation in rock (provisional).	m3	20		
3.1.4	Backfilling and disposal of soil material	m3	150		
3.2	CONCRETE WORKS				
3.2.1	Provide, place and treat the following concrete mix including all form work.				
3.2.2	Blinding concrete grade 15/40 - 75 mm thick	m3	13		
3.2.3	Reinforced concrete grade 25/20 as shown on drawings	m3	65		
3.2.4	Form work for structures and blinding concrete	m2	338		
3.3	REINFORCEMENT				

Provide, support and fix the following high tensile ribbed reinforcement, including all cutting, bending and supports.				
High yield bars TMT 12	kg	3,120		
High yield bars TMT 10	kg	2,080		
High yield bars TMT8	Kg	36		
Inlet and Outlet Pipe work and Fittings				
The rates inserted should cover supplying of fittings including all jointing accessories, handling, fixing, jointing and testing and painting the fittings with primer and gloss paints to resist corrosion. All fittings to be capable of operating at a minimum pressure of 60m				
Inlet Chamber				
Dia 250 mm Ductile Iron/GI/Steel 45/90 deg double flanged elbow (short radius bend)	No.	2		
Dia 250 mm double flanged spigot pipe x 0.5 m long, with puddle flange	No.	1		
Outlet Chamber				
Dia 250 mm Ductile Iron/GI/Steel 90 deg double flanged bend (long radius bend)	No.	2		
Dia 250 x 250 mm Ms flanged bell mouth	No.	1		
Dia 250 mm double flanged spigot pipe x 0.5 m length	No.	3		
	high tensile ribbed reinforcement, including all cutting, bending and supports. High yield bars TMT 12 High yield bars TMT8 Inlet and Outlet Pipe work and Fittings The rates inserted should cover supplying of fittings including all jointing accessories, handling, fixing, jointing and testing and painting the fittings with primer and gloss paints to resist corrosion. All fittings to be capable of operating at a minimum pressure of 60m Inlet Chamber Dia 250 mm Ductile Iron/GI/Steel 45/90 deg double flanged elbow (short radius bend) Dia 250 mm Ductile Iron/GI/Steel 90 deg double flanged bend (long radius bend) Dia 250 mm Ductile Iron/GI/Steel 90 deg double flanged bend (long radius bend) Dia 250 mm Ductile Iron/GI/Steel 90 deg double flanged bend (long radius bend)	high tensile ribbed reinforcement, including all cutting, bending and supports. High yield bars TMT 12 kg High yield bars TMT 10 kg High yield bars TMT8 Kg Inlet and Outlet Pipe work and Fittings The rates inserted should cover supplying of fittings including all jointing accessories, handling, fixing, jointing and testing and painting the fittings with primer and gloss paints to resist corrosion. All fittings to be capable of operating at a minimum pressure of 60m Inlet Chamber Dia 250 mm Ductile Iron/GI/Steel 45/90 deg double flanged elbow (short radius bend) Dia 250 mm double flanged spigot pipe x 0.5 m long, with puddle flange Outlet Chamber Dia 250 mm Ductile Iron/GI/Steel 90 deg double flanged bend (long radius bend) No. Dia 250 x 250 mm Ms flanged bell No. mouth	high tensile ribbed reinforcement, including all cutting, bending and supports. High yield bars TMT 12 kg 3,120 High yield bars TMT 10 kg 2,080 High yield bars TMT8 Kg 36 Inlet and Outlet Pipe work and Fittings The rates inserted should cover supplying of fittings including all jointing accessories, handling, fixing, jointing and testing and painting the fittings with primer and gloss paints to resist corrosion. All fittings to be capable of operating at a minimum pressure of 60m Inlet Chamber Dia 250 mm Ductile Iron/GI/Steel 45/90 deg double flanged elbow (short radius bend) Dia 250 mm Ductile Iron/GI/Steel 90 deg double flanged bend (long radius bend) Dia 250 mm Ductile Iron/GI/Steel 90 deg double flanged bend (long radius bend) Dia 250 x 250 mm Ms flanged bell No. 1 mouth Dia 250 mm double flanged spigot pipe x No. 3	high tensile ribbed reinforcement, including all cutting, bending and supports. High yield bars TMT 12 kg 3,120 High yield bars TMT 10 kg 2,080 High yield bars TMT8 Kg 36 Inlet and Outlet Pipe work and Fittings The rates inserted should cover supplying of fittings including all jointing and testing and painting the fittings with primer and gloss paints to resist corrosion. All fittings to be capable of operating at a minimum pressure of 60m Inlet Chamber Dia 250 mm Ductile Iron/Gi/Steel 45/90 deg double flanged elbow (short radius bend) Dia 250 mm Ductile Iron/Gi/Steel 90 deg double flanged bend (long radius bend) Dia 250 mm Ductile Iron/Gi/Steel 90 deg double flanged bend (long radius bend) Dia 250 mm Ductile Iron/Gi/Steel 90 deg double flanged bend (long radius bend) Dia 250 mm Ductile Iron/Gi/Steel 90 deg double flanged bend (long radius bend) Dia 250 mm Ductile Iron/Gi/Steel 90 deg double flanged bend (long radius bend) Dia 250 mm Ductile Iron/Gi/Steel 90 deg double flanged bend (long radius bend)

3.5.4	Dia 250 mm Sluice valve	NT.	1		
3.3.4	Dia 250 mm Stuice valve	No.	1		
2.7.7					
3.5.5	Dia 250 mm dia HDPE Flange Adaptor	No.	2		
3.5.6	Provision for saddle clamp with 50mm	No.	1		
	dia HDPE pipe (2m long) air vent to outlet pipe after offtake sluice valve				
	outlet pipe unter officiale states varve				
3.6	Scouring Chamber Piping				
3.0	Scouring Chamber 1 iping				
3.6.1	Dia 200 mm butterfly valve.	No	1		
3.0.1	Dia 200 min butterny valve.	NO	1		
3.6.2	Dia 200 mm flanged adaptor	No.	1		
3.0.2	Dia 200 mm nanged adaptor	INO.	1		
3.6.3	Die 200 mm UDDE min s		1.5		
3.0.3	Dia 200 mm HDPE pipe	m	15		
2.6.4	C 1 11 (11 M 1 1	N	1		
3.6.4	Supply and Install Manhole covers as shown	No.	1		
	Shown				
3.7	Sedimentation Basin Cover				
3.7.1	Provide and install MS cover plate	Sum	8		
	complete with frames/hinges/locks as				
	shown in the drawings and directed by				
	the Engineer				
3.8	Offtake chamber				
3.8.1	Excavate for , provide all materials and	No.	1		
	construct complete master meter chamber,1500x1500x1200mm, as				
	specified/shown in the drawings. Rates to				
	include for all thrust blocks, lockable				
	covers, pipe supports, steps etc.				
				-	

	Provide, handle, install and test GI pipes and fittings, valves and specials to water meter chamber, rates to include completion of all joints as specified. All fittings to be painted with primer and gloss paints to resist corrosion to the satisfaction of the Project Manager			
3.8.2	Water Master meter to fit 630 mm dia pipe capable of operating at a minimum pressure of 60m and should be capable of providing real-time pressure data and volumetric flows	No.	1	
3.9	Miscellaneous			
3.9.1	Provision for guardrails 38mm dia GI pipe	m	150	
3.9.2	Provision for 16mm dia mild steel steps to SB as shown in the drg.	m	40	
	TOTAL CARRIED OVER	TO GRAND SU	JMMARY	

Bill No. 4: CONVEYANCE PIPELINE

ITEM	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (KShs)
4.1	Excavation and Backfilling				
4.1	Excavation and Dackinning				
	Rates for excavation and backfilling in trench shall include for trimming trench bottom and for providing selected bedding and surround materials from the excavations with the specifications.				
4.1.1	Excavation and backfilling in trench normal material for Dia 450mm pipe for depth not exceeding 2.2 m	m3	367		
4.1.2	E.O for excavation in soft rock (provisional)	m3	37		
4.1.3	E.O for excavation in hard rock (provisional)	m3	18		
4.2	Pipework				
	Provide, lay, install and test the following PE100 (High Density Polyethylene - HDPE) pipes and fittings. Rates to include for all jointly materials, cutting wastage.				
	Note: The following have been used on the drawings to specify pipe diameters/types/classes. Pipe dimensions/working pressures shall conform to ISO4427-2:2007 PE 100 Pipes.				
	Class Working Drossons ()				
	Class Working Pressure (m) PN6 60				
	PN8 80				
	PN10 100				

	PN12 120			
	HDPE PE100 Pipes		_	
	Class PN6			
	Class I IV			
4.2.1	250mm diameter	m	2,352	
	Connecting the existing pipe to the new intake works			
4.2.2	250mm dia , HDPE pipe, PN6	m	200	
4.2.3	250mm by 250mm dia HDPE and uPVC adaptor	No	1	
4.3	BLOCK CHAMBER (Section valve chambers)			
4.3.1	Excavate for, provide all materials and construct complete inspection valve chambers at the pipe junctions. Internal dimensions 1200 x 1200 x 1200 mm. Rates to include for all thrust blocks, pipe supports, inspection covers, etc as detailed in the drawings. All fittings to be painted with primer and gloss paints to resist corrosion.	No.	5	
	1 No. Section Chamber at end of			
	conveyance			
4.3.2	250mm flange adaptors	No	6	
4.3.3	250mm diameter flanges	No	6	
4.3.4	250mm diameter double flanged GI piece, 30cm long	No	6	
4.3.5	200mm diameter flanged sluice valve capable of standing a minumum operating pressure of 60m	No	1	

	250mm v 250mm v 00mm Tag complete				
4.3.6	250mm x 250mm x 90mm Tee complete	Ma			
	with flanges	No	2		
4.3.7					
11317	250mm x 250mm x 160mm T	No	1		
420					
4.3.8	250mm x 250mm x 200mm T	No	1		
	90mm dia double flanged sluice valve				
4.3.9	capable of operating at a minimum				
	pressure of 60m	No	1		
	F		_		
4.4	AIR VALVES				
	Excavate for, provide all materials and				
	construct complete air valve chambers.				
	Internal dimensions 1200 x 1200 x 1200				
4.4.1	mm. Rates to include for all thrust	No.	2		
	blocks, pipe supports, inspection covers,		2		
	etc as detailed in the drawings.				
	Provide, handle, install and test the				
	following steel and HDPE pipes and				
	fittings, valves and specials. Special				
	rates shall include for completing all pipe				
	joints as specified in the specification.				
	All fittings to be properly painted with				
	primer and gloss paints to resist corrosion				
	2 No. Double Air Valves (DAV) at				
	specified Chainages in the drawings				
1.1.2	250mm x 50mm dia saddle clamp	No			
4.4.2			2		
	50mm dia, 0.3 m long double flanged GI	No.			
4.4.3	pipe	110.	4		
	F-F-				
	50mm Double air valve capable of	No.			
4.4.4	withstanding 60m of operating pressure	INO.	2		
	withstanding oom of operating pressure		2		
	50mm diameter 1	NT -			
4.4.5	50mm diameter couplers	No	2		
			2		
4.5	WASHOUTS (W/O)				
	1		1	1	

	Excavate for, provide all materials and			
	construct complete w/o spillway			
	chambers of internal dimensions 1200 x			
4.5.1	1200 x 1200 mm. Rates to including	No.	2	
	thrust blocks, pipe supports as shown in			
	the drawings.			
	Provide, handle, install and test the			
	following steel and HDPE pipes and			
	fittings, valves and specials. Special			
	rates shall include for completing all pipe			
	joints as specified in the specification.			
	All fittings to be properly painted with			
	prime and gloss paints to avoid corrosion			
	5 No. Washouts (W/Os) at specified			
	chainages in the drawings			
4.5.2	250 x 110mm dia underscour saddle	No		
4.5.2	clamp		2	
4.5.3		No.		
	110 mm dia HDPE elbow		4	
4.5.4	110 HDDE : CL DNO	m	60	
	110 mm HDPE pipe Class PN8		60	
4.5.5	110 x 110mm dia HDPE flanged adapter	No	8	
	110 x 110mm dia HDFE franged adapter	INO	0	
4.5.6	110 mm dia Flanges	No	8	
	and and a surger	110		
4.5.7	100mm dia sluice valve capable of	No.		
4.5.7	operating at 60m of operating pressures		2	
4.5.8	100mm GI pipe 500 mm long with a flap	No.		
4.3.8	valve		2	
4.6	ROAD CROSSING FOR PIPES at			
	chainage 3906			

	Provide for road crossings as per drawings and in accordance with specifications. Rates to include for excavation and backfilling, culvert, concrete surround and all jointing materials and other fittings as per the specifications.			
4.6.1	Excavate for the road crossing to take pipe, 350mm dia, culvert rings and concrete sorround reinforced with BRC class A to a depth not exceeding 2m	m3	20	
4.6.2	Provide, lay and join culvert rings across the road	m	9	
4.6.3	Provide lay join HDPE pipes across the road insde the culverts as specified in the profies	m	12	
4.6.4	Provide concrete 25/20 to sorround the entire road crossing to cover all the culverts	m3	4	
4.6.5	Provide and install BRC, A142 to reinforce the above concrete	m2	5	
4.6.6	Allow for micro tunnelling and associated costs	Ls	1	
4.7	Pipeline Anchoring			
	Provide achor for pipeline at specified intervals of 20m complete with bolts and steel strips as directed by the engineer			
	Provide, place and test the following concrete:			
4.7.1	grade 20/20 reinforced concrete	m3	30	
4.7.2	bolts and nuts, size 19mm or above, four bolts and nuts per pier	No	200	

4.8	Master meters to the two systems			
4.8.1	provide, fix and install master meters, 250mm diameter double flanged	No	2	
4.8.2	Provide, fix and test GI double flanged spigot, 0.4m long	No	4	
4.8.3	Provide, fit and test two HDPE flanged adaptors	No	5	
4.9	Sluice valves			
4.9.1	provide, fix and install sluice valves, 250mm diameter double flanged	No	2	
4.9.2	Provide, fix and test GI double flanged spigot, 0.4m long	No	4	
4.9.3	Provide, fit and test two HDPE flanged adaptors	No	4	
5.0	Marker Posts			
5.1	Excavate for include for supply and fixing of indicator posts for water main route, road crossings, change of direction, air valves, washouts, and valve chambers.	No.	16	
	TOTAL CARRIED OVER T	O GRAND	SUMMARY	-

Bill No. 5 : ML1 &ML1-P					
ITEM	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (KShs)
5.1	Excavation and Backfilling				
	Rates for excavation and backfilling in trench shall include for trimming trench bottom and for providing selected bedding and surround materials from the excavations with the specifications.				
5.1.1	Excavation and backfilling in trench normal material for Dia 180mm pipe for depth not exceeding 2.2 m	m3	3,287		
5.1.2	E.O for excavation in soft rock (provisional)	m3	329		
5.1.3	E.O for excavation in hard rock (provisional)	m3	164		
5.2	Pipework				
	Provide, lay, install and test the following PE100 (High Density Polyethylene - HDPE) pipes and fittings. Rates to include for all jointly materials, cutting wastage.				
	Note: The following have been used on the drawings to specify pipe diameters/types/classes. Pipe dimensions/working pressures shall conform to ISO4427-2:2007 PE 100 Pipes.				
	Class Working Pressure (m)				
	PN8 80				
	PN10 100 PN12 120				
	HDPE PE100 Pipes				
	Class PN6				
5.2.2	180mm dia (includes a 3,000m for the expansion of existing line)	m	3,858		
5.2.3	110mm dia	m	988		

5.2.5	90mm dia	m	1,507		
5.2.5	yourn die		1,507		
	ac r		506		
5.2.6	75mm dia	m	596		
5.2.7	63mm dia	m	1,633		
5.2.8	32mm dia	m	761		
5.2.9	20mm dia	m	133		
·					
5.2.9	20mm end caps	No	2		
3.2.9	*				
~ ^ · · ·	63mm end caps	No	2		
5.2.10	osnim end caps	NO	۷		
	MDDE D. I. W. I. I. I. I.				
	HDPE Reducers, Nipples, valves and Tees				
5.2.11	180mm x 110mm	No	1		
5.2.12	110mm x 90mm	No	1		
5.2.13	90mm x 75mm	No	1		
5.2.14	90mm x 63mm	No	11		
3.2.14				+	
	63mm x 32mm	No	1		
5.2.15	OSHIII A SZIIIII	110	1		
	32mm x 20mm	N-	1		
5.2.16	52HiIII X 2UMM	No	1		
5.2.17	63mm dia Hex nipple	No	20		
5.2.18	63mm dia Gate valves	No	12		
5.2.18	75mm dia HDPE Ts	No	10		
5.3	BLOCK CHAMBER (Section valve chambers)				
J.J.	<u> </u>				

5.3.1	Excavate for, provide all materials and construct complete inspection valve chambers at the pipe junctions. Internal dimensions 1200 x 1200 x 1200 mm. Rates to include for all thrust blocks , pipe supports, inspection covers, etc as detailed in the drawings. All fittings to be painted in primer and gloss paints to withstand corrosion. Valves and gates to withstand minumum operating pressure of 60m	No.	3	
	3 No. Section Chamber at end of conveyance. All fittings to be capable of operating at a minumum pressure of 60m and to be painted in primer and gloss paints to withstand corrossion			
5.3.2	180mm flange adaptors	No	6	
	100mm nunge uutprois	110	0	
5.3.3	180mm x 180mm x 110mm T, complete with flanges	No	1	
5.3.4	180mm diameter double flanged GI piece, 30cm long	No	1	
5.3.5	250mm diameter flanged sluice valve	No	1	
5.3.6	90mm dia double flanged reducers	No	6	
5.3.7	90mm dia GI spigot, double flanged	No	6	
5.3.8	90mm dia double flanged sluice valve	No	3	
5.3.9	160 x 160 x 110mm all flanged Tee	No	2	
5.3.10	110mm dia flanged gate valve	No	1	
5.3.11	140mm x 140mm x 90mm Tee	No	2	
5.3.12	90mm dia double flanged Sluice valve	No	2	
5.4	AIR VALVES			
5.4.1	Excavate for, provide all materials and construct complete air valve chambers. Internal dimensions 1200 x 1200 x 1200 mm. Rates to include for all thrust blocks, pipe supports, inspection covers, etc as detailed in the drawings.	No.	4	

Provide, handle, install and test the following steel and HDPE pipes and fittings, valves and specials. Special rates shall include for completing all pipe joints as specified in the specification. All fittings to be capable of operating at a minimum pressure of 60m and to be painted in primer and gloss paints to resist corrosion 4 No. Double Air Valves (DAV) at specified Chainages in the drawings 5.4.2 180mm x 50mm dia saddle clamp No 4 5.4.3 50mm dia, 0.3 m long double flanged GI pipe No. 8 5.4.4 50mm Double air valve No. 8 5.4.5 50mm diameter couplers No 4 Somm Double air valve No 4 Somm Double air valve No 4 Somm diameter couplers No 4	
be capable of operating at a minimum pressure of 60m and to be painted in primer and gloss paints to resist corrosion 4 No. Double Air Valves (DAV) at specified Chainages in the drawings 5.4.2 180mm x 50mm dia saddle clamp No 4 5.4.3 50mm dia, 0.3 m long double flanged GI pipe No. 8 5.4.4 50mm Double air valve No. 8 5.4.5 50mm diameter couplers No 4	
Chainages in the drawings 5.4.2 180mm x 50mm dia saddle clamp No 4 5.4.3 50mm dia, 0.3 m long double flanged GI pipe No. 8 5.4.4 50mm Double air valve No. 8 5.4.5 50mm diameter couplers No 4	
Chainages in the drawings 5.4.2 180mm x 50mm dia saddle clamp No 4 5.4.3 50mm dia, 0.3 m long double flanged GI pipe No. 8 5.4.4 50mm Double air valve No. 8 5.4.5 50mm diameter couplers No 4	
Chainages in the drawings No 4 5.4.2 180mm x 50mm dia saddle clamp No 4 5.4.3 50mm dia, 0.3 m long double flanged GI pipe No. 8 5.4.4 50mm Double air valve No. 8 5.4.5 50mm diameter couplers No 4	
5.4.3 50mm dia, 0.3 m long double flanged GI pipe No. 8 5.4.4 50mm Double air valve No. 8 5.4.5 50mm diameter couplers No 4	
5.4.3 50mm dia, 0.3 m long double flanged GI pipe No. 8 5.4.4 50mm Double air valve No. 8 5.4.5 50mm diameter couplers No 4	
5.4.4 50mm Double air valve No. 8 5.4.5 50mm diameter couplers No 4	
5.4.5 50mm diameter couplers No 4	
5.4.5 50mm diameter couplers No 4	
4	
4	
5.5 WASHOUTS (W/O)	
Excavate for, provide all materials and construct	
complete w/o spillway chambers of internal dimensions 1200 x 1200 mm. Rates to including thrust blocks, pipe supports as shown in the drawings.	
Provide, handle, install and test the following steel and HDPE pipes and fittings, valves and specials. Special rates shall include for completing all pipe joints as specified in the specification. All fittingst o be capable of operating at a minumum pressure of 60m and to be painted in primer and gloss paints to withstand corrosion.	
4 No. Washouts (W/Os) at specified chainages in the drawings	
5.5.2 180 x 90mm dia underscour saddle clamp No 4	
5.5.3 90 mm dia HDPE elbow No. 8	
70 mm dia 1151 E citow	
5.5.4 90 mm HDPE pipe Class PN8 m 60	
5.5.5 110 x 90mm dia HDPE flanged adapter No 8	
5.5.6 180 mm dia Flanges No 8	
100 mm da Fangos	
5.5.7 180mm dia sluice valve No. 4	

5.5.8	180mm GI pipe 500 mm long with a flap valve	No.	4	
	Toolmin of pipe 500 min long with a map visive			
5.7	ROAD CROSSING FOR PIPES			
	NO.ID CROSSING FOR THE			
	Provide for road crossings as per drawings and in accordance with specifications. Rates to include for			
	excavation and backfilling, culvert, concrete			
	surround and all jointing materials and other fittings as per the specifications.			
5.7.1	Excavate for the road crossing to take specified pipe			
	dia, culvert rings and concrete sorround reinforced with BRC class A to a depth not exceeding 2m	m3	20	
5.7.2	Provide, lay and join culvert rings across the road	m	9	
5.7.3	D. III. III. III.			
3.7.3	Provide lay join HDPE pipes across the road insde the culverts as specified in the profies	m	12	
5.7.4	D 11 05/00 11 11 11			
3.7.4	Provide concrete 25/20 to sorround the entire road crossing to cover all the culverts	m3	4	
5.7.5	Provide and install BRC, A142 to reinforce the above concrete	m2	5	
	above controls	1112	3	
5.7.6	Provide for micro tunnelling and fixing of culverts		2	
	across the road	No.	2	
5.8	Pipeline Anchoring			
	Provide achor for pipeline at specified intervals of	+		
	20m complete with bolts and steel strips as directed by the engineer			
	Provide, place and test the following concrete:			
5.8.1	reinforced concrete, grade 20/20	m3	25	
5.8.2	bolts and nuts, size 19mm or above, four bolts and	No	200	
	nuts per pier			
5.9	Marker Posts			
3.7				

5.9.1	Excavate for include for supply and fixing of indicator posts for water main route, road crossings, change of direction, air valves, washouts, and valve chambers.	No.	59		
	TOTAL CARRIED OVER TO GRAND SUMMARY				

Bill No. 6: ML2 &ML2-P

ITEM	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (KShs)
6.1	Excavation and Backfilling				
	Rates for excavation and backfilling in trench shall include for trimming trench bottom and for providing selected bedding and surround materials from the excavations with the specifications.				
6.1.1	Excavation and backfilling in trench normal material for Dia 280mm pipe for depth not exceeding 2.2 m	m3	3,144		
6.1.2	E.O for excavation in soft rock (provisional)	m3	314		
6.1.3	E.O for excavation in hard rock (provisional)	m3	157		
6.2	Pipework				
	Provide, lay, install and test the following PE100 (High Density Polyethylene - HDPE) pipes and fittings. Rates to include for all jointly materials, cutting wastage.				

	1		1	1	I	
	the drawings diameters/ty dimensions/	ollowing have been used on s to specify pipe pes/classes. Pipe working pressures shall ISO4427-2:2007 PE 100				
	Class	Working Pressure (m)				
	PN8	80				
	PN10	100				
	PN12	120				
	HDPE PE1	00 Pipes				
	Class PN6					
	Class I IVO					
6.2.4	110mm dia		M	606		
6.2.5	90mm dia		M	1,745		
	75mm dia		M	1,012		
6.2.6	/ Jillii dia		1V1	1,012		
6.2.7	50mm dia		M	1,307		

	40mm dia	M	570	
6.2.8	40mm dia	1V1	370	
600	40mm dia end cap	No	4	
6.2.8	•			
	HDPE reducers			
	110mm x 90mm	No	1	
6.2.9		110	1	
6.2.10	90mm x 75mm	No	2	
0.2.10				
			4	
6.2.11	50mm x 40mm	No	1	
	32mm x 20mm	No	1	
6.2.12	32mm x 20mm	1,0		
6.2.13	50mm dia Hex nipple	No	6	
0.2.13				
	50 1: 6 1	N		
6.2.14	50mm dia Gate valves	No	6	
	50mm dia HDPE Ts	No	6	
6.2.15			ĭ	
		1		
	BLOCK CHAMBER (Section valve			
6.3	chambers)			
		<u> </u>		
			•	

6.3.1	Excavate for, provide all materials and construct complete inspection valve chambers at the pipe junctions. Internal dimensions 1200 x 1200 x 1200 mm. Rates to include for all thrust blocks, pipe supports, inspection covers, etc as detailed in the drawings. All fittings to be capable of withstanding a minumum operating pressure of 60m and to be painted in primer and gloss paints to resist corrosion.	No.	3	
	3 No. Section Chamber at end of conveyance			
6.3.2	110mm flange adaptors	No	3	
6.3.3	110mm x 110mm x 180mm T, complete with flanges	No	1	
6.3.4	110mm diameter double flanged GI piece, 30cm long	No	1	
6.3.5	110mm diameter flanged sluice valve	No	1	
6.3.6	90mm dia double flanged reducers	No	6	
6.3.7	90mm dia GI spigot, double flanged	No	6	
6.3.8	90mm dia double flanged sluice valve	No	3	

				1	
6.3.9	90 x 90 x 110mm all flanged Tee	No	2		
	you you reason and raining to rec	1,0	-		
6.3.10	110mm die flenend oote value	NIa	1		
	110mm dia flanged gate valve	No	1		
6.3.11					
0.3.11	110mm x 110mm x 90mm Tee	No	2		
62.12					
6.3.12	90mm dia double flanged Sluice valve	No	2		
	AIR VALVES				
6.4	AIR VALVES				
- 4 1	Excavate for, provide all materials and construct complete air valve chambers. Internal dimensions 1200 x 1200 x 1200 mm. Rates to include for all thrust blocks	V			
6.4.1	, pipe supports, inspection covers, etc as detailed in the drawings.	No.	3		
	Provide, handle, install and test the following steel and HDPE pipes and				
	fittings, valves and specials. Special rates shall include for completing all pipe joints as specified in the specification. All				
	fittings to be capable of withstanding a minumum pressure of 60m and to be painted in primer and gloss paints to				
	withstand corrosion				
	3 No. Double Air Valves (DAV) at				
	specified Chainages in the drawings				
6.4.2	110mm x 50mm dia saddle clamp	No	3		
	1			1	

6.4.3	50mm dia, 0.3 m long double flanged GI pipe	No.	6	
6.4.4	50mm Double air valve	No.	6	
6.4.5	50mm diameter couplers	No	3	
6.5	WASHOUTS (W/O)			
6.5.1	Excavate for, provide all materials and construct complete w/o spillway chambers of internal dimensions 1200 x 1200 x 1200 mm. Rates to including thrust blocks, pipe supports as shown in the drawings.	No.	3	
	Provide, handle, install and test the following steel and HDPE pipes and fittings, valves and specials. Special rates shall include for completing all pipe joints as specified in the specification. All fittings to be capable of operating at a minimum pressure of 60m and to be painted with primer and gloss paints to withstand corrosion.			
	3 No. Washouts (W/Os) at specified chainages in the drawings			
6.5.2	110 x 90mm dia underscour saddle clamp	No	3	
6.5.3	90 mm dia HDPE elbow	No.	6	
6.5.4	90 mm HDPE pipe Class PN8	M	60	

			1	1	
6.5.5	110 x 90mm dia HDPE flanged adapter	No	6		
	110 x 70mm dia 11D1 L manged adapter	140	0		
6.5.6					
0.5.0	110 mm dia Flanges	No	6		
	110mm dia sluice valve	NY	4		
6.5.7	110mm dia siuice vaive	No.	4		
6.5.8	110mm GI pipe 500 mm long with a flap valve	No.	4		
	varve				
6.6					
0.0	ROAD CROSSING FOR PIPES				
	Provide for road crossings as per				
	drawings and in accordance with				
	specifications. Rates to include for excavation and backfilling, culvert,				
	concrete surround and all jointing materials and other fittings as per the				
	specifications.				
	Excavate for the road crossing to take				
6.6.1	specified pipe dia, culvert rings and concrete sorround reinforced with BRC				
	class A to a depth not exceeding 2m				
		m3	20		
6.6.2	Provide, lay and join culvert rings across the road	M	9		
6.50	Provide lay join HDPE pipes across the				
6.6.3	road insde the culverts as specified in the profies	M	12		
	1.1			i	<u> </u>

Provide concrete 25/20 to sorround the entire road crossing to cover all the culverts	m3	4		
Provide and install BRC, A142 to reinforce the above concrete	m2	5		
Allow for micro tunneling and laying and fixing of culverts	Ls	1		
Pipeline Anchoring				
Provide achor for pipeline at specified intervals of 20m complete with bolts and steel strips as directed by the engineer				
Provide, place and test the following				
concrete:				
reinforced concrere, grade 20/20	m3	25		
bolts and nuts, size 19mm or above, four bolts and nuts per pier	No	200		
Marker Posts				
Excavate for include for supply and fixing of indicator posts for water main route, road crossings, change of direction, air valves, washouts, and valve chambers.	No.	30		
	entire road crossing to cover all the culverts Provide and install BRC, A142 to reinforce the above concrete Allow for micro tunneling and laying and fixing of culverts Pipeline Anchoring Provide achor for pipeline at specified intervals of 20m complete with bolts and steel strips as directed by the engineer Provide, place and test the following concrete: reinforced concrere, grade 20/20 bolts and nuts, size 19mm or above, four bolts and nuts per pier Marker Posts Excavate for include for supply and fixing of indicator posts for water main route, road crossings, change of direction,	entire road crossing to cover all the culverts m3 Provide and install BRC, A142 to reinforce the above concrete m2 Allow for micro tunneling and laying and fixing of culverts Ls Pipeline Anchoring Provide achor for pipeline at specified intervals of 20m complete with bolts and steel strips as directed by the engineer Provide, place and test the following concrete: reinforced concrere, grade 20/20 m3 bolts and nuts, size 19mm or above, four bolts and nuts per pier Marker Posts Excavate for include for supply and fixing of indicator posts for water main route, road crossings, change of direction,	entire road crossing to cover all the culverts m3 4 Provide and install BRC, A142 to reinforce the above concrete m2 5 Allow for micro tunneling and laying and fixing of culverts Ls 1 Pipeline Anchoring Provide achor for pipeline at specified intervals of 20m complete with bolts and steel strips as directed by the engineer Provide, place and test the following concrete: reinforced concrere, grade 20/20 m3 25 bolts and nuts, size 19mm or above, four bolts and nuts per pier Marker Posts Excavate for include for supply and fixing of indicator posts for water main route, road crossings, change of direction,	entire road crossing to cover all the culverts

TOTAL CARRIED OVER TO GRAND SUMMARY				

Bill No. 7: Sub-mainlines (SM1, SM1-L2, SM5-ML2, SM2-ML2, SM4-ML2, SM3-ML2)

ITEM	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (KShs)
7.1	Excavation and Backfilling				
	Rates for excavation and backfilling in trench shall include for trimming trench bottom and for providing selected bedding and surround materials from the excavations with the specifications.				
7.1.1	Excavation and backfilling in trench normal material for Dia 110mm pipe for depth not exceeding 2.0 m	m3	1,643		
7.1.2	E.O for excavation in soft rock (provisional)	m3	164		
7.1.3	E.O for excavation in hard rock (provisional)	m3	82		
7.2	Pipework				
	Provide, lay, install and test the following PE100 (High Density Polyethylene - HDPE) pipes and fittings. Rates to include for all jointly materials, cutting wastage.				
	Note: The following have been used on the drawings to specify pipe diameters/types/classes. Pipe dimensions/working pressures shall conform to ISO4427-2:2007 PE 100 Pipes.				
	Class Working Pressure (m)				
	PN6 60				
	PN8 80				
	PN10 100				

	PN12 120			
	HDPE PE100 Pipes			
	Class PN6			
7.2.1	110mm dia	m	101	
7.2.2	90mm dia	m	704	
7.2.2	75mm dia	***	1.024	
7.2.3	/3iiiii dia	m	1,934	
7.2.4	HDPE reducers			
7.2.5	110mm x 90mm	No	1	
7.2.6	90mm x 75mm	No	2	
	BLOCK CHAMBER (Section valve			
7.3	chambers)			
7.3.1	Excavate for, provide all materials and construct complete inspection valve chambers at the pipe junctions. Internal dimensions 1200 x 1200 x 1200 mm. Rates to include for all thrust blocks, pipe supports, inspection covers, etc as detailed in the drawings. All the fittings to be painted in primer and gloss paint and to be capable of withstanding a minumum operating pressure of 60m.	No.	6	
	3 No. Section Chamber at end of			
	conveyance			
				
7.3.2	110mm flange adaptors	No	12	
7.3.3	110mm diameter flanges	No	12	
7.3.4	110mm diameter double flanged GI piece, 30cm long	No	12	
7.3.5	110 mm diameter flanged sluice valve	No	12	

7.3.6				
7.3.6	90mm dia double flanged reducers	No	6	
7.3.7	90mm dia GI spigot, double flanged	No	6	
7.3.8	90mm dia double flanged sluice valve	No	3	
	Į į			
7.4	AIR VALVES			
7.4.1	Excavate for, provide all materials and construct complete air valve chambers. Internal dimensions 1200 x 1200 x 1200 mm. Rates to include for all thrust blocks, pipe supports, inspection covers, etc as detailed in the drawings.	No.	12	
	Provide, handle, install and test the following steel and HDPE pipes and fittings, valves and specials. Special rates shall include for completing all pipe joints as specified in the specification. All fittings to be capable of withstanding a minimum operating pressure of 60m and to be painted in primer and gloss paints to resist corrosion.			
	12 No. Double Air Valves (DAV) at specified Chainages in the drawings			
	110 50 1' 1111	NT-	12	
7.4.2	110mm x 50mm dia saddle clamp	No	12	
		.,		
7.4.3	50mm dia, 0.3 m long double flanged GI	No.	24	
	pipe			
7.4.4	50mm Double oir volve	No	10	
7.4.4	50mm Double air valve	No.	12	
	50 1	2.7		
7.4.5	50mm diameter couplers	No	12	
7.5	WASHOUTS (W/O)			
•	· L	L	L	L

7.5.1	Excavate for, provide all materials and construct complete w/o spillway chambers of internal dimensions 1200 x 1200 x 1200 mm. Rates to including thrust blocks, pipe supports as shown in the drawings.	No.	4	
	Provide, handle, install and test the following steel and HDPE pipes and fittings, valves and specials. Special rates shall include for completing all pipe joints as specified in the specification. All fittings to be capable of withstanding a minimum operating pressure of 60m and to be painted in primer and gloss paints to resist corrosion.			
	4 No. Washouts (W/Os) at specified chainages in the drawings			
7.5.2	110 x 90mm dia underscour saddle clamp	No	4	
1.3.2	110 x 30mm dia diluciscodi saddie ciamp	110	7	
7.5.3	90 mm dia HDPE elbow	No.	8	
7.5.4	00 mm HDDE nine Class DN0	m	60	
7.5.4	90 mm HDPE pipe Class PN8		00	
7.5.5	110 x 90mm dia HDPE flanged adapter	No	8	
756	110		0	
7.5.6	110 mm dia Flanges	No	8	
7.5.7	110mm dia sluice valve	No.	4	
	110 CI 500 1	NT-	4	
7.5.8	110mm GI pipe 500 mm long with a flap valve	No.	4	
7.6	ROAD CROSSING FOR PIPES at			
7.6	chainage 3906			
	Provide for road crossings as per drawings and in accordance with specifications. Rates to include for excavation and backfilling, culvert, concrete surround and all jointing materials and other fittings as per the specifications.			

7.6.1 Excavate for the road crossing to take pipe, 350mm dia, culvert rings and concrete sorround reinforced with BRC class A to a depth not exceeding 2m m3 20 7.6.2 Provide, lay and join culvert rings across the road inside the culverts as specified in the profice m 12 7.6.3 Provide lay join HDPE pipes across the road inside the culverts as specified in the profice m 12 7.6.4 Provide concrete 25/20 to sorround the entire road crossing to cover all the culverts m3 4 7.6.5 Provide and install BRC, A142 to reinforce the above concrete m2 5 7.7 Pipeline Anchoring Provide achor for pipeline at specified intervals of 20m complete with bolts and steel strips as directed by the engineer main seed strips and nuts, size 19mm or above, four bolts and nuts, size 19mm or above, four bolts and nuts per pier 7.8 Marker Posts Excavate for include for supply and fixing of indicator posts for water main for the provide across for the provide across for the provide across for t					
7.6.2 the road m 9 Provide lay join HDPE pipes across the road insde the culverts as specified in the profies m 12 7.6.3 Provide concrete 25/20 to sorround the entire road crossing to cover all the culverts m3 4 7.6.4 Provide and install BRC, A142 to reinforce the above concrete m2 5 7.7 Pipeline Anchoring Provide achor for pipeline at specified intervals of 20m complete with bolts and steel strips as directed by the engineer Provide, place and test the following concrete: 7.7.1 reinforced concrete, grade 20/20 m3 25 7.7.2 bolts and nuts, size 19mm or above, four bolts and nuts per pier Recavate for include for supply and fiving of indicators poets for water main.	7.6.1	pipe, 350mm dia, culvert rings and concrete sorround reinforced with BRC	m3	20	
7.6.3 road insde the culverts as specified in the profies Provide concrete 25/20 to sorround the entire road crossing to cover all the culverts 7.6.4 Provide and install BRC, A142 to reinforce the above concrete 7.6.5 Provide and install BRC, A142 to reinforce the above concrete Provide achor for pipeline at specified intervals of 20m complete with bolts and steel strips as directed by the engineer Provide, place and test the following concrete: 7.7.1 reinforced concrete, grade 20/20 polits and nuts, size 19mm or above, four bolts and nuts per pier 7.8 Marker Posts Excavate for include for supply and fiving of indicator posts for water main.	7.6.2		m	9	
7.6.4 entire road crossing to cover all the culverts 7.6.5 Provide and install BRC, A142 to reinforce the above concrete 7.7 Pipeline Anchoring Provide achor for pipeline at specified intervals of 20m complete with bolts and steel strips as directed by the engineer Provide, place and test the following concrete: 7.7.1 reinforced concrete, grade 20/20 m3 25 7.7.2 bolts and nuts, size 19mm or above, four bolts and nuts per pier 7.8 Marker Posts Excavate for include for supply and fixing of indicator posts for under main	7.6.3	road insde the culverts as specified in the	m	12	
7.7 Pipeline Anchoring Provide achor for pipeline at specified intervals of 20m complete with bolts and steel strips as directed by the engineer Provide, place and test the following concrete: 7.7.1 reinforced concrete, grade 20/20 m3 25 7.7.2 bolts and nuts, size 19mm or above, four bolts and nuts per pier 7.8 Marker Posts Excavate for include for supply and fiving of indicator posts for water main	7.6.4	entire road crossing to cover all the	m3	4	
Provide achor for pipeline at specified intervals of 20m complete with bolts and steel strips as directed by the engineer Provide, place and test the following concrete: 7.7.1 reinforced concrete, grade 20/20 m3 25 bolts and nuts, size 19mm or above, four bolts and nuts per pier 7.8 Marker Posts Excavate for include for supply and fixing of indicator posts for water main	7.6.5	•	m2	5	
intervals of 20m complete with bolts and steel strips as directed by the engineer Provide, place and test the following concrete: 7.7.1 reinforced concrete, grade 20/20 m3 25 bolts and nuts, size 19mm or above, four bolts and nuts per pier No 200 7.7.2 Marker Posts Excavate for include for supply and fiving of indicator posts for water main	7.7	Pipeline Anchoring			
7.7.1 reinforced concrete, grade 20/20 m3 25 7.7.2 bolts and nuts, size 19mm or above, four bolts and nuts per pier 7.8 Marker Posts Excavate for include for supply and fiving of indicator posts for water main		intervals of 20m complete with bolts and			
7.7.2 bolts and nuts, size 19mm or above, four bolts and nuts per pier 7.8 Marker Posts Excavate for include for supply and fiving of indicator posts for water main					
7.7.2 bolts and nuts per pier 7.8 Marker Posts Excavate for include for supply and fixing of indicator posts for water main	7.7.1	reinforced concrete, grade 20/20	m3	25	
Excavate for include for supply and No. 18	7.7.2		No	200	
fixing of indicator poets for water main	7.8	Marker Posts			
7.8.1 route, road crossings, change of direction, air valves, washouts, and valve chambers.	7.8.1	fixing of indicator posts for water main route, road crossings, change of direction,	No.	18	
TOTAL CARRIED OVER TO GRAND SUMMARY		TOTAL CARRIED OVER T	O GRAND	SUMMARY	

Bill No. 8: Feeders (F2-SM1-1, M2-F1, M2-F1-P, F2-SM1-P, F1-SM1-2, ML2-F2, ML2-F1)

ITEM	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (KShs)
8.1	Excavation and Backfilling				
	Rates for excavation and backfilling in trench shall include for trimming trench bottom and for providing selected bedding and surround materials from the excavations with the specifications.				
8.1.1	Excavation and backfilling in trench normal material for Dia 110mm pipe for depth not exceeding 2.0 m, excavation width not exceeding 0.4m	m3	1,981		
8.1.2	E.O for excavation in soft rock (provisional)	m3	198		
8.1.3	E.O for excavation in hard rock (provisional)	m3	99		
8.2	Pipework				
	Provide, lay, install and test the following PE100 (High Density Polyethylene - HDPE) pipes and fittings. Rates to include for all jointly materials, cutting wastage.				
	Note: The following have been used on the drawings to specify pipe diameters/types/classes. Pipe dimensions/working pressures shall conform to ISO4427-2:2007 PE 100 Pipes.				
	Class Working Pressure (m)				
	PN6 60				

	PN8 80			
	PN10 100			
	PN12 120			
	HDPE PE100 Pipes			
	*			
	Class PN6			
8.2.2	75mm dia	m	51	
0.2.2	751mii did	***		
8.2.4	50mm dia	m	293	
8.2.4	Johnn dia	111	273	
0.2.5	40mm dia	m	314	
8.2.5	40mm dia	m	314	
0.2.5	32mm dia		1,780	
8.2.6	32mm dia	m	1,780	
	HDDE D. I			
	HDPE Reducers			
8.2.7	75mm x 40mm dia			
		No	1	
8.3	BLOCK CHAMBER (Section valve			
	chambers)			
	Excavate for, provide all materials and construct complete inspection valve			
	chambers at the pipe junctions. Internal			
8.3.1	dimensions 1200 x 1200 mm.	No.	10	
	Rates to include for all thrust blocks, pipe			
	supports, inspection covers, etc as			
	detailed in the drawings.			
	3 No. Section Chamber at end of			
	conveyance			
8.3.2	110mm flange adaptors	No	20	
	Î			
8.3.3	110mm diameter flanges	No	20	
0.2.4	110mm diameter double flanged GI			
8.3.4	piece, 30cm long	No	20	
8.3.5	110 mm diameter flanged sluice valve	No	10	
		1	l	l l

90mm dia double flanged reducers	No	20	
90mm dia GI spigot, double flanged	No	20	
90mm dia double flanged sluice valve	No	10	
AIR VALVES			
Excavate for, provide all materials and construct complete air valve chambers. Internal dimensions 1200 x 1200 x 1200 mm. Rates to include for all thrust blocks, pipe supports, inspection covers, etc as detailed in the drawings.	No.	12	
Provide, handle, install and test the following steel and HDPE pipes and fittings, valves and specials. Special rates shall include for completing all pipe joints as specified in the specification. All fittings to be capable of withstanding a minimum pressure of 60m and to be painted in primer and gloss paints to resist corrosion.			
12 No. Double Air Valves (DAV) at specified Chainages in the drawings			
75mm x 50mm dia saddle clamp	No	12	
50mm dia, 0.3 m long double flanged GI pipe	No.	24	
50 5 11 1			
50mm Double air valve	No.	12	
50mm diameter couplers	No	12	
WASHOUTS (W/O)			
Excavate for, provide all materials and construct complete w/o spillway chambers of internal dimensions 1200 x 1200 x 1200 mm. Rates to including thrust blocks, pipe supports as shown in the drawings	No.	4	
	AIR VALVES Excavate for, provide all materials and construct complete air valve chambers. Internal dimensions 1200 x 1200 x 1200 mm. Rates to include for all thrust blocks, pipe supports, inspection covers, etc as detailed in the drawings. Provide, handle, install and test the following steel and HDPE pipes and fittings, valves and specials. Special rates shall include for completing all pipe joints as specified in the specification. All fittings to be capable of withstanding a minimum pressure of 60m and to be painted in primer and gloss paints to resist corrosion. 12 No. Double Air Valves (DAV) at specified Chainages in the drawings 75mm x 50mm dia saddle clamp 50mm dia, 0.3 m long double flanged GI pipe 50mm Double air valve 50mm diameter couplers WASHOUTS (W/O) Excavate for, provide all materials and construct complete w/o spillway chambers of internal dimensions 1200 x 1200 x 1200 mm. Rates to including	90mm dia double flanged sluice valve No AIR VALVES Excavate for, provide all materials and construct complete air valve chambers. Internal dimensions 1200 x 1200 x 1200 mm. Rates to include for all thrust blocks, pipe supports, inspection covers, etc as detailed in the drawings. Provide, handle, install and test the following steel and HDPE pipes and fittings, valves and specials. Special rates shall include for completing all pipe joints as specified in the specification. All fittings to be capable of withstanding a minimum pressure of 60m and to be painted in primer and gloss paints to resist corrosion. 12 No. Double Air Valves (DAV) at specified Chainages in the drawings 75mm x 50mm dia saddle clamp No. 50mm dia, 0.3 m long double flanged GI pipe 50mm Double air valve No. WASHOUTS (W/O) Excavate for, provide all materials and construct complete w/o spillway chambers of internal dimensions 1200 x 1200 x 1200 mm. Rates to including thrust blocks, pipe supports as shown in	90mm dia double flanged sluice valve No 10 AIR VALVES Excavate for, provide all materials and construct complete air valve chambers. Internal dimensions 1200 x 1200 x 1200 mm. Rates to include for all thrust blocks, pipe supports, inspection covers, etc as detailed in the drawings. Provide, handle, install and test the following steel and HDPE pipes and fittings, valves and specials. Special rates shall include for completing all pipe joints as specified in the specification. All fittings to be capable of withstanding a minimum pressure of 60m and to be painted in primer and gloss paints to resist corrosion. 12 No. Double Air Valves (DAV) at specified Chainages in the drawings 75mm x 50mm dia saddle clamp No 12 50mm dia, 0.3 m long double flanged GI pipe 50mm Double air valve No. 12 WASHOUTS (W/O) Excavate for, provide all materials and construct complete w/o spillway chambers of internal dimensions 1200 x 1200 r. 1200 mm. Rates to including thrust blocks, pipe supports as shown in

	Provide, handle, install and test the following steel and HDPE pipes and fittings, valves and specials. Special rates shall include for completing all pipe joints as specified in the specification. All fittings to be capable to withstand a minimum pressure of 60m and to be painted in primer and gloss paints to resist corrosion. 4 No. Washouts (W/Os) at specified chainages in the drawings			
8.5.2	75 x 50mm dia underscour saddle clamp	No	4	
8.5.3	50 mm dia HDPE elbow	No.	8	
8.5.4	50 mm HDPE pipe Class PN8	m	60	
8.5.5	75 x 50mm dia HDPE flanged adapter	No	8	
8.5.6	75 mm dia Flanges	No	8	
8.5.7	75mm dia sluice valve	No.	4	
8.5.8	75mm GI pipe 500 mm long with a flap valve	No.	4	
8.6	ROAD CROSSING FOR PIPES at chainage 3906			
	Provide for road crossings as per drawings and in accordance with specifications. Rates to include for excavation and backfilling, culvert, concrete surround and all jointing materials and other fittings as per the specifications.			
8.6.1	Excavate for the road crossing to take pipe, 350mm dia, culvert rings and concrete sorround reinforced with BRC class A to a depth not exceeding 2m	m3	20	

	Provide, lay and join culvert rings across			
8.6.2	the road	m	9	
8.6.3	Provide lay join HDPE pipes across the road insde the culverts as specified in the profies	m	12	
8.6.4	Provide concrete 25/20 to sorround the entire road crossing to cover all the culverts	m3	4	
8.6.5	Provide and install BRC, A142 to reinforce the above concrete	m2	5	
0.5	Pipeline Anchoring			
8.7	ripenne Anchoring			
	Provide achor for pipeline at specified intervals of 20m complete with bolts and steel strips as directed by the engineer			
	Provide, place and test the following concrete:			
		-		
8.7.1	grade 20/20	m3	30	
8.7.2	bolts and nuts, size 19mm or above, four bolts and nuts per pier	No	200	
8.8	PRVS			
8.8.1	Excavate for, provide all materials and construct complete PRV chambers of internal dimensions 1200 x 1200 x 1200 mm. Rates to including thrust blocks, pipe supports as shown in the drawings.	No.	7	
	Provide, handle, install and test the following steel and HDPE pipes and fittings, valves and specials. Special rates shall include for completing all pipe joints as specified in the specification. All fittings to be capable of withstanding a minimum pressure of 60m and to be painted in primer and gloss paints to resist corrosion.			

8.8.2	75 mm dia HDPE Flange Adaptor	No	14	
8.8.3	75 mm dia Flanges	No	14	
8.8.4	75 mm dia flanged sluice Valve	No	7	
0.0.4	75 mm dia mangea statee valve	1,0	,	
8.8.5	75 mm dia flanged pressure reducing valve	No.	7	
8.8.6	75mm dia HDPE Flange Adaptor	No	7	
8.8.7	75 mm dia Flanges	No	7	
8.8.8	75 mm dia flanged sluice Valve	No	7	
8.8.9	75 mm dia flanged pressure reducing valve	No.	7	
8.9	END CAPS			
8.9.1	32mm dia end caps	N0	3	
0.7.1				
8.9.2	40mm dia	No	1	
	TOTAL CARRIED OVER	TO GRAND SU	JMMARY	

]	Environmental and Social Manageme	ent and Monitori	ng Plan (ESMP) Guide	
	I. Construction Phase			
Aspect	Proposed Mitigation	Responsibility	Monitoring Indicator	Estimate Cost
Occupational Health and Safety	Maintain safe Labor and Working Conditions as per the ESS2 and OSH 2007 regulations	Contractor	Site registration certificate	
	Provide suitable and adequate personal protective equipment/clothing.		Work Place Incidence register	
	Install Occupational Health and safety signage at the site		Use of PPEs by workers	
	Provide First aid facilities at site		Environmental health and safety personnel at site	
	Provide sanitary facilities		Provide portable toilets.	
	Secure Areas under Excavation Warns		Warning signage and ribbons.	
	Establish emergency response plan and evacuation procedures.		Establish assembly points, training and drills on preparedness. Emergency report	
	Register the site with DOSH		Certificate.	
	Employ a full time Environmental health and safety personnel at site.		A qualified personel engaged.	
	Insure the workers		Insurance Policy.	
Air quality/Particulate matter/Dust	Observe Air quality regulations and ESS3 to minimize project-related emissions.	Contractor	Establish Air quality and dust management plan.	
Solid Waste Management	Contract NEMA registered waste handler to facilitate waste handling, and disposal from the site.	Contractor	Effluent discharge license. Solid waste management plan	
Noise Pollution Control.	Construction works will be carried out only during the specified time of 0800hrs to 1700hrs.	Contractor	Comply with section 7 of EMCA (Environment Management Coordination Act 1999)	
Devegetation and Soil Erosion	Minimize exposed areas by properly demarcating the project area to be affected by the construction works through minimal de vegetation. Request for permission for a way leave and laying the water pipeline from farmers. -Engage Local and professional removal of vegetation waste through: -County waste collection and disposal services - Mulching: foliage parts, grass,	Contractor	Availability of Lease agreement mulching at farm level waste collection services rendered	

	and chipped branches will be used by farmers wood material to be collected and used as wood fuel by the farmers at the household level			
Gender Based Violence, Sexual Harassment, and Child Abuse/Exploitation	Develop and post information materials for stakeholders to indicate that the project and/area is a GBV/SEAH free zone,	Contractor	Communication materials available	
	Training of Project staff on GBV/SEAH		Training reports	
	Capacity building on GBV/SEAH Prevention and Awareness			
	The contractor and workers to sign and implement GBV/SEAH and Child Protection Code of Conduct		Prevention and awareness creation reports	
Grievance Mechanism	Grievance reporting and resolution		Grievance Manual register	
SUB-TOTAL				

	O&M TRAINING GUIDE							
No	Activity	Number of trained	Duration	Resources Required	Facilitators			
1	Training IWUA committee and Key collaborators	25	4 days	Stationaries, conference Hall, Allowances, Transport, Personnel	Irrigation engineer, Finance personell, ESS personell, Project manager, CIDU personell Contractor			
2	Hands-on-Training O&M Sub- committee and recruited local plumbers	6	3 days	Stationaries, Allowances, Transport, Personnel	Irrigation engineer, Finance personell, ESS personell, Project manager, CIDU personell Contractor			
3	Farmer Sensitization on Project operationalisation (Block based)	1,300	12 days	Stationaries, Allowances, Transport, Personnel	Irrigation engineer, Finance personell, ESS personell, Project manager, CIDU personell Contractor			

Schedule of Adjustment Data

Table A - Local Currency

Index Code	Index Description	Source of Index	Base Value and Date	Bidder's Local Currency Amount	Bidder's Proposed Weighting
	Nonadjustable	_			A: B: C: D: E:
			1.00		

Table B - Foreign Currency	
Name of Currency:	

If the Bidder wishes to quote in more than one foreign currency, this table should be repeated for each foreign currency.

Index Code	Index Description	Source of Index	Base Value and Date	Bidder's Currency in Type/Amount	Equivalent in FC1	Bidder's Proposed Weighting
	Nonadjustable	_	_			A: B: C: D: E:
	Total					1.00

Summary of Payment Currencies

Table: Alternative A

For	insert name.	of Section	of the	Works

Separate tables may be required if the various sections of the Works (or of the Bill of Quantities) will have substantially different foreign and local currency requirements. The Employer should insert the names of each Section of the Works.

	A	В	C	D
Name of Payment Currency	Amount of Currency	Rate of Exchange to Local Currency	Local Currency Equivalent C = A x B	Percentage of Net Bid Price (NBP) 100xC NBP
Local currency		1.00		
Foreign Currency #1				
Foreign Currency #2		,		
Foreign Currency #3				
Net Bid Price				100.00
Provisional Sums Expressed in Local Currency		1.00		
BID PRICE				

Table: Alternative B

To be used only with Alternative B Prices direct (Clause ITB 15.1)	ly quoted in the currencies of payment.	
Summary of currencies of the bid for	[insert name of Section of the Works]	
Name of currency	Amounts payable	
Local currency:	* *	
Foreign currency #1:		
Foreign currency #2:		
Foreign currency #3:		

Form of Bid Security (Bank Guarantee)

	Bank's Name, and Address of Issuing Branch or Office		
Beneficiary	[Name and Address of Employer]		
Date:			
BID GUAF	RANTEE No.:		
called "the Bid") for th	een informed that [name of the Bidder] (hereinafter Bidder") has submitted to you its bid dated (hereinafter called "the execution of [name of contract] under Invitation for Bids No("the IFB").		
Furthermore guarantee.	e, we understand that, according to your conditions, bids must be supported by a bid		
undertake to [amount in a writing acco	[name of Bank] hereby irrevocable to pay you any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of		
(a)	has withdrawn its Bid during the period of bid validity specified by the Bidder in the Form of Bid; or		
(b)	having been notified of the acceptance of its Bid by the Employer during the period of bid validity, (i) fails or refuses to execute the Contract Form, if required, or (ii) fails or refuses to furnish the performance security, in accordance with ITB 38.		

This guarantee will expire: (a) if the Bidder is the successful Bidder, upon our receipt of copies of the contract signed by the Bidder and the performance security issued to you upon the instruction of the Bidder; and (b) if the Bidder is not the successful Bidder, upon the earlier of (i) our receipt of a copy your notification to the Bidder of the name of the successful Bidder; or (ii) twenty-eight days after the expiration of the Bidder's bid.

Consequently, any demand for payment under this guarantee must be received by us at the office on or before that date.

Γhis guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees, ICC Publication No 458.
[signature(s)]

Form of Bid Security (Bid Bond)

BOND NO
BY THIS BOND [name of Bidder] as Principal (hereinafter called "the Principal"), and [name, legal title, and address of surety], authorized to transact business in [name of country of Employer], as Surety (hereinafter called "the Surety"), are held and firmly bound unto [name of Employer] as Obligee (hereinafter called "the Employer") in the sum of [amount of Bond] ¹⁰ [amount in words], for the payment of which sum, well and truly to be made, we, the said Principal and Surety, bind ourselves, our successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.
WHEREAS the Principal has submitted a written Bid to the Employer dated theday of, 20,_ for the Rehabilitation and Expansion of [name of Contract] (hereinafter called the "Bid"
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that if the Principal:

- (a) withdraws its Bid during the period of bid validity specified in the Form of Bid; or
- (b) having been notified of the acceptance of its Bid by the Employer during the period of Bid validity; (i) fails or refuses to execute the Contract Form, if required; or (ii) fails or refuses to furnish the Performance Security in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders;

then the Surety undertakes to immediately pay to the Employer up to the above amount upon receipt of the Employer's first written demand, without the Employer having to substantiate its demand, provided that in its demand the Employer shall state that the demand arises from the occurrence of any of the above events, specifying which event(s) has occurred.

The Surety hereby agrees that its obligation will remain in full force and effect up to and including the thirty[30] days after the date of expiration of the Bid validity as stated in the Invitation to Bid or extended by the Employer at any time prior to this date, notice of which extension(s) to the Surety being hereby waived.

The amount of the Bond shall be denominated in the currency of the Employer's country or the equivalent amount in a freely convertible currency.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the Principal executed in their respective names this	al and the Surety have caused these presents to beday of20		
Principal:	Surety: Corporate Seal (where appropriate)		
(Signature)	(Signature)		
(Printed name and title)	(Printed name and title)		

Form of Bid-Securing Declaration

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year)] Bid No.: [insert number of bidding process] Alternative No.: [insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative] To: [insert complete name of Employer] We, the undersigned, declare that: We understand that, according to your conditions, bids must be supported by a Bid-Securing Declaration. We accept that we will automatically be suspended from being eligible for bidding in any contract with the Borrower for the period of time of [Employer to insert number of months or years] starting on [insert date], if we are in breach of our obligation(s) under the bid conditions, because we: have withdrawn our Bid during the period of bid validity specified in the Letter of Bid; or (a) having been notified of the acceptance of our Bid by the Employer during the period of bid validity, (i) fail or refuse to execute the Contract, if required, or (ii) fail or refuse to furnish the Performance Security, in accordance with ITB 38. We understand this Bid-Securing Declaration shall expire if we are not the successful Bidder, upon the earlier of (i) our receipt of your notification to us of the name of the successful Bidder; or (ii) twenty-eight days after the expiration of our Bid. Signed: [insert signature of person whose name and capacity are shown] In the capacity of [insert legal capacity of person signing the Bid-Securing Declaration] Name: [insert complete name of person signing the Bid-Securing Declaration] Duly authorized to sign the bid for and on behalf of: [insert complete name of Bidder] Corporate Seal (where appropriate)

[Note: In case of a Joint Venture, the Bid-Securing Declaration must be in the name of all

partners to the Joint Venture that submits the bid.]

Technical Proposal

Technical Proposal Forms

Site Organization

Method Statement

Mobilization Schedule

Construction and Expansion Schedule

Contractor's Equipment

Personnel

Others

Site	Orga	aniza	tion
Site	Orga	aniza	tion

N / - 41 1	04-44
vietnoa	Statement

Mobilization Schedu	le
----------------------------	----

Construction and Expansion Schedule

Contractor's Equipment

Form EQU

The Bidder shall provide adequate information to demonstrate clearly that it has the capability to meet the requirements for the key equipment listed in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. A separate Form shall be prepared for each item of equipment listed, or for alternative equipment proposed by the Bidder. The Bidder shall provide all the information requested below, to the extent possible. Fields with asterisk (*) shall be used for evaluation.

Model and power rating

Type of Equipment*

Equipment

Name of manufacturer

Capacity* Current location Details of current communicate source of the e		Year of n	nanufacture*
Details of current comm	quipment		
ndicate source of the e	quipment		
	- Kented	☐ Leased	☐ Specially manufactured
mation shall be provided	d only for equipme	ent not owned by the	he Bidder.
Address of owner			
Telephone		Contact n	name and title
ax		Telex	
Details of rental / lease	/ manufacture ag	reements specific	to the project
r _e	ddress of owner elephone	ddress of owner elephone	ddress of owner elephone Contact r

Proposed Personnel

Form PER – 1

Bidders should provide the names of suitably qualified personnel to meet the specified requirements for each of the positions listed in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. The data on their experience should be supplied using the Form below for each candidate.

1.	Title of position				
	Name				
2.	Title of position				
	Name				
3.	Title of position				
	Name				
4.	Title of position				
	Name				
5.	Title of position				
	Name				
6.	Title of position				
	Name				
etc.	Title of position				
	Name				

Resume of Proposed Personnel

Form PER - 2

The Bidder shall provide all the information requested below. Fields with asterix (*) shall be used for evaluation.

Position*		
Personnel information	Name *	Date of birth
	Professional qualifications	
Present employment	Name of Employer	
Address of Employer		
	Telephone	Contact (manager / personnel officer)
	Fax	E-mail
	Job title	Years with present Employer

Summarize professional experience in reverse chronological order. Indicate particular technical and managerial experience relevant to the project.

From*	To* Company, Project, Position, and Relevant Technical and Management Experience*		

Others

Bidder's Qualification

To establish its qualifications to perform the contract in accordance with Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, the Bidder shall provide the information requested in the corresponding Information Sheets included hereunder.

Bidder Information Sheet

Form ELI - 1.1

		Date:		
		Bidding I	No.:	
		Invitation	n for Bid No.:	
		Page	of	page
1.	. Bidder's Legal Name			
2.	2. In case of Joint Venture, Consortium or Association (JVCA)), legal nam	ne of each party:	
3.	Bidder's actual or intended Country of Registration:			
4.	. Bidder's Year of Registration:			
5.	6. Bidder's Legal Address in Country of Registration:	-	-	
6.	6. Bidder's Authorized Representative Information			
N	Name:			
A	Address:			
Te	Telephone/Fax numbers:			
Eı	Email Address:			
7.	. Attached are copies of original documents of:			
	Articles of Incorporation or Registration of firm named in ITB Clauses 4.1 and 4.2.	1, above, in	n accordance wit	h
	In case of JVCA, letter of intent to form JVCA including a agreement, in accordance with ITB Clause 4.1	draft agree	ement, or JVCA	
	In case of government owned entity from the Employer's c legal and financial autonomy and compliance with the prinaccordance with ITB Clause 4.5.			

Party to JVCA Information Sheet

Form ELI - 1.2

	Date:
	Bidding No.:
	Invitation for Bid No.:
	Pageofpage
1.]	Bidder's Legal Name:
2	JVCA's Party legal name:
3	JVCA's Party Country of Registration:
4	JVCA's Party Year of Registration:
5	JVCA's Party Legal Address in Country of Registration:
6	JVCA's Party Authorized Representative Information
Na	ime:
Ad	ldress:
Te	lephone/Fax numbers:
En	nail Address:
7	Attached are copies of original documents of:
	Articles of Incorporation or Registration of firm named in 1, above, in accordance with ITB Clauses 4.1 and 4.2.
	In case of government owned entity from the Purchaser's country, documents establishing legal and financial autonomy and compliance with the principles of commercial law, in accordance with ITB Clause 4.5.

Historical Contract Non-Performance

		Form CON – 2		
Bidder's	Legal Name:		Date:	
		ne:		
	<u> </u>		Bidding No.:	
			Page	ofpages
Non	-Performing Co	entracts in accordance with (Evaluation	n and Qualifica	tion Criteria)
	-	ormance did not occur during the stipution III, Evaluation and Qualification	-	n accordance with
	-	ormance during the stipulated period, a uation and Qualification Criteria.	in accordance	with Sub-Factor
Year	Outcome as Percent of Total Assets	Contract Identification	1	Total Contract Amount (current value, KSH equivalent)
		Contract Identification: Name of Employer: Address of Employer: Matter in dispute:		
Pendi	ng Litigation, in	accordance with Section III, Evaluati	ion and Qualifi	cation Criteria
	pending litigati	on in accordance with Sub-Factor 2.2.	3 of Section II	I, Evaluation and
		ccordance with Sub-Factor 2.2.3 of Sea, as indicated below	ection III, Eval	uation and
Year	Outcome as Percent of Total Assets	Contract Identification	1	Total Contract Amount (current value, KSH equivalent)
		Contract Identification: Name of Employer: Address of Employer: Matter in dispute:		
		Contract Identification: Name of Employer: Address of Employer: Matter in dispute:		

Current Contract Commitments / Works in Progress

Form CCC

Bidders and each partner to a JVCA should provide information on their current commitments on all contracts that have been awarded, or for which a letter of intent or acceptance has been received, or for contracts approaching completion, but for which an unqualified, full completion certificate has yet to be issued.

Name of contract	Employer, contact	Value of outstanding	Estimated	Average monthly
	address/tel/fax	work (current KSH	completion date	invoicing over last
		equivalent)		six months
				(Kshs/month)
1.				
2.				
3.				
4.				
5.				
etc.				

Financial Situation

Form FIN - 3.1

Historical Financial Performance

Bidder's Legal Name:					Date:		
				B	idding No.:		
					Page		_ofpag
Γo be completed	by the Bi	dder and, i	f JVCA, b	y each partr	ner		
Financial information in Kshs	Historic (Kshs)	informatio	n for prev	ious	_(_) years		
	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year	Year n	Avg.	Avg. Ratio
Information fro	m Balance	e Sheet	I				1
Total Assets (TA)							
Total Liabilities (TL)							
Net Worth (NW)							
Current Assets (CA)							
Current Liabilities (CL)							
Information fro	m Income	Statement					
Total Revenue (TR)							
Profits Before							

- Attached are copies of financial statements (balance sheets, including all related notes, and income statements) for the years required above complying with the following conditions:
 - Must reflect the financial situation of the Bidder or partner to a JVCA, and not sister or parent companies
 - Historic financial statements must be audited by a certified accountant
 - Historic financial statements must be complete, including all notes to the financial statements
 - Historic financial statements must correspond to accounting periods already completed and audited (no statements for partial periods shall be requested or accepted)

Average Annual Turnover

Form FIN - 3.2

	1 Offin 1 II	3.2	
Bidder's Legal Name:		Bidding	No.:
		Page	ofpages
	Annual turnover data (Rehabili	itation and Expansion or	ılv)
Year	Amount and Curre		• •
*Average			
Annual			
Rehabilitation and Expansion			
Turnover			

^{*}Average annual turnover calculated as total certified payments received for work in progress or completed over the number of years specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, Sub-Factor 2.3.2, divided by that same number of years.

Financial Resources

Form FIN - 3.3

Specify proposed sources of financing, such as liquid assets, unencumbered real assets, lines of credit, and other financial means, net of current commitments, available to meet the total Rehabilitation and Expansion cash flow demands of the subject contract or contracts as indicated in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.

Source of financing	Amount Kshs
1.	
2.	
3.	
4.	

Experience

Form EXP – 2.4.1

Bidder's Legal Name:	Date:		
JVCA Partner Legal Name:	Bidding N	lo.:	_
-	Page	of	pages

Starting Month / Year	Ending Month / Year	Years*	Contract Identification	Role of Bidder
			Contract name: Brief Description of the Works performed by the Bidder: Name of Employer:	
			Address:	
			Contract name: Brief Description of the Works performed by the Bidder: Name of Employer: Address:	
			Contract name: Brief Description of the Works performed by the Bidder: Name of Employer: Address:	
			Contract name: Brief Description of the Works performed by the Bidder: Name of Employer: Address:	
			Contract name: Brief Description of the Works performed by the Bidder: Name of Employer: Address:	
			Contract name: Brief Description of the Works performed by the Bidder: Name of Employer: Address:	

^{*}List calendar year for years with contracts with at least nine (9) months activity per year starting with the earliest year

Specific Experience

Form	EXP - 2.4.2(a))	
Bidder's Legal Name:		Date:	
JVCA Partner Legal Name:	B	idding No.:	
		Page	_ofpages
Similar Contract Number:[insert specific number] of[insert total number of contracts required.		Information	
Contract Identification			
Award date	_		
Completion date			
Role in Contract	Contractor	☐ Management Contractor	Subcontractor
Total contract amount			Kshs
If partner in a JVCA or subcontractor, specify participation of total contract amount	%		Kshs
Employer's Name:			
Address:			
Telephone/fax number:			
E-mail:			

Specific Experience (cont.)

Form EXP – 2.4.2(a) (cont.)

Bidder's Legal Name:	Page _	of	pages
JVCA Partner Legal Name:			

Similar Contract No[insert specific number] of [insert total number of contracts] required	Information
Description of the similarity in accordance with Sub-Factor 2.4.2(a) of Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria:	
Amount	
Physical size	
Complexity	
Methods/Technology	
Physical Production Rate	

Specific Experience in Key Activities

Form EXP - 2.4.2(b)

Bidder's Legal Name:		Date:		
JVCA Partner Legal Name:	Date:			
Subcontractor's Legal Name:		Pageo	fpages	
		Information		
Contract Identification				
Award date				
Completion date				
Role in Contract				
	Contractor	Management Contractor	Subcontractor	
Total contract amount			Kshs	
If partner in a JVCA or subcontractor, specify participation of total contract amount	%		Kshs	
Employer's Name:				
Address:				
Telephone/fax number:				
E-mail:				

Specific Experience in Key Activities (cont.)

Form EXP – 2.4.2(b) (cont.)

Bidder's Legal Name: JVCA Partner Legal Name: Subcontractor's Legal Name:		of	pages
	Infor	mation	
Description of the key activities in accordance with Sub-Factor 2.4.2(b) of Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria:			
Amount			
Physical size			
Complexity			
Methods/Technology			
Physical Production Rate			

Section V. Eligible Countries

Eligibility for the Provision of Goods, Works and Related Services in Bank-financed Procurement

- A. <u>Provision at Paragraph 1.6 of the Bank's Rules and Procedures for Procurement of Goods and Works</u>
- 1.6 The World Bank/GOK permits firms and individuals from all countries to offer goods, works and services for Word Bank funded projects.



Section VI. Requirements

Table of Contents

Drawings		168
Supplementary Information		160
Supplementary information	***************************************	<u>100</u>

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION

T .	1	• • • • • •	• 1	1 .	T	1 '	1 .	1	TTT
Lec	ททากจา	specifications	are provide	2011	n Lenc	ler c	incliments	volume	
100	mmeai	specifications	arc provide	<i>-</i> u 1	11 1 (11)	\cdots	iocuments	VOIUIIIC	111.

Drawings

Technical drawings form part of the tender documents and are provided as volume II

Supplementary Information

PART 3 – Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms

Section VII. General Conditions (GC)

These **General Conditions** (**GC**), read in conjunction with the **Particular Conditions** (**PC**) and other documents listed therein, should be a complete document expressing fairly the rights and obligations of both parties.

Table of Clauses

1 Gen	neral Provisions	174
1.1	Definitions	17/
1.1	Interpretation	
1.3	Communications	
1.4	Law and Language	
1.5	Priority of Documents	
1.6	Contract Agreement	
1.7	Assignment	
1.8	Care and Supply of Documents	
1.9	Confidential Details	
1.10	Compliance with Laws	
1.11	Joint and Several Liability	
1.12	Inspections and Audit by the Bank	
1.13	Project Manager's Decisions	
1.14	Delegation	
1.15	Subcontracting	
1.16	Personnel and Equipment.	
1.17	Other Contractors	
1.18	Employer's and Contractor's Risks	
1.19	Employer's Risks	
1.20	Contractor's Risks	
1.21	Insurance	
1.22	Site Investigation Reports	
1.23	Contractors to Construct the Works	
1.24	The Works to Be Completed by the Intended Completion Date	
1.25	Approval by the Project Manager	
1.26	Safety	
1.27	Discoveries	
1.28	Possession of the Site	
1.29	Access to the Site	
1.30	Instructions	185
1.31	Appointment of the Adjudicator	
1.32	Procedure for Disputes	
	1	
2 Tim	ne Control	186
0.1	D	107
2.1	Programme Extension of the Intended Completion Date	
2.2	Extension of the Intended Completion Date	
2.3 2.4	Acceleration	
2.4	Delays Ordered by the Project Manager	
2.5	Management Meetings Early Warning	
۷.0	Laity vy aiiiiig	I ðð

3 Qua	3 Quality Control		
3.1	Identifying Defects	188	
3.2	Tests	188	
3.3	Correction of Defects	188	
3.4	Uncorrected Defects	188	
4 Cos	st Control	189	
4.1	Contract Price	189	
4.2	Changes in the Contract Price	189	
4.3	Variations	189	
4.4	Cash Flow Forecasts	190	
4.5	Payment Certificates	190	
4.6	Payments	191	
4.7	Compensation Events		
4.8	Tax		
4.9	Currencies	192	
4.10	Price Adjustment		
4.11	Retention		
4.12	Liquidated Damages		
4.13	Bonus		
4.14	Advance Payment		
4.15	Securities		
4.16	Dayworks		
4.17	Cost of Repairs		
5 Sta	ff and Labour	196	
5.1	Forced Labour	196	
5.2	Child Labour	196	
5.3	Workers' Organizations	196	
5.4	Non-Discrimination and Equal Opportunity		
6 For	rce Majeure	198	
6.1	Definition of Force Majeure	198	
6.2	Notice of Force Majeure		
6.3	Duty to Minimise Delay		
6.4	Consequences of Force Majeure		
6.5	Force Majeure Affecting Subcontractor		
6.6	Optional Termination, Payment and Release		
6.7	Release from Performance		
7 Fin	nishing the Contract	201	
7.1	Completion	201	
7.2	Taking Over		
-	6		

7.3	Final Account	201
7.4	Operating and Maintenance Manuals	201
7.5	Termination	201
7.6	Fraud and Corruption	202
7.7	Payment upon Termination	204
7.8	Property	
7.9	Release from Performance	
7.10	Suspension of Bank Financing	
	Eligibility	
	<i>e</i> - •,	

Section VII. General Conditions

1.

1.1

1.1.1 1.1.1.1

1.1.1.2

1.1.1.3

1.1.1.4

1.1.1.5

1.1.1.6

1.1.1.7

and/or prices.

[Name of Employer] [Name of Contract]
General Provisions
Definitions
In the Conditions of Contract ("these Conditions"), which include Particular Conditions , and these General Conditions , the following words and expressions shall have the meanings stated. Words indicating persons or parties include corporations and other legal entities, except where the context requires otherwise.
The Contract
"Contract" means the Contract Agreement, the Letter of Acceptance, the Letter of Bid, these Conditions, the Specification, the Schedules, and the further documents (if any) which are listed in the Contract Agreement or in the Letter of Acceptance.
"Contract Agreement" means the contract agreement referred to in GC Clause 1.6 [Contract Agreement].
"Letter of Acceptance" means the letter of formal acceptance, signed by the Employer, of the Letter of Bid, including any annexed memoranda comprising agreements between and signed by both Parties. If there is no such letter of acceptance, the expression "Letter of Acceptance" means the Contract Agreement and the date of issuing or receiving the Letter of Acceptance means the date of signing the Contract Agreement.
"Letter of Bid" means the document entitled letter of bid, which was completed by the Contractor and includes the signed offer to the Employer for the Works.
"Specification" means the document entitled specification, as included in the Contract, and any additions and modifications to the specification in accordance with the Contract. Such document specifies the Works.
"Drawings" means the drawings of the Works, as included in the Contract, and any additional and modified drawings issued by (or on behalf of) the Employer in accordance with the Contract.
"Schedules" means the document(s) entitled schedules, completed by the Contractor and submitted with the Letter of Bid, as included in the Contract. Such

document may include the Bill of Quantities, data, lists, and schedules of rates

- 1.1.1.8 The Activity Schedule is a schedule of the activities comprising the Rehabilitation and Expansion, installation, testing, and commissioning of the Works in a lump sum contract. It includes a lump sum price for each activity, which is used for valuations and for assessing the effects of Variations and Compensation Events.
- 1.1.1.10 "Bid" means the Letter of Bid and all other documents which the Contractor submitted with the Letter of Bid, as included in the Contract.

1.1.1.11 **PC** means **Particular Conditions**

1.1.2 Parties and Persons

- 1.1.2.1 "Party" means the Employer or the Contractor, as the context requires.
- 1.1.2.2 "Employer" means the person named as employer in the **Particular Conditions** and the legal successors in title to this person.
- 1.1.2.3 "Contractor" means the person(s) named as contractor in the Letter of Bid accepted by the Employer and the legal successors in title to this person(s).
- 1.1.2.4 "Project Manager" is the person named in the **PC** (or any other competent person appointed by the Employer and notified to the Contractor, to act in replacement of the Project Manager) who is responsible for supervising the execution of the Works and administering the Contract.
- 1.1.2.5 "Subcontractor" means any person named in the Contract as a subcontractor, or any person appointed as a subcontractor, for a part of the Works; and the legal successors in title to each of these persons.
- 1.1.2.6 "Bank" means the financing institution (if any) named in the **PC**.
- 1.1.2.7 "Borrower" means the person (if any) named as the borrower in the **PC**.
- 1.1.2.8 The "Adjudicator" is the person appointed jointly by the Employer and the Contractor to resolve disputes in the first instance, as provided for in **GC** Clause 1.32.

1.1.3 Dates, Tests, Periods and Completion

- 1.1.3.1 "Base Date" means the twenty one (21) days prior to the latest date for submission of the Bid.
- "Commencement Date" means the date notified under the **PC**.
- 1.1.3.3 "Completion Date" means the date for completion of the Works, or a Section (as the case may be) as certified by the Project Manager, in accordance with **GC** Clause 7.1.1, and as stipulated in the **PC**.
- 1.1.3.4 "Test on Completion" means the tests (if any) which are specified in the Contract and which are carried out in accordance with the Specification for the purpose of issuing the "Certificate of Completion of the Works".
- 1.1.3.5 "Taking-Over Certificate" or "Certificate of Completion of the Works" means a certificate issued under **GC** Clause 7.1 [Completion].
- "day" means a calendar day and "year" means 365 days.

1.1.3.7 "Dayworks" are varied work inputs subject to payment on a time basis for the Contractor's employees and Equipment, in addition to payments for associated Materials and Plant.

1.1.4 Money and Payments

- 1.1.4.1 "Contract Amount" means the amount accepted in the Letter of Acceptance for the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of any defects.
- 1.1.4.2 "Contract Price" means the price defined in **GC** Clause 4.1 [Contract Price], and includes adjustments in accordance with the Contract.
- 1.1.4.3 "Compensation Events" are those defined in **GC** Clause 4.7 [Compensation Events] hereunder.

1.1.5 Works and Goods

- 1.1.5.1 "Contractor's Equipment" means all apparatus, machinery, vehicles and other things required for the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of any defects. However, Contractor's Equipment excludes Temporary Works, Employer's Equipment (if any), Plant, Materials and any other things intended to form or forming part of the Permanent Works.
- 1.1.5.2 "Goods" means Contractor's Equipment, Materials, Plant and Temporary Works, or any of them as appropriate.
- 1.1.5.3 "Materials" means things of all kinds (other than Plant) intended to form or forming part of the Permanent Works, including the supply-only materials (if any) to be supplied by the Contractor under the Contract.
- 1.1.5.4 "Permanent Works" means the permanent works to be executed by the Contractor under the Contract.
- 1.1.5.5 "Plant" means the apparatus, machinery and other equipment intended to form or forming part of the Permanent Works, including vehicles purchased for the Employer and relating to the Rehabilitation and Expansion or operation of the Works.
- 1.1.5.6 "Section" means a part of the Works specified in the **PC** as a Section (if any).
- 1.1.5.7 "Temporary Works" means all temporary works of every kind (other than Contractor's Equipment) required on Site for the execution and completion of the Permanent Works and the remedying of any defects.
- 1.1.5.8 "Works" mean the Permanent Works and the Temporary Works, or either of them as appropriate, and as described in the **PC**.

1.1.6 Other Definitions

- 1.1.6.1 "Contractor's Documents" means the calculations, computer programs and other software, drawings, manuals, models and other documents of a technical nature (if any) supplied by the Contractor under the Contract.
- 1.1.6.2 "Country" means the country in which the Site (or most of it) is located.
- 1.1.6.3 "Force Majeure" is defined in GC Clause 6.1 [Force Majeure].

- 1.1.6.4 "Laws" means all national (or state) legislation, statutes, ordinances and other laws, and regulations and by-laws of any legally constituted public authority.
- 1.1.6.5 "Performance Security" means the security (or securities, if any) under **GC** Clause 4.15 [Securities].
- 1.1.6.6 "Site" means the places where the Permanent Works are to be executed including storage and working areas and to which Plant and Materials are to be delivered, and any other places as may be specified in the **PC** as forming part of the Site.
- 1.1.6.8 "Unforeseeable" or "Unforeseen" means not reasonably foreseeable by an experienced Contractor by the Base Date.
- 1.1.6.9 "Variation" means any change to the Works, which is instructed or approved as a variation under **GC** Clause 4.3 [Variations].

1.2 Interpretation

- 1.2.1 Interpretation In the Contract, except where the context requires otherwise:
 - (a) words indicating one gender include all genders;
 - (b) words indicating the singular also include the plural and words indicating the plural also include the singular;
 - (c) provisions including the word "agree", "agreed" or "agreement" require the agreement to be recorded in writing;
 - (d) "written" or "in writing" means hand-written, type-written, printed or electronically made, and resulting in a permanent record;
 - (e) the word "tender" is synonymous with "bid" and "tenderer" with "bidder" and the words "tender documents" with "bidding documents".
- 1.2.2 The marginal words and other headings shall not be taken into consideration in the interpretation of these Conditions.
- 1.2.3 If sectional completion is specified in the **PC**, references in the **GC** to the Works, the Completion Date, and the Intended Completion Date apply to any Section of the Works (other than references to the Completion Date and Intended Completion Date for the whole of the Works).

1.3 Communications

- 1.3.1 Wherever these Conditions provide for the giving or issuing of approvals, certificates, consents, determinations, notices, requests and discharges, these communications shall be:
 - (a) in writing and delivered by hand (against receipt), sent by mail or courier, or transmitted using any of the agreed systems of electronic transmission as stated in the **PC**; and

- (b) delivered, sent or transmitted to the address for the recipient's communications as stated in the **PC**. However:
 - (i) if the recipient gives notice of another address, communications shall thereafter be delivered accordingly; and
 - (ii) if the recipient has not stated otherwise when requesting an approval or consent, it may be sent to the address from which the request was issued
- 1.3.2 Approvals, certificates, consents and determinations shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. When a certificate is issued to a Party, the certifier shall send a copy to the other Party.
- 1.3.3 When a notice is issued to a Party, by the other Party or the Project Manager, a copy shall be sent to the Project Manager or the other Party, as the case may be.

1.4 Law and Language

1.4.1 The Contract shall be governed by the law of the country or other jurisdiction stated in the **PC**.

The ruling language of the Contract shall be that stated in the **PC**.

The language for communications shall be that stated in the **PC**. If no language is stated there, the language for communications shall be the ruling language of the Contract.

1.4.2 Supporting documents and printed literature that are part of the Contract may be in another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages in the language specified, in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Contract, this translation shall govern.

The Contractor shall bear all costs of translation to the governing language and all risks of the accuracy of such translation, for documents provided by the Contractor.

1.5 **Priority of Documents**

- 1.5.1 The documents forming the Contract are to be taken as mutually explanatory of one another. For the purposes of interpretation, the priority of the documents shall be in accordance with the following sequence:
 - (a) the Contract Agreement (if any),
 - the Letter of Acceptance, (b)
 - (c) the Bid.
 - the Particular Conditions these General Conditions, (d) (e)

 - the Specification, (f)
 - (g) the Drawings, and
 - (h) the Schedules and any other documents forming part of the Contract.
- 1.5.2 If an ambiguity or discrepancy is found in the documents, the Project Manager shall issue any necessary clarification or instruction.

1.6 **Contract Agreement**

1.6.1 The Parties shall enter into a Contract Agreement within 28 days after the Contractor receives the Letter of Acceptance, unless the Particular Conditions establish otherwise. The Contract Agreement shall be based upon the relevant form provided in Section IX, Contract Forms. The costs of stamp duties and similar charges (if any) imposed by law in connection with entry into the Contract Agreement shall be borne by the Employer.

1.7 **Assignment**

1.7.1 Neither Party shall assign the whole or any part of the Contract or any benefit or interest in or under the Contract.

1.8 Care and Supply of Documents

- 1.8.1 The Specification and Drawings shall be in the custody and care of the Employer. Unless otherwise stated in the Contract, one copy of the Contract and of each subsequent Drawing shall be supplied to the Contractor, at the cost of the employer, but any further request of susiquent copies shall be at the cost of the Contractor.
- Each of the Contractor's Documents shall be in the custody and care of the 1.8.2 Contractor, unless and until taken over by the Employer. Unless otherwise stated in the Contract, the Contractor shall supply to the Project Manager six copies of each of the Contractor's Documents.

- 1.8.3 The Contractor shall keep, on the Site, a copy of the Contract, publications named in the Specification, the Contractor's Documents (if any), the Drawings and Variations and other communications given under the Contract. The Employer's Personnel shall have the right of access to all these documents at all reasonable times.
- 1.8.4 If a Party becomes aware of an error or defect in a document which was prepared for use in executing the Works, the Party shall promptly give notice to the other Party of such error or defect.

1.9 Confidential Details

1.9.1 The Contractor's and the Employer's Personnel shall disclose all such confidential and other information as may be reasonably required in order to verify the Contractor's compliance with the Contract and allow its proper implementation.

Each of them shall treat the details of the Contract as private and confidential, except to the extent necessary to carry out their respective obligations under the Contract or to comply with applicable Laws. Each of them shall not publish or disclose any particulars of the Works prepared by the other Party without the previous agreement of the other Party. However, the Contractor shall be permitted to disclose any publicly available information, or information otherwise required to establish his qualifications to compete for other projects.

1.9.2 Notwithstanding the above, the Contractor may furnish to its Subcontractor(s) such documents, data and other information it receives from the Employer to the extent required for the Subcontractor(s) to perform its work under the Contract, in which event the Contractor shall obtain from such Subcontractor(s) an undertaking of confidentiality similar to that imposed on the Contractor under this Clause.

1.10 Compliance with Laws

- 1.10.1 The Contractor shall, in performing the Contract, comply with applicable Laws.
- 1.10.2 Unless otherwise stated in the **Particular Conditions**:
 - (a) the Employer shall acquire and pay for all permits, approvals and/or licenses from all local, state or national government authorities or public service undertakings in the Employer's Country, which (i) such authorities or undertakings require the Employer to obtain in the Employer's name, and (ii) are necessary for the execution of the Contract, including those required for the performance by both the Contractor and the Employer of their respective obligations under the Contract;

(b) the Contractor shall acquire and pay for all permits, approvals and/or licenses from all local, state or national government authorities or public service undertakings in the Employer's Country, which such authorities or undertakings require the Contractor to obtain in its name and which are necessary for the performance of the Contract, including, without limitation, visas for the Contractor's and Subcontractor's personnel and entry permits for all imported Contractor's Equipment. The Contractor shall acquire all other permits, approvals and/or licenses that are not the responsibility of the Employer under GC Clause 1.10.2(a) hereof and that are necessary for the performance of the Contract. The Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Employer from and against any and all liabilities, damages, claims, fines, penalties and expenses of whatever nature arising or resulting from the violation of such laws by the Employer or its personnel, including the Subcontractors and their personnel, but without prejudice to GC Clause 1.10.1 hereof.

1.11 Joint and Several Liability

1.11.1 If the Contractor is a joint venture, consortium, or association (JVCA) of two or more persons, the lead designate shall be solely liable to the Employer for the fulfilment of the provisions of the Contract. In the event the composition or the constitution of the JVCA is altered, the lead designate shall still remain solely liable to the employer.

1.12 Inspections and Audit by the Bank

- 1.12.1 The Contractor shall permit the Bank and/or persons appointed by the Bank to inspect the Site and/or the Contractor's accounts and records relating to the performance of the Contract and to have such accounts and records audited by auditors appointed by the Bank if required by the Bank.
- 1.12.2 The Contractor shall maintain all documents and records related to the Contract for a period of three (3) years after completion of the Works. The Contractor shall provide any documents necessary for the investigation of allegations of fraud, collusion, coercion, obstruction or corruption and require its employees or agents with knowledge of the Contract to respond to questions from the Bank.

1.13 Contractual Matter's Decisions

1.13.1 The appointed implementation team shall deliberate and recommend to the accounting officer on contractual matters between the Employer and the Contractor in the role representing the Employer.

1.14 Delegation

1.14.1 The Project Manager may delegate any of his duties and responsibilities and may cancel any delegation after notifying the Contractor.

1.15 Subcontracting

1.15.1 The Contractor may subcontract with the approval of the Project Manager, but may not assign the Contract without the approval of the Employer in writing. Subcontracting shall not alter the Contractor's obligations.

1.16 Personnel and Equipment

- 1.16.1 The Contractor shall employ the key personnel and use the equipment identified in its Bid, to carry out the Works or other personnel and equipment approved by the Project Manager. The Project Manager shall approve any proposed replacement of key personnel and equipment only if their relevant qualifications or characteristics are substantially equal to or better than those proposed in the Bid.
- 1.16.2 If the Project Manager asks the Contractor to remove a person who is a member of the Contractor's staff or work force, stating the reasons, the Contractor shall ensure that the person leaves the Site within seven days and has no further connection with the work in the Contract.

1.17 Other Contractors

1.17.1 The Contractor shall cooperate and share the Site with other contractors, public authorities, utilities, and the Employer between the dates given in the Schedule of Other Contractors, as referred to in the **PC**. The Contractor shall also provide facilities and services for them as described in the Schedule. The Employer may modify the Schedule of Other Contractors, and shall notify the Contractor of any such modification.

1.18 Employer's and Contractor's Risks

1.18.1 The Employer carries the risks which this Contract states are Employer's risks, and the Contractor carries the risks which this Contract states are Contractor's risks.

1.19 Employer's Risks

- 1.19.1 From the Start Date until the Defects Liability Certificate has been issued, the following are Employer's risks:
 - (a) The risk of personal injury, death, or loss of or damage to property (excluding the Works, Plant, Materials, and Equipment), which are due to
 - (i) use or occupation of the Site by the Works or for the purpose of the Works, which is the unavoidable result of the Works or
 - (ii) negligence, breach of statutory duty, or interference with any legal right by the Employer or by any person employed by or contracted to him except the Contractor.
 - (b) The risk of damage to the Works, Plant, Materials, and Equipment to the extent that it is due to a fault of the Employer or in the Employer's design, or due to war or radioactive contamination directly affecting the country where the Works are to be executed.
- 1.19.2 From the Completion Date until the Defects Liability Certificate has been issued, the risk of loss of or damage to the Works, Plant, and Materials is an Employer's risk except loss or damage due to
 - (a) a Defect which existed on the Completion Date,
 - (b) an event occurring before the Completion Date, which was not itself an Employer's risk, or
 - (c) the activities of the Contractor on the Site after the Completion Date.

1.20 Contractor's Risks

1.20.1 From the Starting Date until the Defects Liability Certificate has been issued, the risks of personal injury, death, and loss of or damage to property (including, without limitation, the Works, Plant, Materials, and Equipment) which are not Employer's risks are Contractor's risks.

1.21 Insurance

- 1.21.1 The Contractor shall provide, in the joint names of the Employer and the Contractor, insurance cover from the Start Date to the end of the Defects Liability Period, in the amounts and deductibles stated in the **PC** for the following events which are due to the Contractor's risks:
 - (a) loss of or damage to the Works, Plant, and Materials;
 - (b) loss of or damage to Equipment;
 - (c) loss of or damage to property (except the Works, Plant, Materials, and Equipment) in connection with the Contract; and
 - (d) personal injury or death.

- 1.21.2 Policies and certificates for insurance shall be delivered by the Contractor to the Project Manager for the Project Manager's approval before the Commencement Date. All such insurance shall provide for compensation to be payable in the types and proportions of currencies required to rectify the loss or damage incurred.
- 1.21.3 If the Contractor does not provide any of the policies and certificates required, the Employer may effect the insurance which the Contractor should have provided and recover the premiums the Employer has paid from payments otherwise due to the Contractor or, if no payment is due, the payment of the premiums shall be a debt due.
- 1.21.4 Alterations to the terms of insurance shall not be made without the approval of the Project Manager.
- 1.21.5 Both parties shall comply with any conditions of the insurance policies.

1.22 Site Investigation Reports

1.22.1 The Contractor, in preparing the Bid, shall rely on any Site Investigation Reports referred to in the **PC**, supplemented by any information available to the Bidder.

1.23 Contractors to Construct the Works

1.23.1 The Contractor shall construct and install the Works in accordance with the Specifications and Drawings.

1.24 The Works to Be Completed by the Intended Completion Date

1.24.1 The Contractor may commence execution of the Works on the Start Date and shall carry out the Works in accordance with the Program submitted by the Contractor, as updated with the approval of the Project Manager, and complete them by the Intended Completion Date.

1.25 Approval by the Project Manager

- 1.25.1 The Contractor shall submit Specifications and Drawings showing the proposed Temporary Works to the Project Manager, who is to approve them if they comply with the Specifications and Drawings.
- 1.25.2 The Contractor shall be responsible for design of Temporary Works.
- 1.25.3 The Project Manager's approval shall not alter the Contractor's responsibility for design of the Temporary Works.
- 1.25.4 The Contractor shall obtain approval of third parties to the design of the Temporary Works, where required.

1.25.5 All Drawings prepared by the Contractor for the execution of the temporary or permanent Works, are subject to prior approval by the Project Manager before this use.

1.26 Safety

1.26.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for the safety of all activities on the Site.

1.27 Discoveries

1.27.1 Anything of historical or other interest or of significant value unexpectedly discovered on the Site shall be the property of the Employer. The Contractor shall notify the Project Manager of such discoveries and carry out the Project Manager's instructions for dealing with them.

1.28 Possession of the Site

1.28.1 The Employer shall give possession of all parts of the Site to the Contractor. If possession of a part is not given by the date stated in the **PC**, the Employer shall be deemed to have delayed the start of the relevant activities

1.29 Access to the Site

1.29.1 The Contractor shall allow the Project Manager and any person authorized by the Project Manager access to the Site and to any place where work in connection with the Contract is being carried out or is intended to be carried out.

1.30 Instructions

1.30.1 The Contractor shall carry out all instructions of the Project Manager which comply with the applicable laws where the Site is located.

1.31 Grievance redress mechanism

- 1.31.1 The Purchaser and the Supplier shall make every effort to resolve amicably by direct informal negotiation any disagreement or dispute arising between them under or in connection with the Contract.
- 1.31.2 If, after twenty-eight (28) days, the parties have failed to resolve their dispute or difference by such mutual consultation, then either the Purchaser or the Supplier may give notice to the other party of its intention to commence NAVCDP grievance redress mechanism.
- 1.31.3 Notwithstanding any reference to NAVCDP grievance redress mechanism herein, the parties are not limited to redress in a court of law

2.1 Programme

- 2.1.1 Within the time stated in the **PC**, after the date of the Letter of Acceptance, the Contractor shall submit to the Project Manager for approval a Programme showing the general methods, arrangements, order, and timing for all the activities in the Works. In the case of a lump sum contract, the activities in the Programme shall be consistent with those in the Activity Schedule.
- 2.1.2 An update of the Programme shall be a program showing the actual progress achieved on each activity and the effect of the progress achieved on the timing of the remaining work, including any changes to the sequence of the activities.
- 2.1.3 The Contractor shall submit to the Project Manager for approval an updated Programme at intervals no longer than the period stated in the **PC.** If the Contractor does not submit an updated Programme within this period, the Project Manager may withhold the amount stated in the **PC** from the next payment certificate and continue to withhold this amount until the next payment after the date on which the overdue Programme has been submitted. In the case of a lump sum contract, the Contractor shall provide an updated Activity Schedule within 14 days of being instructed to by the Project Manager.
- 2.1.4 The Project Manager's approval of the Programme shall not alter the Contractor's obligations. The Contractor may revise the Programme and submit it to the Project Manager again at any time. A revised Programme shall show the effect of Variations and Compensation Events.

2.2 Extension of the Intended Completion Date

- 2.2.1 The Project Manager shall extend the Intended Completion Date if a Compensation Event occurs or a Variation is issued which makes it impossible for Completion to be achieved by the Intended Completion Date without the Contractor taking steps to accelerate the remaining work, which would cause the Contractor to incur additional cost.
- 2.2.2 The Project Manager shall decide whether and by how much to extend the Intended Completion Date within 21 days of the Contractor asking the Project Manager for a decision upon the effect of a Compensation Event or Variation and submitting full supporting information. If the Contractor has failed to give early warning of a delay or has failed to cooperate in dealing with a delay, the delay by this failure shall not be considered in assessing the new Intended Completion Date.

2.3 Acceleration

- 2.3.1 When the Employer wants the Contractor to finish before the Intended Completion Date, the Project Manager shall obtain priced proposals for achieving the necessary acceleration from the Contractor. If the Employer accepts these proposals, the Intended Completion Date shall be adjusted accordingly and confirmed by both the Employer and the Contractor.
- 2.3.2 If the Contractor's priced proposals for acceleration are accepted by the Employer, they are incorporated in the Contract Price and treated as a Variation.

2.4 Delays Ordered by the Project Manager

2.4.1 The Project Manager may instruct the Contractor to delay the start or progress of any activity within the Works.

2.5 Management Meetings

- 2.5.1 Either the Project Manager or the Contractor may require the other to attend a management meeting. The business of a management meeting shall be to review the plans for remaining work and to deal with matters raised in accordance with the early warning procedure.
- 2.5.2 The Project Manager shall record the business of management meetings and provide copies of the record to those attending the meeting and to the Employer. The responsibility of the parties for actions to be taken shall be decided by the Project Manager either at the management meeting or after the management meeting and stated in writing to all who attended the meeting.

2.6 Early Warning

- 2.6.1 The Contractor shall warn the Project Manager at the earliest opportunity of specific likely future events or circumstances that may adversely affect the quality of the work, increase the Contract Price, or delay the execution of the Works. The Project Manager may require the Contractor to provide an estimate of the expected effect of the future event or circumstance on the Contract Price and Completion Date. The estimate shall be provided by the Contractor as soon as reasonably possible.
- 2.6.2 The Contractor shall cooperate with the Project Manager in making and considering proposals for how the effect of such an event or circumstance can be avoided or reduced by anyone involved in the work and in carrying out any resulting instruction of the Project Manager.

3. Quality Control

3.1 Identifying Defects

3.1.1 The Project Manager shall check the Contractor's work and notify the Contractor of any Defects that are found. Such checking shall not affect the Contractor's responsibilities. The Project Manager may instruct the Contractor to search for a Defect and to uncover and test any work that the Project Manager considers may have a Defect.

3.2 Tests

3.2.1 If the Project Manager instructs the Contractor to carry out a test not specified in the Specification to check whether any work has a Defect and the test shows that it does, the Contractor shall pay for the test and any samples. If there is no Defect, the test shall be a Compensation Event.

3.3 Correction of Defects

3.3.1 The Project Manager shall give notice to the Contractor of any Defects before the end of the Defects Liability Period, which begins at Completion, and is defined in the **PC.** The Defects Liability Period shall be extended for as long as Defects remain to be corrected.

Every time notice of a Defect is given, the Contractor shall correct the notified Defect within the length of time specified by the Project Manager's notice.

3.4 Uncorrected Defects

3.4.1 If the Contractor has not corrected a Defect within the time specified in the Project Manager's notice, the Project Manager shall assess the cost of having the Defect corrected, and the Contractor shall pay this amount.

4. Cost Control

4.1 Contract Price

- 4.1.1 In the case of an admeasurement contract, the Bill of Quantities shall contain priced items for the Works to be performed by the Contractor. The Bill of Quantities is used to calculate the Contract Price. The Contractor will be paid for the quantity of the work accomplished at the rate in the Bill of Quantities for each item.
- 4.1.2 In the case of a lump sum contract, the Activity Schedule shall contain the priced activities for the Works to be performed by the Contractor. The Activity Schedule is used to monitor and control the performance of activities on which basis the Contractor will be paid. If payment for Materials on Site shall be made separately, the Contractor shall show delivery of Materials to the Site separately on the Activity Schedule.

4.2 Changes in the Contract Price

4.2.1

In the case of an admeasurement contract:

- (a) If the final quantity of the work done differs from the quantity in the Bill of Quantities for the particular item by more than 25 percent, provided the change exceeds 1 percent of the Initial Contract Price, the Project Manager shall adjust the rate to allow for the change.
- (b) The Project Manager shall not adjust rates from changes in quantities if thereby the Initial Contract Price is exceeded by more than 15 percent, except with the prior approval of the Employer.
- (c) If requested by the Project Manager, the Contractor shall provide the Project Manager with a detailed cost breakdown of any rate in the Bill of Quantities.
- 4.2.2 In the case of a lump sum contract, the Activity Schedule shall be amended by the Contractor to accommodate changes of Programme or method of working made at the Contractor's own discretion. Prices in the Activity Schedule shall not be altered when the Contractor makes such changes to the Activity Schedule.

4.3 Variations

- 4.3.1 All Variations shall be included in updated Programs, and, in the case of a lump sum contract, also in the Activity Schedule, produced by the Contractor.
- 4.3.2 The Contractor shall provide the Project Manager with a quotation for carrying out the Variation when requested to do so by the Project Manager. The Project Manager shall assess the quotation, which shall be given within seven (7) days

of the request or within any longer period stated by the Project Manager and before the Variation is ordered.

- 4.3.3 If the Contractor's quotation is unreasonable, the Project Manager may order the Variation and make a change to the Contract Price, which shall be based on the Project Manager's own forecast of the effects of the Variation on the Contractor's costs.
- 4.3.4 If the Project Manager decides that the urgency of varying the work would prevent a quotation being given and considered without delaying the work, no quotation shall be given and the Variation shall be treated as a Compensation Event.
- 4.3.5 The Contractor shall not be entitled to additional payment for costs that could have been avoided by giving early warning.
- 4.3.6 In the case of an admeasurement contract, if the work in the Variation corresponds to an item description in the Bill of Quantities and if, in the opinion of the Project Manager, the quantity of work above the limit stated in **GC** Clause 4.2.1 or the timing of its execution do not cause the cost per unit of quantity to change, the rate in the Bill of Quantities shall be used to calculate the value of the Variation. If the cost per unit of quantity changes, or if the nature or timing of the work in the Variation does not correspond with items in the Bill of Quantities, the quotation by the Contractor shall be in the form of new rates for the relevant items of work.

4.4 Cash Flow Forecasts

4.4.1 When the Program, or, in the case of a lump sum contract, the Activity Schedule, is updated, the Contractor shall provide the Project Manager with an updated cash flow forecast. The cash flow forecast shall include different currencies, as defined in the Contract, converted as necessary using the Contract exchange rates.

4.5 Payment Certificates

- 4.5.1 The Contractor shall submit to the Project Manager monthly statements of the estimated value of the work executed less the cumulative amount certified previously.
- 4.5.2 The Project Manager shall check the Contractor's monthly statement and certify the amount to be paid to the Contractor.
- 4.5.3 The value of work executed shall be determined by the Project Manager.
- 4.5.4 The value of work executed shall comprise:
 - (a) In the case of an admeasurement contract, the value of the quantities of work in the Bill of Quantities that have been completed; or
 - (b) In the case of a lump sum contract, the value of work executed shall

comprise the value of completed activities in the Activity Schedule.

- 4.5.5 The value of work executed shall include the valuation of Variations and Compensation Events.
- 4.5.6 The Project Manager may exclude any item certified in a previous certificate or reduce the proportion of any item previously certified in any certificate in the light of later information.

4.6 Payments

- 4.6.1 Payments shall be adjusted for deductions for advance payments and retention. The Employer shall pay the Contractor the amounts certified by the Project Manager within 30 days of the date of each certificate but with due consideration of funds availability.
- 4.6.3 Unless otherwise stated, all payments and deductions shall be paid or charged in the proportions of currencies comprising the Contract Price.
- 4.6.4 Items of the Works for which no rate or price has been entered in shall not be paid for by the Employer and shall be deemed covered by other rates and prices in the Contract.

4.7.2 If by comission or omission of the employer prevents the work being completed before the Intended Completion Date, the Intended Completion Date shall be extended. The Project Manager shall decide whether and by how much the Intended Completion Date shall be extended. The extension however occurring shall not affect the contract price.

4.8 Tax

4.8.1 The Project Manager shall adjust the Contract Price if taxes, duties, and other levies are changed between the date 28 days before the submission of bids.

4.9 Currencies

4.9.1 Where payments are made in currencies other than the currency of the Employer's country specified in the **PC**, the exchange rates used for calculating the amounts to be paid shall be the exchange rates stated in the Contractor's Bid.

4.10 Price Adjustment

4.10.1 Prices shall be adjusted for fluctuations in the cost of inputs only if provided for in the **PC.** If so provided, the amounts certified in each payment certificate,

before deducting for Advance Payment, shall be adjusted by applying the respective price adjustment factor to the payment amounts due in each currency. A separate formula of the type indicated below applies to each Contract currency:

$$P_c = A_c + B_c Imc/Ioc$$

where:

P_c is the adjustment factor for the portion of the Contract Price payable in a specific currency "c."

 A_c and B_c are coefficients¹¹ specified in the **PC**, representing the nonadjustable and adjustable portions, respectively, of the Contract Price payable in that specific currency " \mathbf{c} ;" and \mathbf{Imc} is the index prevailing at the end of the month being invoiced and \mathbf{Ioc} is the index prevailing 21 days before Bid opening for inputs payable; both in the specific currency " \mathbf{c} ."

4.10.2 If the value of the index is changed after it has been used in a calculation, the calculation shall be corrected and an adjustment made in the next payment certificate. The index value shall be deemed to take account of all changes in cost due to fluctuations in costs.

4.11 Retention

- 4.11.1 The Employer shall retain from each payment due to the Contractor the proportion stated in the **PC** until Completion of the whole of the Works.
- 4.11.2 Upon the issue of a Certificate of Completion of the Works by the Project Manager, in accordance with GC Clause 7.1.1, half the total amount retained shall be repaid to the Contractor and half when the Defects Liability Period has passed and the Project Manager has certified that all Defects notified by the Project Manager to the Contractor before the end of this period have been corrected.

4.12 Liquidated Damages

4.12.1 The Contractor shall pay liquidated damages to the Employer at the rate per day stated in the **PC** for each day that the Completion Date is later than the Intended Completion Date. The total amount of liquidated damages shall not exceed the amount defined in the **PC**. The Employer may deduct liquidated damages from payments due to the Contractor. Payment of liquidated damages shall not affect the Contractor's liabilities.

The sum of the two coefficients A_c and B_c should be 1 (one) in the formula for each currency. Normally, both coefficients shall be the same in the formulae for all currencies, since coefficient A, for the nonadjustable portion of the payments, is a very approximate figure (usually 0.15) to take account of fixed cost elements or other nonadjustable components. The sum of the adjustments for each currency is added to the Contract Price.

4.12.2 If the Intended Completion Date is extended after liquidated damages have been paid, the Project Manager shall correct any overpayment of liquidated damages by the Contractor by adjusting the next payment certificate. The Contractor shall be paid interest on the overpayment, calculated from the date of payment to the date of repayment, at the rates specified in **GC** Clause 4.6.1.

4.14 Advance Payment

- 4.14.1 The Employer shall make advance payment to the Contractor of the amounts stated in the **PC** by the date stated in the **PC**, against provision by the Contractor of an Unconditional Bank Guarantee in a form and by a bank acceptable to the Employer in amounts and currencies equal to the advance payment. The Guarantee shall remain effective until the advance payment has been repaid, but the amount of the Guarantee shall be progressively reduced by the amounts repaid by the Contractor. Interest shall not be charged on the advance payment.
- 4.14.2 The Contractor is to use the advance payment only to pay for Equipment, Plant, Materials, and mobilization expenses required specifically for execution of the Contract. The Contractor shall demonstrate that advance payment has been used in this way by supplying copies of invoices or other documents to the Project Manager.
- 4.14.3 The advance payment shall be repaid by deducting proportionate amounts from payments otherwise due to the Contractor, following the schedule of completed percentages of the Works on a payment basis. No account shall be taken of the advance payment or its repayment in assessing valuations of work done, Variations, price adjustments, Compensation Events, Bonuses, or Liquidated Damages.

4.15 Securities

4.15.1 The Performance Security shall be provided to the Employer no later than the date specified in the Letter of Acceptance and shall be issued in an amount specified in the **PC**, by a bank or surety acceptable to the Employer, and denominated in the types and proportions of the currencies in which the Contract Price is payable. The Performance Security shall be valid until 28 days from the date of issue of the Certificate of Completion in the case of a Bank Guarantee, and until one year from the date of issue of the Completion Certificate in the case of a Performance Bond.

4.16 Dayworks

- 4.16.1 If applicable, the Dayworks rates in the Contractor's Bid shall be used for small additional amounts of work only when the Project Manager has given written instructions in advance for additional work to be paid for in that way.
- 4.16.2 All work to be paid for as Dayworks shall be recorded by the Contractor on forms approved by the Project Manager. Each completed form shall be verified and signed by the Project Manager within two days of the work being done.
- 4.16.3 The Contractor shall be paid for Dayworks subject to obtaining signed Dayworks forms.

4.17 Cost of Repairs

Loss or damage to the Works or Materials to be incorporated in the Works between the Start Date and the end of the Defects Correction periods shall be remedied by the Contractor at the Contractor's cost if the loss or damage arises from the Contractor's acts or omissions.

5. Staff and Labour

5.1 Forced Labour

5.1.1 The Contractor shall not employ forced labour, which consists of any work or service, not voluntarily performed, that is exacted from an individual under threat of force or penalty, and includes any kind of involuntary or compulsory labour, such as indentured labour, bonded labour or similar labour-contracting arrangements.

5.2 Child Labour

5.2.1 The Contractor shall not employ children in a manner that is economically exploitative, or is likely to be hazardous, or to interfere with the child's education, or to be harmful to the child's health or physical, mental, spiritual, moral, or social development. Where the relevant labour laws have provisions for employment of minors, the Contractor shall follow those laws applicable to the Contractor. Children below the age of 18 years shall not be employed in dangerous work.

5.3 Workers' Organizations

In countries where the relevant labour laws recognize workers' rights to form and to join workers' organisations of their choosing without interference and to bargain collectively, the Contractor shall comply with such laws. Where the relevant labour laws substantially restrict workers' organisations, the Contractor shall enable alternative means for Contractor's Personnel to express their grievances and protect their rights regarding working conditions and terms of employment. In either case described above, and where the relevant labour laws are silent, the Contractor shall not discourage Contractor's Personnel from forming or joining workers' organisations of their choosing or from bargaining collectively, and shall not discriminate or retaliate against the Contractor's Personnel who participate, or seek to participate, in such organisations and bargain collectively. The Contractor shall engage with such workers representatives. Worker organisations are expected to fairly represent the workers in the workforce.

5.4 Non-Discrimination and Equal Opportunity

5.4.1 The Contractor shall not make employment decisions on the basis of personal characteristics unrelated to inherent job requirements. The Contractor shall base the employment relationship on the principle of equal opportunity and fair treatment, and shall not discriminate with respect to aspects of the employment relationship, including recruitment and hiring, compensation (including wages and benefits), working conditions and terms of employment, access to training, promotion, termination of employment or retirement, and discipline. In countries where the relevant labour laws provide for non-discrimination in employment, the Contractor shall comply with such laws. When the relevant labour laws are silent on non-discrimination in employment, the Contractor shall meet this Clause's requirements. Special measures of protection or assistance to remedy past discrimination or selection for a particular job based

on inherent requirements of the job shall not be deemed discrimination.

Force Majeure

6.1 Definition of Force Majeure

6.

- 6.1.1 In this Clause, "Force Majeure" means an exceptional event or circumstance:
 - (a) which is beyond a Party's control,
 - (b) which such Party could not reasonably have provided against before entering into the Contract,
 - (c) which, having arisen, such Party could not reasonably have avoided or overcome, and
 - (d) which is not substantially attributable to the other Party.

Force Majeure may include, but is not limited to, exceptional events or circumstances of the kind listed below, so long as conditions (a) to (d) above are satisfied:

- (i) war, hostilities (whether war be declared or not), invasion, act of foreign enemies,
- (ii) rebellion, terrorism, sabotage by persons other than the Contractor's Personnel, revolution, insurrection, military or usurped power, or civil war,
- (iii) riot, commotion, disorder, strike or lockout by persons other than the Contractor's Personnel,
- (iv) munitions of war, explosive materials, ionising radiation or contamination by radio-activity, except as may be attributable to the Contractor's use of such munitions, explosives, radiation or radioactivity, and
- (v) natural catastrophes such as earthquake, hurricane, typhoon or volcanic activity.

6.2 Notice of Force Majeure

- 6.2.1 If a Party is or will be prevented from performing its substantial obligations under the Contract by Force Majeure, then it shall give notice to the other Party of the event or circumstances constituting the Force Majeure and shall specify the obligations, the performance of which is or will be prevented. The notice shall be given within 14 days after the Party became aware, or should have become aware, of the relevant event or circumstance constituting Force Majeure.
- 6.2.2 The Party shall, having given notice, be excused performance of its obligations for so long as such Force Majeure prevents it from performing them.

6.2.3 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Clause, Force Majeure shall not apply to obligations of either Party to make payments to the other Party under the Contract

6.3 Duty to Minimise Delay

- 6.3.1 Each Party shall at all times use all reasonable endeavours to minimise any delay in the performance of the Contract as a result of Force Majeure.
- A Party shall give notice to the other Party when it ceases to be affected by the Force Majeure.

6.4 Consequences of Force Majeure

- 6.4.1 If the Contractor is prevented from performing its substantial obligations under the Contract by Force Majeure of which notice has been given under **GC** Clause 6.2 [Notice of Force Majeure], and suffers delay and/or incurs Cost by reason of such Force Majeure, the Contractor shall be entitled subject to **GC** Clause 1.32.1 [Procedure for Disputes] to:
 - (a) an extension of time for any such delay, if completion is or will be delayed, under **GC** Clause 2.2 [Extension of the Intended Completion Date], and
 - (b) if the event or circumstance is of the kind described in sub-paragraphs (i) to (iv) of **GC** Clause 6.1 [Definition of Force Majeure] and, in the case of **GC** Clause 6.1.1(d)(ii) to (iv), occurs in the Country, payment of any such Cost, including the costs of rectifying or replacing the Works and/or Goods damaged or destructed by Force Majeure, to the extent they are not indemnified through the insurance policy referred to in **GC** Clause 1.21 [Insurance].
- 6.4.2 After receiving this notice, the Project Manager shall proceed in accordance with GC Clause 1.13 [Project Manager's Decisions] to agree or determine these matters.

6.5 Force Majeure Affecting Subcontractor

6.5.1 If any Subcontractor is entitled under any contract or agreement relating to the Works to relief from force majeure on terms additional to or broader than those specified in this Clause, such additional or broader force majeure events or circumstances shall not excuse the Contractor's non-performance or entitle him to relief under this Clause.

6.6 Optional Termination, Payment and Release

6.6.1 If the execution of substantially all the Works in progress is prevented for a continuous period of 84 days by reason of Force Majeure of which notice has been given under **GC** Clause 6.2 [Notice of Force Majeure], or for multiple periods which total more than 140 days due to the same notified Force Majeure, then either Party may give to the other Party a notice of termination of the

Contract. In this event, the termination shall take effect 7 days after the notice is given, and the Contractor shall proceed in accordance with **GC** Clause 7.5.5.

- Upon such termination, the Project Manager shall determine the value of the work done and issue a Payment Certificate which shall include:
 - (a) the amounts payable for any work carried out for which a price is stated in the Contract;
 - (b) the Cost of Plant and Materials ordered for the Works which have been delivered to the Contractor, or of which the Contractor is liable to accept delivery: this Plant and Materials shall become the property of (and be at the risk of) the Employer when paid for by the Employer, and the Contractor shall place the same at the Employer's disposal;
 - (c) other Costs or liabilities which in the circumstances were reasonably and necessarily incurred by the Contractor in the expectation of completing the Works;
 - (d) the Cost of removal of Temporary Works and Contractor's Equipment from the Site and the return of these items to the Contractor's works in his country (or to any other destination at no greater cost); and
 - (e) the Cost of repatriation of the Contractor's staff and labour employed wholly in connection with the Works at the date of termination.

6.7 Release from Performance

- 6.7.1 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Clause, if any event or circumstance outside the control of the Parties (including, but not limited to, Force Majeure) arises which makes it impossible or unlawful for either or both Parties to fulfil its or their contractual obligations or which, under the law governing the Contract, entitles the Parties to be released from further performance of the Contract, then upon notice by either Party to the other Party of such event or circumstance:
 - (a) the Parties shall be discharged from further performance, without prejudice to the rights of either Party in respect of any previous breach of the Contract, and
 - (b) the sum payable by the Employer to the Contractor shall be the same as would have been payable under **GC** Clause 6.6 [Optional Termination, Payment and Release] if the Contract had been terminated under **GC** Clause 6.6.

Finishing the Contract

7.1 Completion

7.

7.1.1 The Contractor shall request the Project Manager to issue a Certificate of Completion of the Works, and the Project Manager shall do so upon deciding that the whole of the Works is completed.

7.2 Taking Over

7.2.1 The Employer shall take over the Site and the Works within seven days of the Project Manager's issuing a certificate of Completion.

7.3 Final Account

7.3.1 The Contractor shall supply the Project Manager with a detailed account of the total amount that the Contractor considers payable under the Contract before the end of the Defects Liability Period. The Project Manager shall issue a Defects Liability Certificate and certify any final payment that is due to the Contractor within 56 days of receiving the Contractor's account if it is correct and complete. If it is not, the Project Manager shall issue within 56 days a schedule that states the scope of the corrections or additions that are necessary. If the Final Account is still unsatisfactory after it has been resubmitted, the Project Manager shall decide on the amount payable to the Contractor and issue a payment certificate.

7.4 Operating and Maintenance Manuals

- 7.4.1 If "as built" Drawings and/or operating and maintenance manuals are required, the Contractor shall supply them by the dates stated in the **PC**.
- 7.4.2 If the Contractor does not supply the Drawings and/or manuals by the dates stated in the **PC** pursuant to **GC** Clause 7.4.1, or they do not receive the Project Manager's approval, the Project Manager shall withhold the amount stated in the **PC** from payments due to the Contractor.

7.5 Termination

- 7.5.1 The Employer or the Contractor may terminate the Contract if the other party causes a fundamental breach of the Contract.
- 7.5.2 Fundamental breaches of Contract shall include, but shall not be limited to, the following:
 - (a) the Contractor stops work for 28 days when no stoppage of work is shown on the current Programme and the stoppage has not been authorized by the Project Manager;
 - (b) the Project Manager instructs the Contractor to delay the progress of the Works, and the instruction is not withdrawn within 28 days;
 - (c) the Employer or the Contractor is made bankrupt or goes into liquidation other than for an Expansion or amalgamation;
 - (d) a payment certified by the Project Manager is not paid by the

Employer to the Contractor after designated funds disbursement

the Project Manager gives Notice that failure to correct a particular Defect is a fundamental breach of Contract and the Contractor fails to correct it within a reasonable period of time determined by the Project Manager;

- (e) the Contractor does not maintain a Security, which is required;
- (f) the Contractor has delayed the completion of the Works by the number of days for which the maximum amount of liquidated damages can be paid, as defined in the **PC**; or
- (g) if the Contractor, as determined by the Employer, based on reasonable evidence, has engaged in corrupt or fraudulent practices in competing for or in executing the Contract, pursuant to **GC** Clause 7.6 [Fraud and Corruption].
- 7.5.3 When either party to the Contract gives notice of a breach of Contract to the Project Manager for a cause other than those listed under **GC** Clause 7.5.2 above, the Project Manager shall decide whether the breach is fundamental or not.
- 7.5.4 Notwithstanding the above, the Employer may terminate the Contract for convenience.
- 7.5.5 If the Contract is terminated, the Contractor shall stop work immediately, make the Site safe and secure, and leave the Site as soon as reasonably possible.

7.6 Fraud and Corruption

- 7.6.1 If the Employer determines that the Contractor has engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive or obstructive practices, in competing for or in executing the Contract, then the Employer may, after giving 14 days' notice to the Contractor, terminate the Contractor's employment under the Contract and expel him from the Site, and the provisions of GC Clause 7.5 [Termination] shall apply as if such expulsion had been made under GC Clause 7.5.2.
- 7.6.2 Should any employee of the Contractor be determined to have engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, coercive or obstructive practice during the execution of the work then that employee shall be removed in accordance with **GC** Clause 1.16.2.
- 7.6.3 It is the Bank's policy to require that Borrowers (including beneficiaries of Bank Financing), as well as bidders, suppliers, and contractors, and their agents (whether declared or not), subcontractors, sub-consultants, service providers or suppliers, and any personnel thereof, observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement and execution of Bank-financed contracts¹². In pursuance of this policy, the Bank:

 $^{^{12}}$ In this context, any action to influence the procurement process or contract execution for undue advantage is improper.

- (a) defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:
 - (i) "Corrupt Practice" is the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party¹³;
 - (ii) "Fraudulent Practice" is any act or omission, including a misrepresentation that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party¹⁴ to obtain financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;
 - (iii) "Collusive Practice" is an arrangement between two or more parties¹⁵, designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party; and
 - (iv) "Coercive Practice" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party¹⁶;
 - (v) "obstructive practice" is
 - (v.1) deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering, or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede a Bank investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation, or
 - (v.2) acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank's inspection and audit rights provided for under clause 1.12 [Inspections and Audits by the Bank]
- (b) will reject a proposal for award if it determines that the bidder recommended for award or any of its personnel, or its agents, or its sub-consultants, sub-contractors, service providers, suppliers and/or their employees, has, directly or indirectly engaged in Corrupt, Fraudulent, Collusive, Coercive or Obstructive Practices in competing for the contract in question;
- will declare misprocurement and cancel the portion of the Financing allocated to a contract if it determines at any time that representatives of the Borrower or of a recipient of any part of the proceeds of such Financing engaged in Corrupt, Fraudulent, Collusive, Coercive or Obstructive Practices during the

¹⁴ For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "party" refers to a public official; the terms "benefit" and "obligation" relate to the procurement process or contract execution; and the "act or omission" is intended to influence the procurement process or contract execution.

¹⁵ For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "parties" refers to participants in the procurement process (including public officials) attempting either themselves, or through another person or entity not participating in the procurement or selection process, to simulate competition or to establish bid prices at artificial, non-competitive levels, or are privy to each other's bid prices or other conditions.

¹³ For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "another party" refers to a public official acting in relation to the procurement process or contract execution. In this context, "public official" includes Bank staff and employees of other organizations taking or reviewing procurement decisions.

¹⁶ For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "party" refers to a participant in the procurement process or contract execution.

procurement or the implementation of that contract, without the Borrower having taken timely and appropriate action satisfactory to the Bank to address such practices when they occur, including by failing to inform the Bank in a timely manner at the time they knew of the practices;

- (d) will sanction a firm or individual, at any time, in accordance with the prevailing Bank's sanctions procedures¹⁷, including by publicly declaring such firm or individual ineligible either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, (i) to be awarded Bank-financed contracts and (ii) to be a nominated¹⁸ sub-contractor, consultant, supplier, or service provider of an otherwise eligible firm being awarded a Bank-financed contract; and
- (e) will require that a clause be included in bidding documents and in contracts financed by the Bank, requiring bidders, suppliers and contractors and their subcontractors, agents, personnel, consultants, service providers, or suppliers to permit the Bank to inspect all accounts and records and other documents relating to the submission of bids and contract performance and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Bank.

7.7 Payment upon Termination

- 7.7.1 If the Contract is terminated because of a fundamental breach of Contract by the Contractor, the Project Manager shall issue a certificate for the value of the work done and Materials ordered less advance payments received up to the date of the issue of the certificate and less the percentage to apply to the value of the work not completed, as indicated in the **PC**. Additional Liquidated Damages shall not apply. If the total amount due to the Employer exceeds any payment due to the Contractor, the difference shall be a debt payable to the Employer.
- 7.7.2 If the Contract is terminated for the Employer's convenience or because of a fundamental breach of Contract by the Employer, the Project Manager shall issue a certificate for the value of the work done, Materials ordered, the reasonable cost of removal of Equipment, repatriation of the Contractor's personnel employed solely on the Works, and the Contractor's costs of protecting and securing the Works, and less advance payments received up to the date of the certificate.

¹⁷ A firm or an individual may be declared ineligible to be awarded a Bank financed contract: (i) upon completion of the Bank's sanctions proceedings as per its sanctions procedures, including, inter alia, cross-debarment as agreed with other International Financial Institutions, including Multilateral Development Banks, or otherwise decided by the Bank; and through the application of the Proposal for the Implementation of a Sanctions Process within the African Development Bank Group; and (ii) as a result of temporary suspension or early temporary suspension in connection with an on-going sanction proceeding. See footnote 18 and paragraph 9 of Appendix 1 of the Rules and Procedures for Procurement of Goods and Works.

¹⁸ A nominated sub-contractor, consultant, manufacturer or supplier, or service provider (different names are used depending on the particular bidding documents) is one which has either been: (i) included by the bidder in its pre-qualification application or bid because it brings specific and critical experience and know-how that allow the bidder to meet the qualification requirement for the particular bid; or (ii) appointed by the Borrower."

7.8 Property

7.8.1 All Materials on the Site, Plant, Equipment, Temporary Works, and Works shall be deemed to be the property of the Employer if the Contract is terminated because of the Contractor's default.

7.9 Release from Performance

7.9.1 If the Contract is frustrated by the outbreak of war or by any other event entirely outside the control of either the Employer or the Contractor, the Project Manager shall certify that the Contract has been frustrated. The Contractor shall make the Site safe and stop work as quickly as possible after receiving this certificate and shall be paid for all work carried out before receiving it and for any work carried out afterwards to which a commitment was made.

7.10 Suspension of Bank Financing

- 7.10.1 In the event that the Bank suspends the Financing to the Employer, from which part of the payments to the Contractor are being made:
 - (a) The Employer is obligated to notify the Contractor of such suspension within 7 days of having received the Bank's suspension notice.
 - (b) If the Contractor has not received sums due it within the 28 days for payment provided for in **GC** Clause 4.6.1, the Contractor may immediately issue a 14-day termination notice.

7.11 Eligibility¹⁹

- 7.11.1 The Contractor shall have the nationality from an eligible country of the Bank in accordance with the Bank's **Rules and Procedures for Procurement of Goods and Works**, as listed in Section V, Eligible Countries. The Contractor shall be deemed to have the nationality of a country if the Contractor is a citizen or is constituted, or incorporated, and operates in conformity with the provisions of the laws of that country. This criterion shall also apply to the determination of the nationality of proposed subcontractors or suppliers for any part of the Contract including related services.
- 7.11.2 The materials, equipment and services to be supplied under the Contract shall have their origin in eligible source countries and all expenditures under the Contract will be limited to such materials, equipment, and services. At the Employer's request, the Contractor may be required to provide evidence of the origin of materials, equipment and services.

For the purposes of Eligibility, the provisions of the Bank's *Rules and Procedures for Procurement of Goods and Works* have been presented in detail at Section V, Eligible Countries.

7.11.3 For purposes of **GC** Clause 7.11.1, "origin" means the place where the materials and equipment are mined, grown, produced or manufactured, and from which the services are provided. Materials and equipment are produced when, through manufacturing, processing, or substantial or major assembling of components, a commercially recognized product results that differs substantially in its basic characteristics or in purpose or utility from its components.

Section VIII. Particular Conditions

	1. General Provisions
GC 1.1.2.2	The Employer is: County Government of Kiambu
GC 1.1.2.4	The Project Manager is: Appointed Irrigation ENGINEER
GC 1.1.1.2.6	The Bank is: IDA/World Bank
GC 1.1.2.7	The Borrower is: Republic of Kenya
GC 1.1.3.2	The Commencement Date shall be: Not later than 14 days after signing of the contract
GC 1.1.3.3	The Completion Date for the whole of the Works shall be: Fourteen (14) months after commencement of the works
GC 1.1.5.6	If Sections are to be used: N/A
GC 11.5.8	 Rehabilitation of intake works as per the drawings Construction of sedimentation basin (SB) Laying and fixing of pipe network plus all the accessories as specified Implementation of contractor's ESMP
GC 1.1.6.6	Location of the Site: Nyamang'ara and Mukurwe sub location in Mang'u ward - Gatundu North sub county, Kiambu County

GC 1.2.3	Sectional Completions shall not be applicable.
GC 1.2.4(i)	The following documents also form part of the Contract: a) Letter of Acceptance b) The Bid c) All Addenda, If Any d) Particular Conditions e) General Conditions f) Specifications g) Drawings h) Completed Schedules i) Contractors ESMP
GC 1.3.1(a)	The Electronic Transmission System is: None
GC 1.3.1(b)	The Employer's address for the purpose of communications is: Chief Officer Crop production, Irrigation and Marketing County Government of Kiambu P.O Box 2344-00900 - Kiambu Email: navcdpkiambu@gmail.com
GC 1.4.1	The governing law is that of: Republic of Kenya
	The ruling language is: English
	The language for communications is: English
GC 1.6.1	The Parties shall enter into contract within 30 days after the Contractor receives the Letter of Acceptance.
GC 1.10.2(a)	Permits, approvals and/or licenses, or public service undertakings to be acquired by the Employer: As per the specifications
GC 1.10.2(b)	Permits, approvals and/or licenses, or public service undertakings to be acquired by the Contractor: As per the specifications
GC 1.11.1	The individuals or firms in a joint venture, consortium or association shall designate a lead .
GC 1.17.1	Schedule of Other Contractors: None

GC 1.21.1	The minimum insurance amounts and deductibles shall be:		
GC 1.21.1			
	(a) for loss or damage to the Works, Plant and Materials: KES 100,000		
	(b) For loss or damage to Equipment: KES 50,000		
	(c) for loss or damage to property (except the Works, Plant, Materials, and Equipment) in connection with Contract KES 50,000		
	(d) for personal injury or death:		
	(i) of the Contractor's employees: KES 250,000 (ii) of other people: KES150,000		
GC 1.22.1	Site Investigation Reports shall include: design report, drawings, and any other investigation as may be required by the engineer		
GC 1.28.1	The Site Possession Date(s) shall be <i>immediately after site handing over</i> .		
GC 1.32.4	In the case of a dispute between the Purchaser and a Supplier who is a national of Kenya, the dispute shall be referred to NAVCDP grievance redress mechanism in the first instance		
2. Time Control			
GC 2.1.1	The Contractor shall submit for approval a Program for the Works within 7 days from the date of the Letter of Acceptance.		
GC 2.1.3	The period between Program updates is 14 days or as may need arise.		
	3. Quality Control		
	<u>, </u>		
GC 3.3.1	The Defects Liability Period is: 6months after the date of substantial completion.		
4. Cost Control			

GC 4.9.1	The currency of the Employer's country is: Kenya Shillings			
GC 4.10.1	The Contract "shall not" be subject to price adjustment, in accordance with GC Clause 4.10.1, and the following information regarding coefficients			
GC 4.11.1	The proportion of payments retained is: 10%			
GC 4.12.1	The Liquidated Damages for the whole of the Works are 0.05% of the final Contract Price per day. The maximum amount of Liquidated Damages for the whole of the Works is 5% of the final Contract Price.			
GC 4.13.1	The Bonus for the whole of the Works is 0% of the final Contract Price, per day. The maximum amount of Bonus for the whole of the Works is 0% of the final Contract Price.			
GC 4.14.1	The Advance Payment shall be: The Contractor may be paid an advance payment of up to a maximum of 20% of the contract price against an irrevokable bank guarantee of the equivalent amount from a reputable bank recognized by the central bank of Kenya. This shall be done after contract execution;			
GC 4.15.1	The Performance Security amount is: 10% of contract sum in the form of:			
	(a) Bank Guarantee:			
	[A Bank Guarantee shall be unconditional (on demand) (see Section IX, Contract Forms).			
7. Finishing the Contract				
GC 7.4.1	The date by which operating and maintenance manuals are required is: <i>date</i> of completion of works.			
	The date by which "as built" drawings are required is the <i>date of completion of works</i> .			
GC 7.4.2	The amount to be withheld for failing to produce "as built" drawings and/or operating and maintenance manuals by the date required in GC Clause 7.7.1 shall be: Kenya Shillings 0.5 Million			
GC 7.5.2 (g)	The maximum number of days is: as per the approved extension.			

Section IX. Contract Forms

This Section contains Contract Forms which, once completed, will constitute part of the Contract. The forms for Contract Agreement, Performance Security and Advance Payment Security, when required, shall only be completed by the successful Bidder, after contract award

Table of Forms

Letter of Acceptance	211
Contract Agreement	212
Option I: Performance Security	214
Option II: Performance Bond	216
Advance Payment Security	218
Retention Money Security	220

Letter of Acceptance

[on letterhead paper of the Employer]
[date]
To: [name and address of the Contractor]
Subject: [Notification of Award Contract No]
This is to notify you that your Bid dated [Insert date] for execution of the
You are requested to furnish the Performance Security in the amount of [insert amount (s) in figures and words and name(s) of currency(ies)] within 30 days ²⁰ in accordance with the Conditions of Contract, using for that purpose the Performance Security Form included in Section IX (Contract Forms) of the Bidding Document.
We accept the appointment of [Employer to insert full name and address of alternative appointee proposed by Bidder in Letter of Bid] as the Adjudicator. / We do not accept the appointment of [Employer to insert full name and address of alternative appointee proposed by Bidder in Letter of Bid] as the Adjudicator. And, consequently, the provisions of GC Clause 1.31 shall apply. ²¹
Authorized Signature:
Name and Title of Signatory:
Name of Agency:
Attachment: Contract Agreement

Or, the alternative deadline stipulated in the **Particular Conditions**.

Use one of the two options as appropriate.

Contract Agreement

THIS CONTRACT AGREEMENT is made on the [insert: number] day of [insert: month], [insert: year].

BETWEEN

(1) [insert complete name of the Employer], a [insert description of type of legal entity, for example, an agency of the Ministry of] of the Government of {insert name of Country of the Employer}, or corporation incorporated under the laws of {insert name of Country of the Employer} and having its principal place of business at [insert address of the Employer] (hereinafter called "the Employer"),

and

(2) [insert name of the Contractor], a corporation incorporated under the laws of [insert: country of Contractor] and having its principal place of business at [insert: address of Contractor] (hereinafter called "the Contractor").

WHEREAS the Employer invited bids for the Works, described as **[insert brief description of the Works]** and has accepted a Bid by the Contractor for the execution and completion of these Works and the remedying of any defects therein, and the Employer agrees to pay the Contractor the Contract Price or such other sum as may become payable under the provisions of the Contract at the times and in the manner prescribed by the Contract.

The Employer and the Contractor agree as follows:

- 1. In this Agreement words and expressions shall have the same meanings as are respectively assigned to them in the Contract documents referred to.
- 2. The following documents shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of this Agreement. This Agreement shall prevail over all other Contract documents.
- (a) the Letter of Acceptance
- (b) the Bid
- (c) the Addenda Nos [insert addenda numbers if any]. . . .
- (d) the Particular Conditions
- (e) the General Conditions
- (f) the Specification
- (g) the Drawings; and
- (h) the completed Schedules,

- 3. In consideration of the payments to be made by the Employer to the Contractor as indicated in this Agreement, the Contractor hereby covenants with the Employer to execute the Works and to remedy defects therein in conformity in all respects with the provisions of the Contract.
- 4. The Employer hereby covenants to pay the Contractor in consideration of the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of defects therein, the Contract Price or such other sum as may become payable under the provisions of the Contract at the times and in the manner prescribed by the Contract.

Agreement to be executed in accordance with the laws of [inser	rt name of the
borrowing country] on the day, month and year indicated above	ve.

Signed by: Signed by:

For and on behalf of the Employer for and on behalf the Contractor

In the presence of: in the presence of:

Witness, Name, Signature, Address, Date

Witness, Name, Signature, Address, Date

Option I: Performance Security

[The bank, as requested by the successful Bidder, shall fill in this form in accordance with the instructions indicated]

Date: [insert date (e.g., day, month, and year)]

Bidding Process Reference: [insert no. and title of bidding process]

Bank's Branch or Office: [insert complete name of Guarantor]

Beneficiary: [insert complete name of Employer]

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE No.: [insert Performance Guarantee number]

We have been informed that [insert complete name of the Contractor] (hereinafter called "the Contractor") has entered into Contract No. [insert number] dated [insert day and month], [insert year] with you, for the execution and completion of [insert description of the Works] and the remedying of any defects therein (hereinafter called "the Contract").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the conditions of the Contract, a Performance Guarantee is required.

At the request of the Employer, we hereby irrevocably undertake to pay you any sum(s) not exceeding [insert amount(s^{22}) in figures and words] such sum being payable in the types and proportions of currencies in which the Contract Price is payable, upon receipt by us of your first demand in writing declaring the Contractor to be in default under the Contract, without cavil or argument, or your needing to prove or to show grounds or reasons for your demand or the sum specified therein.

The Bank shall insert the amount(s) specified in the **PC** and denominated, as specified in the **PC**, either in the currency(ies) of the Contract or a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Employer.

This Guarantee shall expire no later than the [insert number] day of [insert month], [insert year],²³ and any demand for payment under it must be received by us at this office on or before that date. This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees, ICC Publication No. 458, except that subparagraph (ii) of Sub-article 20(a) is hereby excluded.

[Signatures of authorized representatives of the bank]

Insert the date twenty-eight days after the expected completion date. The Employer should note that in the event of an extension of the time for completion of the Contract, the Employer would need to request an extension of this guarantee from the Guarantor. Such request must be in writing and must be made prior to the expiration date established in the guarantee. In preparing this guarantee, the Employer might consider adding the following text to the form, at the end of the penultimate paragraph: "The Guarantor agrees to a one-time extension of this guarantee for a period not to exceed [six months] [one year], in response to the Employer's written request for such extension, such request to be presented to the Guarantor before the expiry of the guarantee."

Option II: Performance Bond

ana							- 1	as	Surety
Obligee payment which th	(hereinaft t of which ne Contrac	"the Surety"), er called "the sum well and t Price is payal trators, success	Employer", truly to be ble, the Cor) in the an made in th ntractor and	und unto nount of te types and p I the Surety b	proportion of their	ons of nselve	curre] as for the encies in heirs,
day of _ docume	, 20 nts, plans, s	ontractor has especifications, and part hereof	, i	for nents theret	o, which to th	in a e extent	ccorda hereir		
and faith shall be shall be,	nfully performull and vorant and declared the Emp	RE, the Condition the said Coolid; otherwise, red by the Empoloyer's obligat	ontract (incl it shall rem ployer to be,	uding any a ain in full f , in default	amendments to orce and effect under the Con	hereto), ct. Wher ntract, th	then the never the ne Emp	his ob he Co ployer	oligation ontractor r having
(1) cor	mplete the	Contract in acc	ordance wi	th its terms	and condition	ıs; or			
the Co Emplo Bidder default this pa Price; hereun Price,"	ontract in yer and the and Emptor a successargraph) so but not exceed the and as used in	or bids from quaccordance will accordance will accordance will accord and make ession of default according to the paragraph of the street amount set forth this paragraph of the street according to t	th its term lowest respectavailable ts under the to pay the ing other coin the first part of the shall mean	s and conconsive Bid as work pre Contract of concosts and dar paragraph had the total ar	ditions, and uder, arrange for contracts of appletion less that ages for white ereof. The termount payable	upon de or a Corn though complete the Balanch the Some with the Some wit	termir ntract h there tion a nce of urety ance of	nation betwee show rrange the C may be	by the een such uld be a ed under Contract be liable Contract
	-	oyer the amour d conditions up	-		-			in acc	ordance

The Surety shall not be liable for a greater sum than the specified penalty of this Bond.

Any suit under this Bond must be instituted	before the	expiration	of one	year from	the	date	of
the issuing of the Taking-Over Certificate.							

No right of action shall accrue on this Bond to or for the use of any person or corporation other than the Employer named herein or the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the Employer.

In testimony whereof, the Cont	ractor has hereunto set his hand	and affixed his seal, and the
Surety has caused these presents	to be sealed with his corporate seal	l duly attested by the signature
of his legal representative, this _	day of	20

Advance Payment Security

[The bank, as requested by the successful Bidder, shall fill in this form in accordance with the instructions indicated.]

Date: [insert date (e.g., day, month, and year) of Bid Submission]

Bidding Process Reference: [insert number and title of bidding process]

[bank's letterhead]

Beneficiary: [insert legal name and address of Employer]

ADVANCE PAYMENT GUARANTEE No.: [insert Advance Payment Guarantee no.]

We have been informed that [insert name of the Contractor]. . . . (hereinafter called "the Contractor") has entered into Contract No. [insert reference number of the Contract]. . . dated [insert day and month], [insert year]........... with you, for the execution of [insert name of contract and brief description of Works] (hereinafter called "the Contract").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the Conditions of the Contract, an advance payment in the sum ... [insert currency and amount in figures]²⁴....(. [insert currency and amount in words]) is to be made against an advance payment guarantee.

It is a condition for any claim and payment under this guarantee to be made that the advance payment referred to above must have been received by the Contractor on its account number [insert Contractor's account number]. . . . at................[insert name and address of the Bank]. . . .

The Guarantor shall insert an amount representing the amount of the advance payment denominated either in the currency(ies) of the advance payment as specified in the Contract, or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Employer

The maximum amount of this guarantee shall be progressively reduced by the amount of the
advance payment repaid by the Contractor as indicated in copies of interim statements or payment
certificates which shall be presented to us. This guarantee shall expire, at the latest, upon our
receipt of a copy of the interim payment certificate indicating that eighty (80) percent of the
Contract Price has been certified for payment, or on the day of ,
whichever is earlier. Consequently, any demand for payment under this guarantee must be received
by us at this office on or before that date.
This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees, ICC Publication No.
458, except that subparagraph (ii) of Sub-article 20(a) is hereby excluded.
[Seal of Bank and Signature(s)]

Note –

All italicized text (including footnotes) is for guidance on how to prepare this demand guarantee and shall be deleted from the final document.

Insert the expected expiration date of the Time for Completion. The Employer should note that in the event of an extension of the time for completion of the Contract, the Employer would need to request an extension of this guarantee from the Guarantor. Such request must be in writing and must be made prior to the expiration date established in the guarantee. In preparing this guarantee, the Employer might consider adding the following text to the form, at the end of the penultimate paragraph: "The Guarantor agrees to a one-time extension of this guarantee for a period not to exceed [insert number of months], in response to the Employer's written request for such extension, such request to be presented to the Guarantor before the expiry of the guarantee.]

Retention Money Security

Demand Guarantee

[ir	sert Bank's Name, and Address of Issuing Branch or
Office]	, G
Beneficiary:	[insert Name and Address of Employer]
Date:	_ [insert date (e.g., day, month, and year)]
RETENTION MONEY GU	ARANTEE No.: [insert Retention Money Guarantee no.]
called "the Contractor") has number of contract] dated	[insert name of Contractor] (hereinafter entered into Contract No[insert reference[insert date] with you, for the execution of neert name of contract and brief description of Works net").
Over Certificate has been iss been certified for payment, Money", or, if the amount Taking-Over Certificate is i between half of the Retention	nat, according to the conditions of the Contract, when the Taking- ued for the Works and the first half of the Retention Money has payment of [insert either "the second half of the Retention guaranteed under the Performance Guarantee, when the ssued, is less than half of the Retention Money, "the difference in Money and the amount guaranteed under the Performance inst a Retention Money guarantee.
[insert amoun your first demand in writing a in breach of its obligation und	yer, we [insert name of Bank] hereby you any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of tin figures] () [insert amount in words] upon receipt by us of eccompanied by a written statement stating that the Contractor is er the Contract because the Contractor used the advance payment sts of mobilization in respect of the Works.

The Guarantor shall insert an amount representing the amount of the second half of the Retention Money or, if the amount guaranteed under the Performance Guarantee when the Taking-Over Certificate is issued is less than half of the Retention Money, the difference between half of the Retention Money and the amount guaranteed under the Performance Security and denominated either in the currency(ies) of the second half of the Retention Money as specified in the Contract, or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Employer.

It is a condition for any claim and payment under this guarantee to be made that the payment
of the second half of the Retention Money referred to above must have been received by the
Contractor on its account number [insert Contractor's account number] at
[insert name and address of the Bank].
This guarantee shall expire, at the latest, 21 days after the date when the Employer has received a copy of the Performance Certificate issued by the Project Manager. Consequently, any demand for payment under this guarantee must be received by us at this office on or before that date.
This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees, ICC Publication No. 458.
[signature(s)]